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HSBC USA Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (LOSS) INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
Interest income:
LOBINS .ottt $ 1,359 $ 1,477 $ 2,847 $ 2,919
327 274 630 562
138 168 296 309
92 258 223 a77
62 44 144 76
Total INTEreSt iNCOME .......ceiveeieeceeeereee e 1,978 2,221 4,140 4,343
Interest expense:
DEPOSITS ...ttt 581 959 1,381 1,848
Short-term borrowings ... . 68 105 167 176
Long-term debt .......... . 239 350 541 723
Total interest expense .. . 888 1,414 2,089 2,747
Net interest income .......... . 1,090 807 2,051 1,596
Provision for credit I0SSES .......ccceveeivecicieeeecceeee e 606 264 1,104 469
Net interest income after provision for credit losses ............. 484 543 947 1,127
Other revenues:
Credit Card fEES ... 211 198 442 376
Other fees and commissions . 151 136 288 299
Trustincome .............. 36 24 69 47
Trading (loss) revenue ... . (116) 312 (825) 449
Securities (10SS) gain, NEt ... (34) 16 50 37
HSBC affiliat€ iNCOME ......c.cuevvvrirerireicieeeee e 33 41 87 87
Residential mortgage banking revenue ..............cccoceeeuuee. 14 42 51 63
(Loss) gain on instruments at fair value and
related derivatives ... (48) 1 9 -
Other (10SS) INCOME .......coocuriieirrr s (93) 7 (98) 53
Total Other FEeVENUES.......cc.cuiueeiririereceeeeie e 154 777 73 1,411
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits .........cccoovvnnciiiccicicinnnns 332 341 641 678
Support services from HSBC affiliates .. 292 290 582 569
Occupancy expense, net . . 65 59 130 118
Other expenses ............... . 241 188 401 356
Total operating eXpPenses .......c.coeeeerenene . 930 878 1,754 1,721
(Loss) income before income tax expense . (292) 442 (734) 817
Income tax (benefit) expense ... (118) 152 (282) 253
Net (10SS) INCOME ....ouvuireiecireieeereeeseeee e reseees $ (174) $ 290 $ (452) $ 564

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




HSBC USA Inc.
CONSOL IDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Assets
Cash and dUE FIOM DANKS .......c.eevieviieeieiiecesieecte sttt e st sa s b et st st ess e s sestebeseaesnes 3,775 $ 3,567
Interest bearing depoSitS With DANKS ........c.cooiiiiriieie s 4,424 4,741
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreementsto resell ..........ccoceevnvnnencccicennnns 12,336 13,677
TTAOING @SSELS ...vveuiieeieieieerie ettt sttt a st se bt e s e ae et b et e b e et s s et e s e et st et esanene s eeebenanens 33,940 37,036
SecUNtieS aVailaDl € FOF SAIE ..ot tens 22,068 19,962
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $2,913 million and $2,945 million at
June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, reSPectively) .........ccoovcrennnrniseninens 2,847 2,891
Loans (includes $1,901 million recorded under fair value option at June 30, 2008) 90,586 95,826
Less - allowance fOr Credit IOSSES ...t e e neenan 1,796 1,414
LLOBNS, NMEL ...ttt e s e et e ae b be e st e s e e s s e ssesa e te et e saeebeebeeneersene et et et e e e naentennenas 88,790 94,412
Properties and equipment, net ... 576 568
Intangible assets ..o 589 534
GOOAWITT ..ttt ettt a e b e et e s et e b ese s e esessesees e s ebe s ese s esessenssresesnenntenes 2,701 2,701
(011 1 £ 9,750 8,284
TOAl @SSELS ....euceeueieteeeiee sttt ettt bbb b £ £ et R bbbt b bbbttt 181,796 $ 188,373
Liabilities
Depositsin domestic offices:
NONINLErESE DEAINNG ....vvevviiieccc ettt be s nan 12,925 $ 13,831
Interest bearing (includes $2,053 million recorded under fair value option
8 JUNE 30, 2008) ...ttt bbbttt 70,120 68,237
Depositsin foreign offices:
NONINEErESE DEANNG ....vvieieceie ettt 964 1,030
Interest bearing ... 29,901 33,072
Total deposits 113,910 116,170
Trading HahIilITIES .....cveueeie ettt b ettt e ss e bennnens 14,063 16,253
Short-term borrowings .............. 8,997 11,832
Interest, taxes and Other lIahilitiES ........c.cvcveiiieiccece et 6,380 4,613
Long-term debt (includes $3,582 million recorded under fair value option at
JUNE B0, 2008) ....euvueeerimeeneeeereseeseeeeeseseeseseeeesese et aeee e bRttt s 26,416 28,268
TOAl HADITITIES ...eeeceeet bbbttt 169,766 177,136
Shareholders' equity
PrEfEITEA SIOCK ...vevieieieicese ettt ettt st se e b et s et e ssebe s e aesseseeaese et eneebenssae e enennas 1,565 1,565
Common shareholder's equity:
Common stock ($5 par; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 708 and 706 shares
issued and outstanding at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively) ........cccovrervrereenns - -
Additional paid-in CaPItal ...........cccooiiiiiiiiii s 9,594 8,123
RELAINEH BAMMINGS ...vveveieirieieieiee sttt ettt s st st a et e e st s s et be e e s st eteneneeneetenas 1,520 1,901
Accumulated other COMPrENENSIVE 10SS..........ciiuiiciiiiiecr e (649) (352)
Total common SharehOlder's QUILY .......cceueueirirriricecieieieee e 10,465 9,672
Total ShareN0ldErS EQUILY ......oveueeeiiririeiceceir ettt ne e 12,030 11,237
Total liabilities and shareholders' EQUILY ........cccevrririiiieiir e 181,796 $ 188,373

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



HSBC USA Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Six months ended June 30

2008 2007
(in millions)
Preferred stock
Balance, January 1 and JUNE 30, .......ccoveiuerrueieieiriniieiseeieiete ettt be st ss s st beseses s s snnssesnsas 1,565 $ 1,690
Common stock
Balance, January 1 and JUNE 30, ......cccevrurueueeririririeeeeiseseseseesesesssessesesesssessesesessssssssesssensssssesssensssssssssesenes - -
Additional paid-in capital
BAlANCE, JANUAIY L, ...ttt ettt bbbt b bbbttt b bbbt 8,123 8,124
Capital contribUtion FrOM PAENE .........cccuriiriiiicceee e 1,460 -
Employee benefit plans and OtNEr ... 11 1)
BalanNCe, JUNE 30, ....ocueveeiiteieieieeeeeeete ettt sttt bbb s b e e s e et e et et eseebeas et ene s ens et et ene et ensere e enennern 9,594 8,123
Retained earnings
BaAlANCE, JANUAIY L, ...eveveeeniiieieieieeese st te e seste e se et sss e e s sese e s se et e sase e senansesene e sasesnsenesesnsnsennnen 1,901 2,661
Adjustment to initially apply fair value measurement and fair value option
accounting, under FASB Statement Nos. 157 and 159, Net Of t8X .......cccvvrreeriecieieieeersseseeeicieiees 113 -
NEL (10SS) INCOME ... (452) 564
Cash dividends declared on preferred SLOCK ..........cciiiiiiciccee e (42) (50)
Cash dividends declared 0n COMMON SLOCK .........coueucueiriririeiciciiirieieeer e - (470)
Bal@NCE, JUNE 30, ....vouevieiiteieie ettt ettt et a bbbt s b e e e se e e te et e b ese s b eneeae st esese et et eneebeneeae e enanneten 1,520 2,705
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
BElANCE, JANUENY L, ....ovviiriiieicitieie ettt b ettt (352) (214)
Net change in unrealized (losses) gains, net of tax on:
Securities available for Sale, NEL Of taX ..........cvieeicriere s (298) (154)
Derivatives classified as cash flow hedges............cccvviiicici s (10) (12)
Unrecognized actuarial gains, transition obligation and prior service costs
relating to pension and postretirement benefits, Net of tax ... 7 9
Foreign currency translation adjustments, NEt Of taX ..........ccccciririiniciee e 4 2
Other comprehensiVe 10SS, NEE OF 18X ......c.eviiriririreicicieieiee bbb (297) (155)
BalaNCe, JUNE 30, .....ooviiiiiiiiii b (649) (369)
Total shareholders' equity, JUNE 30, ......cccoieeuiueieieiriniriieee ettt b bbbt s s 12,030 $ 12,149
Comprehensive (loss) income
Net (loss) income ........... . (452) $ 564
Other COMPrENENSIVEIOSS .......oviiiiiiciii bbb bbb (297) (155)
ComprehensiVe (I0SS) INCOME ......cceuiueiiiiiriiitci ettt es (749) $ 409

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



HSBC USA Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

Six months ended June 30,

2008 2007
(in millions)
Cash flows from operating activities
NEt (10SS) INCOIME ....ocviiiiiiiiiii bbb (452) 564
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and deferred taxes ... (132) 85
Provision for credit 10Sses ... 1,104 469
Net change in other assets and liabilities . . (90) (839)
Net changein [0anSheld fOr SAlE ... e 835 246
Net change in loans attributable to tax refund anticipation loans program:
Originations Of [08NS .........cccvrriiicieicre s (12,628) (17,428)
Sales of loans to HSBC Finance Corporation, including premium . " 12,628 17,640
Net changein trading assets and [1abilities ... 1,743 (232)
Mark-to-market on financial instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives ...... (288) -
Net changein fair value of derivatives and hedged items " 647 879
Net cash provided by operating aCtiVities ... 3,367 1,384
Cash flows from investing activities
Net change in interest bearing deposits With Banks ... 317 (2,994)
Net change in federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements .............c..c.... 1,341 (3,123)
Net change in securities available for sale:
Purchases of securities available for SAlE ..o (6,469) (5,556)
Proceeds from sales of securities available for Sale ........cccveeeeveiiecicecececee e 586 3,705
Proceeds from maturities of securities availablefor sale ..........cccovveeiievicicecicceceee 3,311 1,729
Net change in securities held to maturity:
Purchases of securities held to MatUritY .........cooviiciii e 273) (130)
Proceeds from maturities of securities held t0 MELUNILY .........coovciceieinnr e 317 171
Net changein loans:
Originations, NEt Of COHECLIONS ........cueiiiririeieieii et 11,302 13,351
Loans purchased from HSBC Finance COrporation ...........coceecernennineeeeeeenesensnesesenees (11,884) (11,368)
L 08NS SOl 0 third PariES.......ccueueeiiririeieiriercres ettt 3,976 -
Net cash used for acquisitions of propertiesand eqUIPMENt .........cccocvrrriicieennee s (43) (42)
OLNEE, NEL ...ttt bbbttt 3 (21
Net cash provided by (used in) iNVESting @CIVItIES .........ccovrvinicerieen s 2,484 (4,278)
Cash flows from financing activities
NEL ChaNGE iN AEPOSITS .....vvieeeiieirieieeer ettt sttt s s (2,224) 4,707
Net change in short-termM DOITOWINGS .........c.cviiiiiiiiii s (2,835) 357
Net change in long-term debt:
1ssUaNCE Of 0NG-LENM AEDL ...t 2,579 2,931
Repayment of [0ng-term debt ..........coiiii e (4,592) (4,347)
Capital contribution from PArENE ... 1,460 -
Other increases (decreases) in Capital SUMPIUS .........covveiiieceiieiiinir e 11 1)
DiIVIAENAS PAI ...ttt (42) (520)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing aCtiVities ... (5,643) 3,127
Net changein cash and due from DanKS .............coiiiiii e 208 233
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period .. . 3,567 3,359
Cash and due from banks at end of PEriod ..........cceerrrirircire e 3,775 3,592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

HSBC USA Inc. isanindirect wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC North America Holdings Inc. (HNAH), whichiis
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc (HSBC). The accompanying unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of HSBC USA Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, HUSI), including its principal
subsidiary, HSBC Bank USA, National Association (HBUS), have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) for interim financial information and
with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X, aswell as in accordance with predominant
practices within the banking industry. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required
by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all
normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for afair presentation of financia position, results of
operations and cash flows for the interim periods have been made. These unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with HUSI's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2007 (the 2007 Form 10-K). Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to
conform to the current period presentation. The accounting and reporting policies of HUSI are consistent, in al
material respects, with those used to prepare the 2007 Form 10-K, except for the impact of new accounting
pronouncements summarized in Note 18, “New Accounting Pronouncements’ of the consolidated financial
statements.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Interim results should not be considered indicative of resultsin future periods.

Note 2. Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are summarized in the following table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Trading assets:
U.S. TIEASUIY vttt ettt bbbt b s st s bt b s s s s e s e b bt b s s e s antene $ 235 $ 460
U.S. GOVEIMNMENE QUENCY .....vviviiiiiiiice it bbb bbb s 2,293 3,009
ASSEL DACKEA SECUNTIES ......cveeeeiiieeetece et ss e s e e e e naesennnens 2,497 2,942
Corporate and fOreign DONGS ... e 2,385 2,483
(10 R = o T 1= 4,823 4,643
PrECIOUS MELAIS .....veuiceiiciiietietec ettt ettt a et e b ae s s e sseaeseebene et e s ebe s esesaeneesenentenes 7,579 8,788
Fair VAlUE Of ENVALIVES ....ovcvceeeiiiieice ettt st ns e neneenan 14,128 14,711
Tota $ 33,940 $ 37,036
Trading ligbilities:
Securities sold, NOt YEE PUIChASEA ..........ceiiririeeeer et $ 931 $ 1,444
Payables for PreCioUS MELAIS .........cccuiuiiriiiiiiic s 2,255 1,523
Fair VAlUE Of AENVALIVES ....oeeeeveceeeeet ettt sttt sa e st et ns 10,877 13,286
TOAl et $ 14,063 $ 16,253

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the fair value of derivatives included in trading assets have been reduced
by $2.5 billion and $3.6 billion, respectively, of amounts recognized for the obligation to return cash collatera
received under master netting agreements with derivative counterparties, consistent with the reporting requirements
of FASB Staff Position No. FIN 39-1, Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39 (FSP FIN 39-1).

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the fair value of derivativesincluded in trading liabilities have been
reduced by $8.7 billion and $5.6 hillion, respectively, of amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral
paid under master netting agreements with derivative counterparties, consistent with the reporting requirements of
FSP FIN 39-1.



Note 3. Securities

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, HUSI held no securities of any single issuer (excluding the U.S. Treasury,
U.S. Government agencies and U.S. Government sponsored enterprises) with a book value that exceeded 10% of
shareholders equity. The amortized cost and fair value of the securities available for sale and securities held to
maturity portfolios are summarized in the following tables.

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
June 30, 2008 Cost Gains L osses Value
(in millions)
Securities available for sale:
U.S. TIEASUMY ..eereieeieeneietetsens e tetsesessess st seeees $ 505 $ - $ (16) $ 489
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises (1) ........cccoeeueene. 13,260 62 (348) 12,974
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed ................. 4,013 10 (73) 3,950
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions ........ 697 1 (16) 682
Asset backed SECUNTIES ..o 1,189 - (198) 991
Other domestic debt SECUNtIES .....ccvvvvveveeeerirereee s 2,696 - (191) 2,505
Foreign debt SECUrities ..., 246 1 (8) 239
EQUItY SECUMTIES (2) .ouvvvreireieireeeieieieieee s 239 - Q) 238
TOAl e $ 22,845 $ 74 $ (851 $ 22,068
Securities held to maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises (3) .......ooeeeveeeen. $ 1,875 $ 65 $ (18) $ 1,922
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed ................. 509 26 - 535
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions ........ 233 9 - 242
Other domestic debt SeCUNties ..........ocovvvniccniciciine, 181 - (16) 165
Foreign debt SECUMTIES ........covveveiececeeeserececiens 49 - - 49
TOE et $ 2,847 $ 100 $ (34 $ 2,913
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2007 Cost Gains L osses Value
(in millions)
Securities available for sale:
U.S. TIEASUIY ..ottt sssnns $ 1 $ - $ - $ 1
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises (1) ....ccovoeeveeeeens 10,931 60 (251) 10,740
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed ................. 3,193 13 (34) 3,172
Obligations of U.S. states and palitical subdivisions ........ 668 3 (©) 668
Asset backed SECUNTIES ..o 1,563 2 (72) 1,493
Other domestic debt SECUNtIES .....cvvvvveveeerirereeee e 2,649 15 (25) 2,639
Foreign debt SECUMTIES ......ovcveueeerirerieeere s 1,036 1 ©) 1,034
EQUItY SECUMTIES (2) wovvvvrereereririreeieeeeseses s eessenens 235 - (20) 215
TOA e s $ 20,276 $ 94 $  (408) $ 19,962
Securities held to maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises (3) .........ccceeeuenne $ 1,862 $ 42 $ (22 $ 1,882
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed ................. 528 24 (@) 551
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions ........ 255 14 - 269
Other domestic debt SECUMLIES .......coeveveeeerrenieccreee 176 1 4 173
Foreign debt SECUMTIES ........coveireiecicieieeeeeccns 70 - - 70
TOE e s $ 2,891 $ 81 $ (27) $ 2,945

(1) Includes mortgage backed securities of $2.3 billion and $2.1 billion issued or guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association
(FNMA) and $2.1 hillion and $2.0 billion issued or guaranteed by Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) at June 30, 2008
and December 31, 2007, respectively.

(2) Includes securitiesissued by FNMA of $189 million and $210 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

(3) Includes mortgage backed securities of $.6 billion issued or guaranteed by FNMA at both June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 and $1.2
billion and $1.1 billion issued and guaranteed by FHLMC at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.



Gross unrealized losses and related fair values, classified as to the length of time the losses have existed, are

summarized in the following tables.

One Year or Less

Greater Than One Year

Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross AgQgregate
of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
June 30, 2008 Securities L osses of Investment Securities L osses of Investment
($in millions)
Securities available for sale:
U.S. Treasury .....cocoeveeerereeeenenns 1 $ (16) $ 489 - $ - $ -
U.S. Government sponsored
enterprises (1) .cccevvreverenicernenas 1,600 (118) 5,661 146 (230) 3,386
U.S. Government agency
issued or guaranteed ................... 752 (38) 2,378 186 (35) 700
Obligations of U.S. states and
political subdivisions .................. 47 (5) 304 52 (11) 344
Asset backed securities ................. 36 (119) 383 17 (79 534
Other domestic debt securities ...... 64 (116) 1,600 52 (75) 840
Foreign debt securities .................. 5 ?3) 85 6 (5) 119
Equity Securities ..........ccccvvvnene 1 1) 49 - - -
TOtAl oo 2,506 $  (416) $ 10949 459 $ (435 $ 5923
Securities held to maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored
enterprises (1) .ovveveveenveerreennnn. 15 $ (4) $ 159 13 $ (14) $ 257
U.S. Government agency issued
or guaranteed ............covenienenns 1 - 15 - - -
Obligations of U.S. states and
political subdivisions .................. 16 - 17 3 - 2
Other domestic debt securities ...... 2 (4) 55 10 (12 102
TOtEA e 34 $ (8) $ 246 26 $ (26) $ 361
One Year or Less Greater Than One Year
Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross AgQgregate
of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
December 31, 2007 Securities L osses of Investment Securities L osses of Investment
($in millions)
Securities available for sale:
U.S. Treasury ......ccocceeevrenrecnneene. - $ - $ - - $ - $ -
U.S. Government sponsored
enterpriseS (1) .oveevereeeereeerreneeene 48 (57) 1,581 564 (194) 5,628
U.S. Government agency
issued or guaranteed ................... 9 - 13 440 (34) 1,607
Obligations of U.S. states and
political subdivisions ... 43 ) 256 13 (0] 106
Asset backed securities ...... 33 (70) 969 15 2 127
Other domestic debt securities....... 31 (13) 642 50 (12) 735
Foreign debt securities .................. 5 1) 71 6 2 158
Equity securities - - - 1 (20) 190
TOtAl oo 169 $ (143 $ 3,532 1,089 $ (265 $ 8551
Securities held to maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored
enterprises (1) .oveeveeeeereeerrenenene 11 $ 3) $ 87 20 $ (19 $ 377
U.S. Government agency issued
or guaranteed ..........ccorerieeeene 1 - 15 82 0] 42
Obligations of U.S. states and
political subdivisions .................. 7 - 4 - - -
Other domestic debt securities ...... 3 (2) 41 7 3) 66
TOtA oo 22 $ (4) $ 147 109 $ (23 $ 485

(1) Included primarily mortgaged backed securities issued or guaranteed by FNMA and FHLMC.



Gross unrealized losses within the available for sale securities portfolio increased during the six months ended

June 30, 2008 due to the impact of continued widening of credit spreads on private label collateralized mortgage
obligations (CMOs) which are included in other domestic debt securities, mortgage backed securities issued or
guaranteed by FNMA and FHLMC which areincluded in U.S. Government sponsored enterprises and asset backed
securities (ABS). These are primarily fixed rate securities and a majority of these securities are highly-rated (i.e.,
AAA or AA). HUSI has the ability and intent to hold these securities until maturity or a market price recovery. As
aresult, other than the securities described below, they are not considered to be other than temporarily impaired.

During the second quarter of 2008, two domestic debt securities were determined to be other-than-temporarily
impaired pursuant to SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investmentsin Debt and Equity Securities’. Asa
result, HUSI recorded an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $24 million on these investments, which is
recorded as a component of securities gains (losses) in the accompanying consolidated statement of (loss) income.

Note 4. Loans

A distribution of the loan portfolio, including loans held for sale, is summarized in the following table.

June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
LoansHeld All Other Total LoansHeld All Other Total
for Sale L oans L oans for Sale L oans L oans
(in millions)
Commercia loans:
Congtruction and other real estate ... $ 40 $ 8,703 $ 8,743 $ 26 $ 8428 $ 8454
Other commercial .....cccoovvveerevienenen, 1,901 29,508 31,409 1,939 28,407 30,346
1,941 38,211 40,152 1,965 36,835 38,800
Consumer loans:
Sub-prime residential mortgages....... 1,527 - 1,527 1,869 - 1,869
Other residential mortgages 727 27,875 28,602 1,018 32,493 33,511
Credit card receivables ............ 215 18,036 18,251 - 19,415 19,415
Other CoNSUMES ......ccecvveevreeeieieien, 55 1,999 2,054 418 1,813 2,231
2,524 47,910 50,434 3,305 53,721 57,026
Total 10ANS ..c.coveeveereeieee e, $ 4,465 $ 86,121 $ 90,586 $ 5,270 $ 90556 $ 95826

Loans pledged as collateral are summarized in Note 14, “Financial Guarantee Arrangements and Pledged Assets’ of
the consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, HUSI sold approximately $4 billion of prime Adjustable Rate Mortgages (ARM). The transaction
resulted in a $13.5 million gain on sale, which isreflected as a component of residential mortgage banking revenue
in the accompanying consolidated statement of (loss) income. HUSI retained the servicing rightsin relation to the
mortgages upon sale.

Loans Held for Sale

HUSI originates commercia loans in connection with its participation in a number of leveraged acquisition finance
syndicates. A substantial majority of these loans were originated with the intent of selling them to unaffiliated third
parties and are classified as other commercial loans held for sale at June 30, 2008. Commercial loans held for sale
under this program were $1.9 billion at June 30, 2008, al of which are recorded at fair value. Refer to Note 15,
“Fair Value Measurements’ of the consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Residential mortgage loans held for sale include sub-prime residential mortgage loans acquired from unaffiliated
third parties and from HSBC Finance Corporation, with the intent of securitizing or selling the loans to third parties.
Also included in residential mortgage loans held for sale are first mortgage loans originated and held for sale
primarily to various governmental agencies.

Credit card receivables held for sale represent a private label credit card portfolio attributable to one merchant
relationship.
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Other consumer loans held for sale consist primarily of student loans.

The valuation allowance related to loans held for saleis presented in the following table.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30

2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
Balance at beginning of Period ...........ccoveeneerennenesnensenenes $ (726) $ (26) $ (475) $ (29)
Increase in allowance for net reductionsin market value .......... (92) (72) (358) (81
Releases of valuation allowance for loans sold ..........cccccevveene 21 40 36 52
Baance at end of PEriod .......cccoeveeeieeieieisce s $ (797) $ (58) $ (797) $ (58)

Commercial leverage acquisition finance loans held for sale are recorded at fair value as aresult of electing fair
value option. Refer to Note 16, “Fair Value Option” of the consolidated financial statements for further details.
During the six month period ended June 30, 2008, the market value of these loans decreased. Thiswas primarily a
result of adverse conditions in the corporate credit markets. However, in the second quarter of 2008, the market
value of these |oans experienced a moderate recovery from the first quarter declines.

Residential mortgage and other consumer loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of cost or market value. The
cost of loans held for sale exceeded market value at June 30, 2008, resulting in an increase to the related valuation
allowance. Thiswas primarily aresult of adverse conditionsin the U.S. residential mortgage markets.

Loans held for sale are subject to credit risk and interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market conditions as well asin the interest rate and credit environment. Interest rate risk for the
residential mortgage loans held for sale is partially mitigated through an economic hedging program to offset
changes in the fair value of the loans held for sale. Trading related revenues associated with this economic hedging
program, which include net interest income and trading revenues, were $70 million and $30 million for the three and
six month periods ended June 30, 2008, respectively. Trading related revenues related to this economic hedging
program, which include net interest income and trading revenues, were $69 million and $67 million for the three and
six month periods ended June 30, 2007, respectively.

Note 5. Allowance for Credit Losses and Credit Quality Statistics

Changesin the allowance for credit losses are summarized in the following table.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30

2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
Balance at beginning of Period ...........ccoveerveereneevecsenee e $ 1,583 $ 862 $ 1,414 $ 897
Acquired / (transferred) reServe ..........coevvrreneeeeeeereesnsesenens (21) - (22) -
Provision charged t0 INCOME .........oeurueinireninicecreee s 606 264 1,104 469
LesS: Charge OffS ...t 443 293 845 598
Add: RECOVENES ..ottt 71 69 144 134
Baance at end of PEriod .........cceeeeeueeieveieceeeeeee e $ 1,796 $ 902 $ 1,796 $ 902
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Credit Quality Statistics

Nonaccruing loans are summarized in the following table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Nonaccruing loans
Commercial:
Construction and Other rEal ESEALE .........cccevieuiriciieeseese et $ 51 $ 34
Other commercia 171 89
Total commercial 222 123
Consumer:
ReSIAENtial MOMGAOIES .......cvreeeieeieieir ettt 859 640
Credit Card rECEIVADIES ...ttt senaene e 1 1
TOtal CONSUMEY [OBNS.........ceeviieteieiciee ettt sttt ettt ae st se et se b e e be s ese s enennenin 860 641
Total NONBCCIUING 0BNS ......cviiiiiiieiet ettt ne e $ 1,082 $ 764
Interest income on nonaccruing loans is summarized in the following table.
Six months ended June 30 2008 2007
(in millions)
Interest income on honaccruing loans:
Amount which would have been recorded had the associated loans
been current in accordance with their original terms ... $ 39 $ 16
AMOUNt aCtUBITY FECOMTBA .......cviviiiiecitiietet bbb 1 4
Additional credit quality statistics are summarized in the following table.
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more as to principal or interest:
TOtal COMMEITIAl ....oveieeiicceee ettt a et et a e b b eeae e e s e et et ese b enesaeneesennaran $ 40 $ 8
Consumer:
ReSIAENtial MOMGAOIES .......ceeeeeiiieieiire ettt - -
Credit Card rECAIVADIES .......c.ceiiiseceresre ettt e e e s snse e neees 460 432
Other CONSUMES TOANS .......vcuiieiiieeieteetest ettt s et b e sae e s e et e s aesaenesnene s 14 16
B0z o) TS W 1= gl PR 474 448
Total accruing loans contractually past due 90 dayS Or MO ........cccvvvirvniriceicieensne e $ 514 $ 456
Impaired commercial loans:
Balance at €nd Of PEMIOU .......cvveiveiiiieiricieiee e bbb $ 222 $ 123
Amount With iMPaIrMENE FESEIVE .......cccviieiieeieeiirise ettt sae e sssenesessenens 142 41
IMPAITIMENE FESEIVE ...ttt bbbt 44 15
Other real estate and owned assets:
Balance at end Of PENOO .....c.ouvvririiicieieiirire st $ 73 $ 71

Further analysis of credit quality and credit loss reserves are presented in Item 2, “Management’ s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A)” of this Form 10-Q under the caption “ Credit

Quality.”

12



Note 6. Intangible Assets

The composition of intangible assets is summarized in the following table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)
MOrtgage SENVICING FIGNES ...ttt bbbttt $ 552 $ 494
Other ..o 37 40
Intangible assets $ 589 $ 534

Mortgage Servicing Rights (MSRS)

A servicing asset is a contract under which estimated future revenues from contractually specified cash flows, such
as servicing fees and other ancillary revenues, are expected to exceed the obligation to service the financia assets.
HUSI recognizes the right to service mortgage loans as a separate and distinct asset at the time they are acquired or
when originated loans are sold. Servicing fees collected by HUSI areincluded in residential mortgage banking
revenue and were $62 million and $56 million for the first six months of 2008 and 2007, respectively.

MSRs are subject to credit, prepayment and interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as aresult of changes
in these economic variables. Interest rate risk is mitigated through an economic hedging program that uses
securities and derivatives to offset changesin the fair value of MSRs. Since the hedging program involvestrading
activity, risk is quantified and managed using a number of risk assessment techniques, which are addressed in more
detail in HUSI’s 2007 Form 10-K.

Residential MSRs are initially measured at fair value at the time that the related |oans are sold and are remeasured at
fair value at each reporting date (the fair value measurement method). Changesin fair value of the asset are
reflected in residential mortgage banking revenue in the period in which the changes occur. Fair value is determined
based upon the application of valuation models and other inputs. The valuation models incorporate assumptions
market participants would use in estimating future cash flows. The reasonableness of these valuation modelsis
periodically validated by reference to external independent broker valuations and industry surveys.

Fair value of residential MSRsis calculated using the following critical assumptions.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
Annualized constant prepayment rate (CPR) .......c.cceuriiriniiccieieie st 21.00 % 21.40 %
CONSEANE AISCOUNE FBLE .......cueeireeteieieiereee ettt ettt ea bbbttt ne bbbt b et e e e b b ae s 8.40 % 10.44 %
WEIGhLE QVEIAOgE [T ...ttt 49vyears 4.9 years
Residential M SRs activity is summarized in the following table.
Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
Fair value of MSRs:
Beginning balanCe .........ccooveveenenreneesssereeeeens $ 468 $ 483 $ 489 $ 470
Additionsrelated to [0an SAlES .......cccccveevvereierenirinenns 52 30 82 60
Changes in fair value due to:
Change in valuation inputs or assumptions
used in the valuation models ..........cccocevvvereennnnne 46 57 25 64
Realization of cash flows (20) (22) (50) (46)
Ending balanCe...........coveueueueiererieesesiceeee e $ 546 $ 548 $ 546 $ 548

Commercial MSRs, which are accounted for using the lower of cost or market method, totaled $6 million and
$4 million for the first six months of 2008 and 2007, respectively.

13



Note 7. Goodwill

Goodwill istested for impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’. Goodwill may be tested more frequently if certain conditions are met.
During the third quarter of 2007, HUSI completed its annual impairment test of goodwill. At the testing date, HUSI
determined that the fair value of each of its reporting units exceeded its carrying value. As aresult, no impairment
loss was required to be recognized.

Asaresult of difficult business conditions and market volatility which began in the second half of 2007 and
continued into the first half of 2008, HUSI performed an interim goodwill impairment test for the Global Banking
and Markets business segment as of June 30, 2008. The results of this test showed the fair value of the business unit
exceeded the carrying value including the goodwill that was assigned to it and, therefore, no impairment was
recorded.

Note 8. |ncome Taxes

The following table presents HUSI' s effective tax rates.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
Statutory federal inCOME taX rate .........ovverveeerereecrreneeeereenns (3500 % 350 % (3500 % 350 %
Increase (decrease) in rate resulting from:
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit.................... 15 16 14 17
Tax exempt iINCOME........cc.coueerminiririirceee s 1.3 1.0 (1.0 (1.0
Validation of deferred tax balances............cccovvneccnnne - - (.4) (35
TaX CreditS.....ccuc s (4.5) (2.3) (3.6) (2.5)
Effects of foreign operations...........ccocvvvvnnecicicennnns 9 3 17 2
uncertain tax Provision ... - 4 (.5 13
(@107 S (2.0) 4 (1.0) (.2
Effective tax rate (404) % 344 % (384) % 310 %

The effective tax rate for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008 increased compared to the same
prior year period as aresult of tax benefit adjustments such astax credits, tax exempt income and deferred tax
adjustments applied to pretax loss in 2008 as compared to similar tax benefits applied to pretax income in 2007.

HUSI is currently under audit by the Internal Revenue Service as well as various state and local tax jurisdictions.
Although one or more of these audits may be concluded within the next 12 months, it is not possible to reasonably
estimate the impact of the results from the audits on HUSI' s uncertain tax positions at this time.
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Note 9. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is summarized in the following table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)
= 100 o PSR $ 16,178 $ 18,233
Subordinated debt 6,193 5,693
Structured notes ......... 2,986 3,284
All other .......ccevvveveuennee 1,059 1,058
TOtal 1ONG-LEMI AEDL ...ttt b bbb aennas $ 26,416 $ 28,268

The decline in Senior debt from December 31, 2007 is principally the result of the maturity of $1,500 million of
Floating Rate FHLB advances, the early maturity of $1,360 million of structured financing transactions and the
repayment of $700 million in private label credit card secured financings. This decline was partially offset by the
issuance of $1,500 million of Floating Rate Extendable Notes on April 21, 2008 with an initial maturity date of
May 15, 2009 and a final maturity date of April 15, 2013. Interest on these notesis paid quarterly based on three-
month LIBOR plus the applicable spread for each interest period.

Included in Senior debt are $1,500 million of Floating Rate Extendible Notes, which require the noteholders to
decide each month whether or not to extend the maturity date of their notes by one month beyond the initial maturity
date of December 15, 2006. In no event will the maturity of the notes be extended beyond December 15, 2011, the
final maturity date. If on any election date a noteholder decides not to extend the maturity of all or any portion of
the principal amount of their notes, the notes will mature twelve months from the election date. Refer to page 129 of
HUSI’s 2007 Form 10-K for additional information regarding these notes.

In August 2007, noteholders of $750 million of the above Floating Rate Extendible Notes exercised their option not
to extend the maturity date of their notes. These notes will mature on August 15, 2008. In September 2007,
noteholders of $690 million of this debt exercised their option not to extend the maturity date of their notes. These
notes will mature on September 15, 2008. On the October 2007 election date, noteholders of the remaining $60
million of this debt elected not to extend the maturity date of their notes. These notes will mature on October 15,
2008.

On June 18, 2008 HBUS issued $700 million of 7.00% Subordinated Bank Notes due January 15, 2039. These
notes were issued under the $40 billion Global Bank Note Program. The notes are non-callable and interest will be
paid semi-annually each January 15th and July 15th, commencing January 15, 2009.

Subordinated debt includes $1,538 million and $1,683 million of debt instruments recorded at fair value at June 30,
2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. Structured notes include $2,044 million and $1,760 million of debt
instruments recorded at fair value at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. Refer to Note 16, “Fair
Vaue Option” of the consolidated financial statements for further details.

15



Note 10. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, HUSI conducts transactions with HSBC and its subsidiaries (HSBC affiliates).
These transactions occur at prevailing market rates and terms. All extensions of credit by HBUS to other HSBC
affiliates are legally required to be secured by eligible collateral. Related party balances and the income and

expense generated by related party transactions are summarized in the following tables.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Assets:
Cash and du FrOM DENKS ... 175 $ 97
Interest bearing deposits With DanKS ..........cccriicic s 194 134
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements ...........cccocccvvvnceneccnne 430 356
TragiNG @SSELS (L) ..euceeureeereiiereieieici ettt b bttt bbbttt 15,066 11,640
2,838 2,007
1,724 390
TOUE BSSELS ...t 20,427 $ 14,624
Liabilities:
DIEPOSIES ...eueeuietiaeeeerieeires ittt bbb 12,498 $ 13,050
Trading [iEDHITIES (1) ...ceeveeceeeeeeeeree e 19,687 14,552
SHOP-LENM DOITOWINGS ...ttt 884 982
(107 T 1,564 876
TOtA HADIITIES ... 34,633 $ 29,460

(1) Trading assets and liabilities exclude the impact of netting in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 39 and FSP FIN 39-1.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
INEErESt INCOME ..ottt $ 54 39 $ 112 $ 65
INTErESt EXPENSE ....eoveieireee et 48 106 125 209
Net interest iNCOME.........cccurirniriiirceee e $ 6 (67) $ (13) $ (144)
HSBC &ffiliate income:
Fees and commissions:
HSBC ... $ 18 18 $ 44 $ 29
HSBC Finance Corporation.............coucrceeuennnns 6 6 12 11
HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. (HMUS).................... 2 4 5 6
Other HSBC affili@es. .....c.ocvvvereeeireeeereeireeieinns 1 2 4 4
Gains on sales of refund anticipation loansto
HSBC Finance Corporation...........c.coveicerveeeuennens 1 1 13 23
Other HSBC affiliates income..........cccovveevierinecrcnens 5 10 9 14
Total affiliateinCoMe .....c.ocvveereeireereeeree e $ 33 41 $ 87 $ 87
Support services expense from HSBC dffiliates:
HSBC Finance Corporation ...........c.ccoeeeeereesunererenenes $ 116 113 $ 237 $ 232
HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. (HMUS) .....cocccovvecinennne 58 66 109 123
HSBC Technology & Services (USA) Inc.
(HTSU) for technology Services ...........ccccoeeverireees 60 62 120 123
Other HSBC affiliates .....ceeveeevreeeeireeiereereeeseenns 58 49 116 91
Total support services from HSBC affiliates..................... $ 292 290 $ 582 $ 569
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Transactions Conducted with HSBC Finance Corporation

e  Support services from HSBC &ffiliates includes charges by HSBC Finance Corporation under various service
level agreements for loan origination and servicing as well as other operational and administrative support.

e Inthe second quarter of 2008, HSBC Finance Corporation launched a new program with HBUS to sell loans
originated in accordance with the Federal Home L oan Mortgage Corporation’s (“ Freddie Mac”) underwriting
criteriato HBUS who then sells them to Freddie Mac under its existing Freddie Mac program. During the three
months ended June 30, 2008, $14 million of real estate secured loans were purchased by HBUS under this
program, with atotal premium of $.4 million.

e By agreement, HUSI purchases receivables generated by private label and MasterCard'/Visa® credit card
relationships daily at fair market value, as determined by an independent third party. HUSI purchased $9,538
million and $10,090 million of private label receivables and $2,346 million and $1,732 million of
MasterCard/Visareceivablesin thefirst half of 2008 and 2007, respectively. Premiums paid are amortized to
interest income over the estimated life of the receivables purchased. HSBC Finance Corporation continues to
service the customer receivables and charge HUSI aservicing fee. Fees paid relating to the servicing of private
label receivables for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 totaled $95 million and $97 million,
respectively and for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 totaled $194 million and $197 million,
respectively. Fees paid relating to the servicing of MasterCard/Visa receivables for the three months ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007 totaled $12 million and $4 million, respectively and for the six months ended June 30,
2008 and 2007 totaled $22 million and $9 million, respectively. Asof June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
HSBC Finance Corporation was servicing $16,187 million and $17,427 million of private label receivables and
$2,064 million and $1,988 million of MasterCard/Visa receivables.

e HUSI servicesaportfolio of residential mortgage loans owned by HSBC Finance Corporation and receives a
servicing fee. Servicing fee income received by HUSI during the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
was $3.4 million and $2.5 million, respectively. Servicing fee income received by HUSI during the six months
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was $7.0 million and $4.7 million, respectively.

e |n 2005, HUSI purchased a portfolio of higher quality nonconforming residential mortgage loans (the HMS
portfolio) from HSBC Finance Corporation with the intent of holding these loans. HSBC Finance Corporation
continues to service these loans, and charges HUSI a servicing fee. Servicing fees paid by HUSI during the
three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $1.6 million and $2.2 million, respectively. Servicing fees
paid by HUSI during the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $3.4 million and $4.6 million,
respectively.

e HUSI'swholly-owned subsidiaries HBUS and HSBC Trust Company (Delaware), N.A. (HTCD) are the
originating lenders for afederal income tax refund anticipation loan program for clients of various third party
tax preparers, which are managed by HSBC Finance Corporation. By agreement, HBUS and HTCD process
applications, fund and subsequently sell these loans to HSBC Finance Corporation. For the six months ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007, HBUS and HTCD originated approximately $13 billion and $17 billion, respectively,
that were sold to HSBC Finance Corporation. This resulted in gains of $.6 million and $1 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $13 million and $23 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

e |n 2007, HUSI acquired residential mortgage loans at fair value from HSBC Finance Corporation for the
purpose of selling these loans. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, HUSI acquired $371 million of
loans from HSBC Finance Corporation for atotal premium of $.4 million.

e Certain of HUSI's consolidated subsidiaries have secured lines of credit totaling $1 billion with HSBC Finance
Corporation. There were no balances outstanding under any of these lines of credit at June 30, 2008 or
December 31, 2007.

! MasterCard is a registered trademark of MasterCard, Incorporated.
2Visaisaregistered trademark of VisaUSA, Inc.
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Transactions Conducted with HMUS and Subsidiaries

HUSI utilizes HSI for broker dealer, debt and preferred stock underwriting, customer referrals, loan syndication and
other treasury and traded markets related services, pursuant to service level agreements. Fees charged by HSI for
broker dealer, loan syndication services, treasury and traded markets related services are included in support services
from HSBC affiliates. Debt underwriting fees charged by HSI are deferred as a reduction of long-term debt and
amortized to interest expense over the life of the related debt. Preferred stock issuance costs charged by HSI are
recorded as areduction of capital surplus. Customer referral fees paid to HS| are netted against customer fee
income, which isincluded in other fees and commissions.

HUSI has also extended a subordinated loan to HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. in the amount of $500 million, of which
$500 million and $350 million was outstanding at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively, and has also
extended a subordinated loan to HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. in the amount of $270 million, of which $215 million
was outstanding at June 30, 2008.

HUSI has an uncommitted line of credit to HMUS or its subsidiaries not to exceed $1 billion, of which $64 million
was outstanding at June 30, 2008.

Other Transactions with HSBC Affiliates

HUSI had an unused line of credit with HSBC Bank plc, aU.K. based subsidiary (HBEU), of $2.5 hillion at both
June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

HUSI has extended loans and lines of credit to various other HSBC affiliates totaling $1.7 billion, of which $671
million and $225 million was outstanding at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

HUSI utilizes other HSBC affiliates primarily for treasury and traded markets services and, to alesser extent, for
global resourcing initiatives. Feesbilled to HUSI for these services are included in support services from HSBC
affiliates and totaled $67 million and $72 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively,
and $126 million and $135 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

HUSI routinely entersinto derivative transactions with HSBC Finance Corporation and other HSBC affiliates as part
of aglobal HSBC strategy to offset interest rate or other market risks associated with debt issues and derivative
contracts with unaffiliated third parties. The notional value of derivative receivables related to these contracts was
approximately $940 billion and $996 hillion at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. The net credit
exposure (defined as the recorded fair value of derivative receivables) related to the contracts was approximately
$15 billion and $12 hillion at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. HUSI, within its Global Banking
and Markets business, accounts for these transactions on a mark to market basis, with the change in value of
contracts with HSBC affiliates substantially offset by the change in value of related contracts entered into with
unaffiliated third parties.

Domestic employees of HUSI participate in a defined benefit pension plan sponsored by HNAH. Additional
information regarding pensions is provided in Note 11, “Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits of HUSI and
HSBC Finance Corporation” of the consolidated financial statements.

Employees of HUSI participate in one or more stock compensation plans sponsored by HSBC. HUSI' s share of the
expense of these plans on a pre-tax basis during the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was approximately
$21 million and $16 million, respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, HUSI’ s share of
the expense of these plans on a pre-tax basis was approximately $38 million and $30 million, respectively. As of
June 30, 2008, HUSI' s share of compensation cost related to nonvested stock compensation plans was
approximately $109 million, which is expected to be recognized over aweighted-average period of 1.6 years. A
description of these stock compensation plans begins on page 142 of the 2007 Form 10-K.

For the six months ended June 30, 2008, there were no common stock dividends declared and paid by HUSI in
comparison to $470 million at the end of the same 2007 period.
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Note 11. Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits of HUSI and HSBC Finance Corporation

The components of net periodic benefit cost reflected in HUSI’ s Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income are
shown in the table below and reflect the portion of net periodic benefit cost of the HNAH defined benefit pension
and postretirement benefits other than pension plans which has been allocated to HUSI.

Other
Pension Benefits Postr etirement Benefits
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
Three months ended June 30
Net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost — benefits earned during the period ................... $ $ 8 $ - $ 1
INEEIESE COSE ...ttt 19 18 2 2
Expected return on plan assets . (23) (22)
Recognized [0SSes ................ 1 - -
Net periodic benefit Cost ........cooovvvviicciiicce $ $ 5 $ 2 $ 3
Six months ended June 30
Net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost — benefits earned during the period ................... $ 16 $ 16 $ - $ 1
INEEIESE COSE ...t 38 35 3 3
Expected return on plan assets . (45) (45) - -
Recognized 10SSeS ........cccevrenneee 3 -
Transition amount amortization 1 1
Net periodic benefit COSt ..o $ 10 $ 9 $ 4 $ 5

Note 12. Regulatory Capital

Capital amounts and ratios of HUSI and HBUS, calculated in accordance with banking regulations, are summarized

in the following table.

June 30, 2008

December 31, 2007

Capital Well-Capitalized Actual Capital Well-Capitalized Actual
Amount Minimum Ratio (1) Ratio Amount Minimum Ratio (1) Ratio
($in millions)
Total capital ratio:
HUS .o $ 16,879 10.00 % 1232 % $ 15276 10.00 % 1129 %
HBUS .....cccoeennne 17,052 10.00 12.59 15,330 10.00 11.40
Tier 1 capital ratio:
HUSI s 10,473 6.00 7.65 9,639 6.00 7.12
10,600 6.00 7.83 9,696 6.00 7.21
HUSI s 10,473 300 (2 5.90 9,639 300 (2 534
HBUS ......ccooeennne 10,600 5.00 6.08 9,696 5.00 5.46
Risk weighted assets:
HUSI .o 136,970 135,339
HBUS ... 135,397 134,501

(1) HUSI and HBUS are categorized as “well-capitalized”, as defined by their principal regulators. To be categorized as well-capitalized

under regulatory guidelines, a banking institution must have the minimum ratios reflected in the above table, and must not be subject to a

directive, order, or written agreement to meet and maintain specific capital levels.
(2) Thereisno Tier 1 leverage ratio component in the definition of awell-capitalized bank holding company. The ratio shown isthe

minimum required ratio.
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In thefirst half of 2008, HSBC effected capital contributionsto HUSI totaling $1,460 million to maintain capital at
levels believed to be prudent in light of current market conditions. In the first quarter of 2008, HSBC North
Americalnc. (HNAI) contributed $1 billion to HUSI in exchange for one share of HUSI common stock. Inthe
second quarter of 2008, HNAI contributed $460 million to HUSI in exchange for one share of HUSI common stock.
Each contribution to HUSI was contributed subsequently to HBUS in exchange for one share of HBUS common
stock.

On May 1, 2008, an implementation plan related to the final rule regarding Risk-Based Capital Standards, which
represents the U.S. adoption of the Basel |1 Capital Accord, was approved by the HNAH Board of Directors. Refer
to page 76 in the 2007 Form 10-K for more information.

Note 13. Variable Interest Entities (VIES)

In the ordinary course of business, HUSI is involved with entities that are deemed to be VIEs and may hold variable
interests in those entities. HUSI consolidates VIEs whereit is deemed to be the primary beneficiary.

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, HUSI held al or the majority of the debt securitiesissued by several VIE
trusts that were organized by an affiliate of HUSI and third parties to issue structured notes. The consolidated assets
of these VIEs were $193 million and $213 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively and are
reported in trading assets. Debt instruments issued by these VIEs and held by third parties were not material to
HUSI.

HUSI was also the primary beneficiary of and consolidated certain VIE trusts organized to securitize private label
credit cards. At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the consolidated assets of these trusts were $1,994 million
and $2,822 million, respectively and were reported in loans. Debt securities issued by these VIEs are reported as
secured financings in long-term debt.

The assets of consolidated VIES serve as collateral for the obligations of the VIEs. The holders of debt instruments
issued by consolidated VIEs have no recourse to the general credit of HUSI.

HUSI also had significant involvement with other VIEs that were not consolidated at June 30, 2008 or December 31,
2007 because HUSI was not the primary beneficiary. The following table presents information on these VIEs.

June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

Maximum Maximum
Total Exposure Total Exposure
Assets to Loss Assets to Loss

(in millions)
Asset backed commercia paper conduits .........ccooeee.. $ 31,735 $ 8,918 $ 32,886 $ 9,507
Structured investment vehicles ...........cccoun... 5,109 50 6,337 50
Structured note VENICIES ........cceeveveverenens 7,125 1,092 8,350 1,488
Low income housing tax partnerships 652 133 705 115
TOAl o $ 44,621 $ 10,193 $ 48,278 $ 11,160

HUSI isinvolved with VIES primarily to facilitate client needs. Information on the types of VIEs with which HUS
isinvolved and the nature of its involvement and variable interests in those entities is presented below.
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Asset Backed Commercial Paper Conduits

HUSI provides liquidity facilities to anumber of multi-seller and single-seller asset backed commercial paper
conduits (ABCP conduits) sponsored by HSBC affiliates and by third parties. These conduits support the financing
needs of customers by facilitating their access to commercia paper markets.

Customers sell financial assets, typically consumer and corporate receivables, to the ABCP conduits, which fund the
purchases by issuing short-term highly-rated commercial paper collateralized by the assets acquired. In amulti-
seller conduit, any number of companies may be originating and selling assets to the conduit whereas a single-seller
conduit acquires assets from a single company. HUSI, along with other financial institutions, provides liquidity
facilitiesto ABCP conduits in the form of lines of credit or asset purchase commitments. Liquidity facilities
provided to multi-seller conduits support transactions associated with a specific seller of assets to the conduit and
HUSI would only be expected to provide support in the event the multi-seller conduit is unable to issue or rollover
maturing commercial paper because of acommercial paper market disruption, or the supported transaction has
breached certain triggers. Liquidity facilities provided to single-seller conduits are not identified with specific
transactions or assets and HUSI would be required to provide support upon the occurrence of acommercial paper
market disruption or the breach of certain triggers that affect the single-seller conduit’s ability to issue or rollover
maturing commercia paper. HUSI' s obligations are generally pari passu with that of other institutions that also
provide liquidity support to the same conduit or for the same transactions. HUSI does not provide any program-
wide credit enhancements to ABCP conduits.

Each seller of assets to an ABCP conduit typically provides collateral in the form of excess assets and therefore
bears the risk of first loss related to the specific assets transferred. HUSI does not transfer its own assets to the
conduits. It has no ownership interestsin, performs no administrative duties for, and does not service any of the
assets held by the conduits. HUSI is not the primary beneficiary and does not consolidate any of the ABCP conduits
towhich it provides liquidity facilities. Credit risk related to the liquidity facilities provided is managed by
subjecting them to HUSI’ s normal underwriting and risk management processes. The maximum exposure to |0ss
presented in the preceding tabl e represents the maximum amount of loans and asset purchases HUSI could be
required to make under the liquidity facilities it provides.

Structured I nvestment Vehicles

HUSI provides aliquidity facility to asingle structured investment vehicle (SIV) sponsored by athird party. This
entity, which is deemed to be a VIE, seeksto earn a profit by investing in mostly highly rated longer-dated fixed
income instruments and funding those investments by issuing cheaper short-term, highly rated commercial paper
and medium term notes. HUSI does not transfer its own assetsto the SIV. It has no ownership interestsin,
performs no administrative duties for, and does not service any of the assets the SIV holds. HUSI is not the primary
beneficiary of the SIV and therefore does not consolidate the SIV. Credit risk related to the liquidity facility
provided is managed through HUSI’ s normal underwriting and risk management processes. The maximum
exposure to loss presented in the preceding table represents a $50 million liquidity facility which was fully funded,
and isrecorded as aloan, as of June 30, 2008. Theloan is subject to the normal credit review process for the
determination of the related provision.
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Structured Note Vehicles

In the normal course of business, HUSI entersinto derivative transactions with entities organized by HSBC affiliates
and by third parties to issue structured notes. These entities, which are deemed to be VIEs, are organized as trusts
and issue fixed or floating rate debt instruments backed by the financial assets they hold. They were established to
create investments with specific risk profiles for investors.

HUSI’s variable interests in these entities include derivative transactions, such as interest rate and currency swaps,
and investmentsin their debt instruments. With respect to several of these VIES, HUSI also holds variable interests
in the form of total return swaps entered into in connection with the transfer of certain assetsto the VIEs. In these
transactions, HUSI transferred financial assets from its trading portfolio to the VIEs and entered into total return
swaps under which it receives the total return on the transferred assets and pays a market rate of return. The
transfers of assets in these transactions do not qualify as sales under the applicable accounting literature and are
accounted for as secured borrowings. Accordingly, the transferred assets continue to be recognized as trading assets
on HUSI' s balance sheet and the funds received are recorded as liabilities in long-term debt.

In addition to its variable interests, HUSI holds credit default swaps with these structured note VIESs under which it
receives credit protection on specified reference assets in exchange for the payment of a premium. Through these
derivatives, the VIEs assume the credit risk associated with the reference assets, which isthen passed on to the
holders of the debt instruments they issue. Because they create rather than absorb variability, the credit default
swaps held by HUSI are not considered variable interests in the entities.

HUSI records al investments in, and derivative contracts with, unconsolidated structured note vehicles at fair value
on its balance sheet. HUSI’ s maximum exposure to loss is limited to the recorded amounts of these instruments.

Securitization Vehicles

HUSI utilizes entities structured as trusts to securitize certain private label credit card receivables where
securitization provides an attractive source of funding. HUSI transfers the credit card receivables to the trusts which
in turn issue debt instruments collateralized by the transferred receivables. These trusts are considered VIEs and are
consolidated by HUSI as the primary beneficiary at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

Low-Income Housing Partnerships

HUSI invests as alimited partner in anumber of low-income housing partnerships that operate qualified affordable
housing projects and generate tax benefits, including federal low-income housing tax credits, for investors. Some of
the partnerships are deemed to be VIEs because they do not have sufficient equity investment at risk or are
structured with non-substantive voting rights. HUSI is not the primary beneficiary of these VIEs and does not
consolidate them.

HUSI' s investments in low-income housing partnerships are recorded using the equity method of accounting and are
included in other assets on HUSI' s balance sheet. The maximum exposure to loss shown in the table represents the
recorded investment net of estimated expected reductions in future tax liabilities and potential recapture of tax
credits allowed in prior years.
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Note 14. Financial Guarantee Arrangements and Pledged Assets

Financial Guarantee Arrangements

The maximum potential amounts of future payments required by financial guarantee arrangements are summarized
in the following table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)
Standby letters of credit, net Of PartiCiPatioNS (1) ...ovvveveverreriresieeereresesee e sese e seseseseesesesens $ 9,009 $ 9,021
Credit derivatives considered guarantees (2) 639,424 650,243
TOBL e h b bRttt $ 648433 $ 659,264

(1) Includes $753 million and $598 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.
(2) Includes $110,604 million and $98,250 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
respectively.

Standby L etters of Credit

A standby letter of credit isissued to athird party for the benefit of a customer and is essentially a guarantee that the
customer will perform, or satisfy some obligation, under a contract. It irrevocably obligates HUSI to pay a specified
amount to the third party beneficiary when the customer fails to perform some contractual obligation. Two types of
standby letters of credit areissued by HUSI: performance and financial. A performance standby letter of credit is
issued where the customer is required to perform some nonfinancia contractual obligation, such as the performance
of aspecific act, whereas afinancial standby letter of credit is issued where the customer’ s contractual obligation is
of afinancial nature, such as the repayment of aloan or debt instrument. The amount presented in the above table
represents the total contractual amount of outstanding standby letters of credit, net of participations of $9 billion at
both June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Theissuance of a standby letter of credit is subject to HUSI' s credit approval process and collatera requirements.
Fees are charged for issuing letters of credit commensurate with the customer's credit evaluation and the nature of
any collateral. Included in other liabilities are deferred fees on standby letters of credit, representing the fair value
of the “stand ready obligation to perform” under these guarantees, amounting to $26 million and $25 million at

June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. Alsoincluded in other liabilitiesis an allowance for credit
losses on unfunded standby letters of credit of $46 million and $27 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
respectively.

Credit Derivatives

Some derivative transactions to which HUSI is a party meet the definition of a guarantee under FIN 45. These
consist primarily of certain credit derivative contracts, including credit default swaps, total return swaps and credit
options, which HUSI enters into to satisfy the needs of its customers and, in certain cases, for its own benefit. Credit
derivatives are arrangements that provide for one party (the “ protection seller”) to pay another party (the “protection
buyer”) an agreed upon amount if a specified credit event related to a“reference asset” occurs during the term of the
contract. In exchange for the credit protection provided, the protection buyer agrees to pay afee to the protection
seller. Credit derivatives effectively transfer the credit risk of the reference asset to the protection seller, which is
able to assume that risk without directly purchasing the asset. Where HUSI sells credit protection to a counterparty
that holds the subject reference asset, it effectively provides a guarantee with respect to that asset.
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HUSI records al derivative contracts at fair value. HUSI’ s credit derivative agreements do not specify whether or
not the counterparty holds the reference asset. The amounts disclosed in the table represent the total notional
amount of all credit derivativesin which HUSI isthe protection seller, which is the maximum amount that HUSI
could be required to pay under those contracts. In accordance with established policies, HUSI offsets most of the
risk it assumesin selling credit protection through credit derivatives by entering into offsetting contracts with other
counterparties. Because they do not reflect the approximately equal amounts due from third parties under offsetting
contracts, HUSI believes the contractual amounts presented are not representative of actual future credit exposure.

Pledged Assets

Pledged assets included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet are summarized in the following table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)
Interest bearing deposits With DANKS .........cccrienirrrerisrssee s sesses $ 1,217 $ 264
TradiNG @SSEES (L) vuvveeeereeieieiee ettt 2,132 2,834
Securities available for SAE (2) ... 5,623 7,060
SeCUNtieS NEI 10 MBLUMTLY ....c.cuiriiiiiiiie ettt bbb 186 172
L0BNS (B) vttt 5,910 8,416
OLNEE BSSELS () ...vvevteeirii ettt bbbt 3,671 2,889
TOLAl oottt $ 18,739 $ 21,635

(1) Trading assets are primarily pledged against liabilities associated with consolidated variable interest entities (refer to Note 13, “Variable
Interest Entities (VIES)” of the consolidated financial statements for further information regarding variable interest entities).

(2) Securities available for sale are primarily pledged against various short-term borrowings.

(3) Loansareprimarily private label credit card receivables pledged against long-term secured borrowings and residential mortgage loans
pledged against long-term borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank.

(4) Other assets represent cash on deposit with non-banks related to derivative collateral support agreements.

Note 15. Fair Value Measurements

HUSI adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Vaue Measurements’ (SFAS 157), on
January 1, 2008. SFAS 157 clarifies the definition of fair value as the exit price that will be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and enhances fair value disclosures. The standard establishes athree-level fair value hierarchy
based on the transparency of inputs to the fair value measurement of an asset or liability. SFAS 157 nullifies certain
guidance in EITF Issue No. 02-3, “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading
Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management” (EITF 02-3), which prohibited the
recognition of gains or losses at the inception of a derivative contract unless the fair value of the derivative contract
was determined based on a quoted market price, or other valuation technique that incorporates observable market
data. In addition, SFAS 157 eliminates large position discounts for financial instruments held and requires HUSI to
consider its own credit risk when measuring the fair value of liabilities. HUSI has delayed the implementation of
SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities except for items that are recognized or disclosed at
fair value on arecurring basis (at least annually) in accordance with FASB Staff Position 157-2, “ Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 157”.

Transition

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 157, HUSI applied the relevant provisionsin EITF 02-3 to its derivative portfolio.
EITF 02-3 prohibited the recognition of trading gains or losses at the inception of a derivative contract unless the
fair value of the derivative contract was determined based on a quoted market price or other valuation technique that
incorporated observable market data. HUSI previously recognized deferred profit into earnings over the life of the
instruments or when the unobservable significant input became observable. 1n accordance with the transition
provisions of SFAS 157 related to EITF 02-3, HUSI recorded an after-tax cumulative-effect adjustment of
approximately $36 million as an increase to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2008.
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Fair Value Hierarchy

SFAS 157 establishes afair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used in measuring fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted pricesin active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). If the
inputs used to measure an asset or aliability fall to different levels within the hierarchy, the classification of the
entire asset or liability will be based on the lowest level input that is significant to the overall fair value
measurement of the asset or liability. HUSI categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value within the fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1:  Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or ligbilitiesin an active market that HUS| has the ability to
access at the measurement date. Level 1 measurements include active exchange-traded equity securities,
listed derivatives and most U.S. government and government agency securities.

Level 2.  Quoted pricesin markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, inputs other
than quoted market prices for the asset or liability that are observable either directly or indirectly for
substantially the full term, and inputs to valuation techniques that are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data through correlation or other statistical means for substantially the
full term of the asset or liability. Level 2 measurements include corporate and municipal bonds, trading
commodities, most over-the-counter derivatives and debt issuances elected to be measured at fair value.

Level 3: Inputsto the pricing or valuation techniques that are significant to the overall fair value measurement of
the asset or liability are unobservable. Level 3 measurements include mortgage servicing rights, long-
dated and exotic derivatives and certain loans, including funded leveraged loans and unfunded
commitments, and mortgage whole loans.

In determining the appropriate measurement levels, HUSI performs analyses on the assets and liabilities subject to
SFAS 157 at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during
the reporting period may result in areclassification of certain assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy.
Reclassifications that affect Level 3 measurements are reported as transfersinto or out of Level 3 in the disclosure
relating to changesin fair value of Level 3 assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period when the
reclassification occurs.
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The following table summarizes each of HUSI’ sfair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on arecurring basis as of June 30, 2008.

Fair Value M easur ements on a Recurring Basis as of June 30, 2008

Gross Net
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Netting (1) Balance
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding derivatives(2)... $ 1,984 $ 16,090 $ 1738 $ 19812 $ - $ 19812
Derivatives (3) ..o 302 78,751 3,883 82,936 (68,532) 14,404
Securities available for sale ........ccoovveuneee 12,101 9,870 97 22,068 - 22,068
LOANS (4) cvveverrveererernrerenns - 1,001 810 1,901 - 1,901
Intangible assets (5) ... - - 546 546 - 546
Total @SSELS ..o $ 14387 $ 105802 $ 7074  $ 127263 $ (68532) $ 58,731
Liabilities:
Depositsin domestic offices (6) .......c.c..... $ -8 1922 % 131 % 2053 $ -8 2,053
Trading ligbilities, excluding
AEriVatiVES (2) ..cvevereeeeeereieee e 759 2,427 - 3,186 - 3,186
Derivatives (3) .... 555 82,796 1,921 85,272 (74,130) 11,142
Long-term debt (7) . . - 3,242 340 3,582 - 3,582
Tota liabilities ... $ 1314 $ 90387 $ 2392 $ 94093 $ (74,130) $ 19,963

(1) Represents counterparty and cash collateral netting permitted under FIN 39, “ Offsetting of Amounts Relating to Certain Contracts’, as
amended by FSP-FIN 39-1.

(2) RefertoNote2, “Trading Assets and Liabilities’ of the consolidated financial statements for the composition and discussion of trading
assets and liabilities.

(3) Includes derivatives held as trading assets ($14,128 million) and trading liabilities ($10,877 million) as well as derivatives held for hedging
and certain commitments accounted for as derivatives.

(4) Includesleveraged acquisition finance and other commercial loans held for sale or risk-managed on afair value basis for which HUS| has
elected to apply the fair value option. Refer to Note 4, “Loans’ of the consolidated financial statements for further information on HUSI's
loan portfalio.

(5) Representsresidential mortgage servicing rights. Refer to Note 6, “Intangible Assets’ of the consolidated financial statements for further
information on residential mortgage servicing rights.

(6) Represents structured deposits risk-managed on afair value basis for which HUS| has elected to apply the fair value option.

(7)  Includes structured notes and own debt issuances for which HUS| has elected to measure on afair value basis. Refer to Note 9, “Long-
Term Debt” of the consolidated financial statements for additional information on structured notes.
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Rollforward of Level 3 Measurements

The following tables summarize additional information about changesin fair value of Level 3 assets and liabilities
for the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2008. The fair value measurement of aLevel 3 asset or
liability and related changesin fair value may be determined based on observable and unobservable inputs. Asa
risk management practice, HUSI may risk manage the Level 3 assets and liabilities, in whole or in part, using
securities and derivative positions that are classified as Level 1 or Level 2 measurements within the fair value
hierarchy. Sincethose Level 1 and Level 2 risk management positions are not included in the table below, the
information provided does not reflect the effect of the risk management activities related to the Level 3 assets and
liabilities.

Total Gainsand (Losses) Included in (1)

Trading Other Net Purchases, Transfers Unrealized
March 31, (Loss) Other Comprehensive Issuances and Intoor Out June30, Gainsor (Losses)
2008 Revenue Revenue Income Settlements of Level 3 2008 Still Held
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding derivatives ........... $ 1578 $ (1590 $ - $ - $ 310 $ 9 $ 1738 $ (132)
Derivatives, net (2) 2,610 (615) 9 - (31) 7 1,962 (893)
Securities available for sale 125 - - 6 (34) - 97 6
Loans (3) 746 - 17 - 49 @) 810 17
Other assets, excluding derivatives (4) ......... 468 - 26 - 52 - 546 46
Total $ 5527 $ (774 $ 34 $ 6 $ 46 $ 14 $ 5153 $ (956)
Liabilities:
Depositsin domestic offices ... $ 137) $ @ 3 - $ - $ 7)) % 78 $ (131 $ 5
Long-term debt (123) 19 - - (113) (123) (340) 16
Total $ (260) $ 18 $ - $ - $ (184 $ 45 $_ (41 $ 21
Total Gainsand (L osses) Included in (1)
Trading Other Net Purchases, Transfers Unrealized
January 1, (Loss) Other Comprehensive Issuances and Into or Out June30, Gainsor (Losses)
2008 Revenue Revenue Income Settlements of Level 3 2008 Still Held
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding derivatives............ $ N $ (183 % - $ - $ 477 $ 1,372 $ 1738 $ (161)
Derivatives, net (2) . 709 (511) 6 - 62 1,696 1,962 (782)
Securities available for sale 1 - - 6 (34) 124 97 6
Loans (3) 829 - (64) - 47 ) 810 (64)
Other assets, excluding derivatives (4) ......... 489 - (25) - 82 - 546 24
Total $ 2105 $ (699 $ (83 $ 6 $ 634 $ 3190 $ 5153 $ (977)
Liabilities:
Deposits in domestic offices 192 $ 10 $ - $ - $ @2n % 78 $ (131 $ -
Long-term debt (63) 37 - - (187) (127) (340 22
Total (255 $ 47 % - $ - $ 214 % (49 $ _ (@41 $ 2

(1) Includesrealized and unrealized gains and losses.
(2) Level 3 net derivatives at June 30, 2008 included derivative assets of $3,883 million and derivative liabilities of $1,921 million.
(3) Includes Level 3 corporate lending activities risk-managed on afair value basis for which HUSI has elected the fair value option.

(4) Representsresidential mortgage servicing activities. Refer to Note 6, “Intangible Assets” of the consolidated financial statements for
further information on residential mortgage servicing rights.
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Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis and therefore, are not included in the tables above.
These assets include (a) mortgage loans and loan commitments classified as held for sale reported at the lower of
cost or fair value and (b) impaired assets that are written down to fair value based on the valuation of underlying
collateral during the period. These instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to
fair value adjustment in certain circumstances (e.g., impairment). The following table presents the fair value
hierarchy level within which the fair value of the financial assets has been recorded as of June 30, 2008. The gains
(losses) for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008 are also included.

Total Gains Total Gains
Non-recurring Fair Value M easurements as of (Losses) for the (Losses) for the
June 30, 2008 3 months ended 6 months ended
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008
(in millions)
Assets:
Loans
Residential mortgage
loansheld for sale (1) ..... $ - % 402 3% 1630 $ 2,032 $ (135) $ (257)
Impaired loans (2)............. - - 77 77 (4) (14)
Total assets at fair value on
anon-recurring basis ............ $ - $ 402 3 1,707  $ 2,109 $ (139) $ (271)

(1) Asof June 30, 2008, the fair value of the mortgage |oans was below cost.

(2) Representsimpaired commercial loans. HUSI uses the fair value estimate of the underlying collateral to approximate the fair value of the
commercial loans.
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Note 16. Fair Value Option

HUSI adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities’ (SFAS 159), on January 1, 2008. SFAS 159 provides afair value option that alows HUS
to irrevocably elect fair value, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, as the initial and subsequent measurement
attribute for most financial assets, financial liabilities, unrecognized firm commitments and written loan
commitments not previously recognized at fair value. The new standard permits HUSI to elect the fair value option
at the initial recognition of the asset or liability or upon occurrence of an event that gives rise to anew basis of
accounting for that asset or liability. Changesin fair value for assets and liabilities for which elections are made are
reported in earnings as incurred.

Transition

In accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS 159, HUSI recorded an after-tax cumulative-effect adjustment
of approximately $77 million as an increase to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2008.

Carrying Value at Transition Gaing/ Carrying Value at
January 1, 2008 (Losses) to Opening January 1, 2008
Prior to Adoption Retained Earnings After Adoption
(in millions)
L0BNS (L) wovvvevererereeiiriieseee et b et nan $ 1,939 $ - $ 1,939
Long-term debt
OWN dEBL ISSUANCES (2) .ouvvvevreerererereeeeeseereseeeeeesesesseseseees 1,721 (120) 1,601
Pre-tax cumulative-effect adjustment (120)
TaX €FfECt ..o 43
Cumulative effect, after taX .......ccvverereereeseeesee s $ (77)

(1) Represents commercia leveraged acquisition finance loans designated as held for sale. No transition adjustment was recorded as the loans
were already recorded at fair value pursuant to lower of cost or fair value accounting and the fair values of the loans were below cost at
January 1, 2008.

(2) Changesinfair value of own debt issuances resulting from interest rate exposure had been hedged by interest rate derivatives and were
qualified fair value hedges in accordance with SFAS 133. Asaresult, there was no transition adjustment relating to the interest rate
exposure. The transition adjustment primarily reflects (a) the release of deferred costs and (b) the impact of HUSI's own credit risk on the
fair value measurement of own debt issuances for which HUSI elected the fair value option.

HSBC complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) for financial reporting purposes. HUSI
has elected to apply the fair value option to selected financial instruments under SFAS 159 to achieve the following
objectives: (a) to eliminate the accounting effect that arises from the difference between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs,

(b) to reduce income volatility caused by the differences in the measurement attributes of selected financial
instruments and (c) to simplify the accounting applied to those financial instruments. HUSI has applied the fair
value option primarily to leveraged loans, certain hybrid instruments and own debt issuances.

Loans

HUSI has elected to apply the fair value option to commercial leveraged acquisition finance loans and unfunded
commitments. HUSI plans to make the same election to such financial instruments going forward. The election
allows HUSI to account for those loans and commitments at fair value which is consistent with the manner in which
the instruments are managed.
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As of June 30, 2008, leveraged acquisition finance loans and certain commercial loans for which the fair value
option was elected had an aggregate unpaid principal balance of $2,123 million and an aggregate fair value of
$1,901 million which were recorded as loans in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Interest income on these loansis
recorded in interest income in the Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income. During the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2008, HUSI recorded in other revenue $40 million of gain and $101 million of loss,
respectively, resulting from changesin the fair value of these loans. Because substantially all of the loans elected
for the fair value option are floating rate assets, changes in their fair value are primarily attributable to changesin
loan-specific credit risk.

As of June 30, 2008, no loans for which the fair value option has been elected are 90 days or more past due or are on
non-accrual status.

Long-Term Debt (Own Debt | ssuances)

HUSI elected the fair value option for certain fixed rate debt issuances which had been hedged by derivatives that
qualified for fair value hedge accounting in accordance with SFAS 133. The election allows HUSI to achieve
similar hedge accounting effect without meeting the vigorous SFAS 133 hedging requirements. HUSI measures the
fair value of the debt issuances based on inputs observed in the secondary market. Changesin fair value of these
instruments are attributed to changesin HUSI' s own credit risk as well as changesin interest rates.

The debt issuances for which HUSI elected the fair value option had an aggregate principal balance of $1,750
million and an aggregate fair value of $1,538 million as of June 30, 2008. Interest paid on these instruments was
recorded as interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income. During the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2008, HUSI recorded in other revenue, again of $7 million and a gain of $63 million,
respectively, resulting from changes in the fair value of these instruments. The credit risk of HUSI accounted for an
increase of $57 million and a decrease of $80 million in the fair value of the debt issuances for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2008, respectively. The credit risk effect was partially offset by a decrease of $64 million
and an increase of $17 million in change in fair value attributable to changes in the interest rate benchmark for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively.

Hybrid Instruments

HUSI adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments’ (SFAS 155), effective January 1, 2006. HUSI elected to measure all structured notes and structured
deposits which contain embedded derivatives and were issued after January 1, 2006 at fair value. Such election has
eliminated the differences in measurement attributes between IFRSs and U.S. GAAP. SFAS 159 has incorporated
accounting and disclosure requirements similar to SFAS 155 and because SFAS 159 has a broader application than
SFAS 155, HUSI decided to elect the fair value option available under SFAS 159 to al hybrid financial instruments
issued after January 1, 2008. Consequently, there was no cumulative effect adjustment for thisitem reflected in the
preceding table.

As of June 30, 2008, the structured deposits for which HUSI elected fair value treatment under SFAS 155 or SFAS
159 had an aggregate fair value of $2,053 million and an aggregate unpaid principal of $2,115 million. HUSI also
recorded an aggregate fair value of $2,044 million and an aggregate unpaid principal of $2,062 million for the
structured notes that were chosen for the fair value option as of June 30, 2008. The structured deposits for which the
fair value option was elected were classified as interest bearing deposits in domestic offices in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet while the structured notes elected for the fair value option were classified in long-term debt. Interest
paid was recorded as interest expense. During the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008, HUSI
recorded in other revenue a gain of $62 million and $134 million, respectively, as aresult of remeasuring structured
deposits and structured notes at fair value. Changesin HUSI's credit risk accounted for a$9 million increase and a
$27 million decrease in the fair value of the hybrid instruments for the three month and six month periods ended
June 30, 2008.
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Difference Between Aggregate Fair Value and Aggregate Unpaid Principal Balances

The following table summarizes the differences between the aggregate fair value and the aggregate unpaid balances
of loans, interest bearing deposits in domestic offices and long-term debt instruments for which HUSI elected the
fair value option as of June 30, 2008.

June 30, 2008

Fair Value Above

Aggregate Unpaid Fair (Below) Unpaid
Principal Balance Value Principal Balance
(in millions)
Loans elected for the fair value option ... $ 2,123 $ 1,901 $ (222
Interest bearing depositsin domestic offices elected for the fair
VAU OPLION (L)..eurvevieeeriieeriereteisset ettt s s es $ 2,115 $ 2,053 $ (62)
Long-term debt
OWN AEDE ISSUBNCES ...ttt se e s $ 1,750 $ 1,538 $ (212)
S 0o 0= [ o) (Y () R 2,062 2,044 (18)
Total long-term debt elected for the fair value option ............c.c.... $ 3,812 $ 3,582 $ (230)

(1) Includes structured deposits and structured notes elected for fair value treatment pursuant to SFAS 155.
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Note 17. Business Segments

HUSI hasfive distinct segmentsthat it utilizes for management reporting and analysis purposes, which are generally
based upon customer groupings, as well as products and services offered. There have been no changesin the basis
of segmentation or measurement of segment profits as compared with the presentation in the 2007 Form 10-K.

HUSI reports results to HSBC in accordance with its reporting basis, IFRSs. Segment results are presented on an
IFRSs basis (a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure) as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are
evaluated, and decisions about all ocating resources such as employees are made almost exclusively on an IFRSs
basis. However, HUSI continues to monitor capital adequacy, establish dividend policy, and report to regulatory
agencieson aU.S. GAAP basis.

Further information related to the below financial results are presented in Item 2, “Management’ s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A)” of this Form 10-Q under the caption “ Segment
Results’.

Reconciliation of IFRSs basis segment results to the U.S. GAAP consolidated totals are as follows:

| FRSs Consolidated Amounts (4) (5) U.S. GAAP
Global Banking I nter segmental IFRSs IFRSs  Consolidated
PFS CF CMB and Markets PB Other Revenue Total Adjustments  Reclassifications Totals
(in millions)
Three months ended
June 30, 2008
Net interest
income (10s) (1) ... $ 237 $ 305 $ 19 $ 194 $ a7 $ (5 $ 55 % 99 3 (4) $ 175 $ 1090
Other operating
income (loss) (Total
other revenues) ....... 74 69 71 (73) 47 (84) 55 159 37 (42 154
Total revenues (10ss) . 311 374 267 121 94 (89) - 1,078 33 133 1,244
Loan impairment
charges (Provision
for credit losses) (3) 186 381 60 15 4 - - 646 2 (42) 606
125 7 207 106 90 (89) - 432 31 175 638
Operating expenses
(Total cost and
expenses) (2) .......... 323 5 147 203 75 - - 753 2 175 930
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense.. (198) (12) 60 97) 15 (89) - (321 29 - (292)
Income tax expense
(G = 110 R (75) (5 24 (40) 6 (35) - (125) 7 - (118)
Netincome (loss) ... $__ (123)  $ "D 8 36 $ 617 8 9 $_ (549 % - $ (199 $ 22 $ - $ (174)
Balances at end of
period:
Total assets ..... $ 33536 $19,856 $ 19,566 $ 184,679 $ 5949 $ 392 $ - $ 263,978 $  (77,255) $ (4,927) $ 181,79
Total loans .. 26,870 19,263 17,201 33,617 4,970 - - 102,011 904 (12,329) 90,586
Goodwill ... 924 - 368 497 326 - - 2,115 586 - 2,701
Total deposits .. 43,972 36 19,219 32,649 12,387 2 - 108,265 (1,178) 6,823 113,910
Three months ended
June 30, 2007
Net interest
income (loss) (1) ... $ 274 $ 210 $ 202 $ 141 $ 50 $ 3 s 97 % 677 $ - $ 130 $ 807
Other operating
income (loss) (Total
other revenues) ........ 113 59 66 321 71 (66) 197 761 19 3 7
Total revenues (10ss).. 387 269 268 462 121 (69) - 1,438 19 127 1,584
Loan impairment
charges (Provision
for credit losses) (3) 25 214 19 (5) 5 - - 258 1 5 264
362 55 249 467 116 (69) - 1,180 18 122 1,320
Operating expenses
(Total cost and
expenses) (2) .......... 319 9 142 198 86 1 - 755 1 122 878
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense.. 43 46 107 269 30 (70) - 425 17 - 442
Income tax expense
(DENEfit) ..ovvvrrrrneens 18 16 40 9% 11 (30) - 151 1 - 152
Net income (l0ss)....... $ 25 $ 30 $ 67 $ 173 $ 19 $ 40 $ - $ 274 $ 16 $ - $ 290
Balances at end of
period:
Total assets ..... $ 36,742 $21,344 $ 19,126 $ 132,212 $ 5449 $ 411 $ - $ 215284 $  (43109) $ - $ 172,175
Total loans .. 32,044 20,344 17,207 22,042 4,624 - - 96,261 347 (9,199 87,409
Goodwill ... 924 - 368 497 337 - - 2,126 590 - 2,716
Total deposits .. 41,473 42 17,133 34,198 10,241 - - 103,087 3,379 333 106,799
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| FRSs Consolidated Amounts (4) (5 U.S. GAAP
Global Banking I nter segmental IFRSs IFRSs  Consolidated
PFS CF CMB and Markets PB Other Revenue Total Adjustments _ Reclassifications Totals
(in millions)
Six months ended
June 30, 2008
Net interest
income (loss) (1) ..... $ 484 $ 599 $ 380 $ 316 $ 96 $ B % (161 $ 1711 $ ) $ 349 $ 2,051
Other operating
income (loss) (Total
other revenues) ....... 300 162 142 (790) 90 80 161 145 36 (108) 73
Total revenues (l0ss).. 784 761 522 (474) 186 7 - 1,856 27 241 2,124
Loan impairment
charges (Provision
for credit losses) (3) 245 749 107 57 1 - 1,159 1) (54) 1,104
539 12 415 (531) 185 7 697 28 295 1,020
Operating expenses
(Total cost and
expenses) (2) .......... 603 22 291 406 136 1,458 1 295 1,754
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense.. (64) (10) 124 (937) 49 77 (761) 27 (734)
Income tax expense
(benefit) .....cooceunen (24) 4 49 (358) 19 29 (289) 7 (282)
Netincome (loss) ...  $ 40 $_ (6 % 75 $_ (579 $ 30 $_ 48 $ $ (472 % 20 $ $ (452)
Six months ended
June 30, 2007
Net interest
income (loss) (1) ..... $ 560 $ 409 $ 398 $ 138 $ 100 $ @4 s 329 $ 1,272 $ 3) $ 327 $ 1,596
Other operating
income (loss) (Total
other revenues) ....... 263 107 128 575 144 (61) 329 1,485 5 (79) 1,411
Total revenues (10ss) . 823 516 526 713 244 (65) - 2,757 2 248 3,007
Loan impairment
charges (Provision
for credit losses) (3) 29 388 37 (10) 12 - 456 5 8 469
794 128 489 723 232 (65) 2,301 ©)] 240 2,538
Operating expenses
(Total cost and
expenses) (2) ... 611 17 282 387 168 2 1,467 14 240 1,721
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense.. 183 111 207 336 64 67 834 17) 817
Income tax expense
(A1 R 56 39 65 114 20 (29) 265 (12) 253
Netincome(loss) ... $ 127 $ 72 $ 142 $ 22 % 4 $ (3 $ $ 569 $ (5) $ $ 564

(1) Netinterestincome of each segment represents the difference between actual interest earned on assets and interest paid on liabilities of the
segment adjusted for afunding charge or credit. Segments are charged a cost to fund assets (e.g. customer loans) and receive a funding
credit for funds provided (e.g. customer deposits) based on equivalent market rates.

(2) Expensesfor the segments include fully apportioned corporate overhead expenses.

(3) Theprovision assigned to the segments is based on the segments’ net charge offs and the change in allowance for credit losses.

(4) IFRS adjustments consist of the accounting differences between IFRSs and U.S. GAAP, which are more fully described below.

(5) Representsdifferencesin financia statement presentation between IFRSs and U.S. GAAP.

See “Basis of Reporting” in Item 7, “Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in HUSI’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 for a more complete
discussion of differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. Further discussion of the differences between IFRSs and
U.S. GAAP are presented in Item 2, “Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financia Condition and Results of
Operations” of this Form 10-Q under the caption “Basis of Reporting”. A summary of the significant differences
between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs as they impact HUSI’ s results are presented bel ow.

Net interest income

Deferred loan origination costs and fees — Certain loan fees and incremental direct loan origination costs, including
direct salaries but excluding overhead costs, are deferred and amortized to earnings over the life of the loan under
IFRSs. Certain loan fees and direct incremental loan origination costs, including an apportionment of overhead in
addition to direct salaries, are deferred and amortized to earnings under U.S. GAAP.

Loan origination cost deferrals under |FRSs are more stringent and result in lower costs being deferred than
permitted under U.S. GAAP. In addition, all deferred loan origination fees, costs and loan premiums must be
recognized based on the expected life of the receivables under |FRSs as part of the effective interest calculation
while under U.S. GAAP they may be recognized on either a contractual or expected life basis.
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Under IFRSs, net interest income includes the interest element for derivatives which corresponds to debt designated
at fair value. For U.S. GAAP, thisisincluded in gain (loss) on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives
which is a component of other revenues.

Other operating income (Total other revenues)

Derivatives — Effective January 1, 2008, U.S. GAAP removed the observability requirement of valuation inputsto
recognize the difference between transaction price and fair value as Day 1 profit and loss impacts and permits
recognition upfront in the Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income. Under IFRSs, recognition is permissible only
if the inputs used in calculating fair value are based on observable inputs. If the inputs are not observable, profit and
lossisdeferred and is recognized (1) over the period of contract, (2) when the data becomes observable, or (3) when
the contract is settled. This causes the net income under U.S. GAAP to be higher than under IFRSs.

Unquoted equity securities— Under IFRSs, equity securities which are not quoted on a recognized exchange
(MasterCard Class B shares and Visa Class B shares), but for which fair value can be reliably measured, are required
to be measured at fair value. Securities measured at fair value under IFRSs are classified as either available for sale
securities, with changes in fair value recognized in shareholders’ equity, or as trading securities, with changesin fair
value recognized inincome. Under U.S. GAAP, equity securities that are not quoted on arecognized exchange, are
not considered to have areadily determinable fair value and are required to be measured at cost, less any provisions
for known impairment, in other assets. In the second quarter of 2008, HUSI converted a portfolio of MasterCard B
sharesto MasterCard A shares and, under U.S. GAAP, re-classified these securities to the trading portfolio.

Fair value option — Reflects the impact of applying the fair value option under IFRSs to certain debt instruments
issued, and includes an adjustment of the initial valuation of the debt instruments. Prior to January 1, 2008, the debt
was accounted for at amortized cost under U.S. GAAP. This difference was eliminated upon the adoption of fair
value option under U.S. GAAP on January 1, 2008.

Loan impairment charges (Provision for credit 10sses)

No asset for future recoveries arising from written-off assets was recognized in the balance sheet under |FRSs prior
to January 1, 2005. The establishment of the recovery asset under |FRSs associated with the private label credit card
portfolio purchased from HSBC Finance Corporation results in higher earnings under IFRSs than under U.S. GAAP.
Subsequent recoveries are credited to earnings under U.S. GAAP, but are adjusted against the recovery asset under
IFRSs, resulting in lower earnings under IFRSs. Net interest income is higher under IFRSs than under U.S. GAAP
due to the imputed interest on the recovery asset.

Operating expenses (Total costs and expenses)

Pension costs — Operating expenses under U.S. GAAP is higher than under IFRSs as a result of the amortization of
the amount by which actuarial losses exceed gains beyond the 10 percent “corridor”.

Assets

Derivatives— Under U.S. GAAP, derivative receivables and payables with the same counterparty may be reported
net in the balance sheet when there is an executed International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (ISDA)
Master Netting Arrangement. In addition, under U.S. GAAP, fair value amounts recognized for the obligation to
return cash collateral received or the right to reclaim cash collateral paid are offset against the fair value of
derivative instruments. Under IFRSs, these agreements do not necessarily meet the requirements for offset, and
therefore such derivative receivables and payables are presented gross on the balance sheet.
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Property — Under IFRSs, the value of property held for own use reflects revaluation surpluses recorded prior to
January 1, 2004. Consequently, the values of tangible fixed assets and shareholders’ equity are lower under U.S.
GAAP than under IFRSs. Thereis a correspondingly lower depreciation charge and higher net income as well as
higher gains (or smaller losses) on the disposal of fixed assets under U.S. GAAP. For investment properties, net
income under U.S. GAAP does not reflect the unrealized gain or loss recorded under |FRSs for the period.

Securities— Under IFRS, securities include HSBC shares held for stock plans at fair value.

Note 18. New Accounting Pronouncements

HUSI adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements’ (SFAS 157),
effective January 1, 2008. The new standard defines fair value, provides aframework for measuring fair value and
enhances the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. HUSI recorded an after-tax cumul ative-effect
adjustment of approximately $36 million as an increase to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1,
2008. Refer to Note 15, “Fair Value Measurements’ of the consolidated financial statements for further details.

HUSI adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Vaue Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159), effective January 1, 2008. SFAS 159 provides afair value option (FVO) that
allows HUSI to irrevocably elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for most financial
assets and liabilities on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Asaresult of the adoption of SFAS 159, HUSI recorded
an after-tax cumulative-effect adjustment of approximately $77 million as an increase to the opening balance of
retained earnings as of January 1, 2008. Refer to Note 16, “Fair Value Option” of the consolidated financial
statements for further details.

In November 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 109, “Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair
Vaue Through Earnings’ (SAB 109), which supersedes SAB 105, “ Application of Accounting Principlesto Loan
Commitments’ (SAB 105). SAB 109 revises the views expressed by the staff in SAB 105 to specify that the
expected net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of aloan should be included in the measurement of
written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings. SAB 109 is effective for derivative
loan commitmentsissued or modified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15, 2007. The adoption of SAB
109 did not have a material impact on the HUSI consolidated financia statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (Revised), “Business
Combinations” (SFAS 141 (R)) which replaces Statement 141. The new guidance will result in, among other things,
more assets and liabilities to be recognized and measured at fair value at the acquisition date; liabilities related to
contingent consideration to be measured at fair value in subsequent periods with changesin fair value recorded in
earnings; and the acquirer is required to expense all acquisition-related transaction costs. SFAS 141(R) also changes
the recognition and measurement criteriafor contingencies and bargain purchases. SFAS 141 (R) is effective for
business combinations with an acquisition date in fiscal year 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, “Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements (SFAS 160)”. SFAS 160 requires non-controlling interestsin
subsidiariesinitially to be measured at fair value and classified as a component of equity. Gains and losses from the
sales of non-controlling interests are not recognized but are accounted for as capital transactions. However, if asae
of non-controlling interest results in the deconsolidation of asubsidiary, again or lossis recognized for the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of interest sold and anew fair value basisis
established for any remaining interest held. The statement requires disclosure of the amounts of consolidated net
income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest on the face of the Consolidated Statement of
(Loss) Income. SFAS 160 also required expanded disclosures that identify and distinguish between parent and
non-controlling interests. SFAS 160 should be applied prospectively and is effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after December 15, 2008. Early adoptionis prohibited. HUSI is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS 160 will
have on its financial position or results of operations.
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In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 140-3, “ Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assetsand
Repurchase Financing Transactions’. Under the new guidance, the initial transfer of afinancial asset and
subsequent repurchase financing involving the same asset is presumptively to be linked and are considered part of
the same arrangement under SFAS 140. Theinitia transfer and subsequent financing transaction will be considered
separate transactions under SFAS 140 if certain conditions are met. FSP SFAS 140-3 is effective for new
transactions entered into in fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited. HUSI is
currently evaluating the impact of FSP SFAS 140-3 on its financial position and results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 161, “ Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities-an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133”. This statement
requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’ s derivative and hedging activities and attempts to improve
transparency in financial reporting. This statement requires entities to provide enhanced disclosures about (&) how
and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are
accounted for under Statement 133 and its related interpretations, () how derivative instruments and related hedged
items affect an entity’ s financial position, financia performance, and cash flows and (d) credit-risk related
contingent features in derivative agreements. It is effective prospectively for financial statements issued for fiscal
years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. Early application is encouraged. HUS! is currently
evaluating the changes required by this statement to its disclosure on its derivative instruments and hedging
activities.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 162, “ The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles’ (SFAS 162). The new standard identifies the sources of accounting principles and
the framework for applying those principles to financial statementsin accordance with U.S. GAAP. The statement
supersedes Statement on Auditing Standards No. 69, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles’. The standard is not intended to cause significant changes to financial reports.
This statement shall be effective 60 days following the SEC’ s approval of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (PCAOB) amendments to AU Section 411, “ The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles’. The adoption of SFAS 162 will not have any material impact on the
HUSI consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 163 “ Accounting for Financial
Guarantee Insurance Contracts — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 60". This statement applies to financial
guarantee insurance (and reinsurance) contracts issued by enterprises that are included within the scope of
paragraph 6 of Statement 60 and that are not accounted for as derivative instruments. It clarifies how Statement 60
appliesto financia guarantee insurance contracts, including the recognition and measurement of premium revenue
and claim liabilities. This statement requires expanded disclosures about financial guarantee insurance contracts.
SFAS 163 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and all
interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of SFAS 163 will not have any material impact on the HUS
consolidated financial statements.

36



ltem 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations (MD&A)

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, notes and tables included elsewhere in this Form
10-Q and with HUSI’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (the “2007 Form
10-K”). MD&A may contain certain statements that may be forward-looking in nature within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, HUSI may make or approve certain statementsin
future filings with the SEC, in pressreleases, or oral or written presentations by representatives of HUS| that are not
statements of historical fact and may also constitute forward-looking statements. Words such as*“may”, “will”,
“should”, “would”, “could”, “intend”, “believe’, “expect”, “estimate”, “target”, “plan”, “anticipate”, “goa” and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but should not be considered as the only
means through which these statements may be made. These matters or statements will relate to HUSI’ s future
financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives, performance or business developments and will involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause HUSI' s actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from that which was expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are based on HUSI' s current views and assumptions and speak only as of
the date they are made. HUSI undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect

subsequent circumstances or events.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

L oss before income taxes was $292 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2008 and $734 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2008. A net loss of $174 million for the second quarter and $452 million for thefirst half of 2008
represents a decrease of $464 million and $1,016 million, respectively, as compared to the net income reported in
the corresponding 2007 periods. Adverse conditions, particularly in the U.S. mortgage and credit markets, led to
substantial declinesin trading revenue and other income including higher valuation adjustments on mortgage loans
held for sale and increases in credit |oss provisions for consumer assets during the second quarter and first half of
2008 as compared to the corresponding 2007 periods. These losses were partially offset by income from higher net
interest margin.

Revenues were $154 million and $73 million for the second quarter and first half of 2008, a decrease of $623
million and $1,338 million, respectively, as compared to the same 2007 periods. The decrease in revenues were
primarily led by declinesin trading revenues and negative val uation adjustments on assets held for sale as continued
market disruptions resulted in significantly wider credit spreads and severely diminished liquidity. These market
conditions trandated into substantial write downsin the carrying value of several asset classes, including asset
backed securities, sub-prime residential mortgage loans held for sale and credit derivative products, including
derivative contracts with monoline insurance companies. The magnitude of these write-downs slowed in the second
guarter of 2008 compared to the first quarter of 2008, asillustrated in the table below. These reductionsto revenue
were partially offset by increased fees from the credit card receivable portfolios, increased cash and investment
management revenues, increased trading revenue from the foreign exchange desk as well as the sale of MasterCard
shares and gains on the related economic hedge which increased revenues $134 million and, for the six month
period, again on the sale of aportion of HUSI' sinvestment in Visa Class B shares which increased revenues $83
million. HUSI also realized $48 million during the second quarter of 2008 related to declinesin the fair value of
financial instruments and the related derivative contracts for which fair value option was elected, compared with
increases of $9 million in the year-to-date period.
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A summary of the significant valuation adjustments associated with these market disruptions which contributed to
the decrease in revenues for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008 are summarized in the following
table.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008

Loss (Gain) (in millions)
Insurance monoline structured credit ProduCES...........coccincic e $ 314 $ 802
Other structured Credit PrOGUCTS...........cuviececcieie bbb 38 261
Mortgage 10ans held fOr SAlE.........cccciiii s 127 243
Leverage acquisition finance loans held for Sale.........oovicccni e (38) 103
TOLAl ottt $ 441 $ 1,409

Provisions for credit losses increased $342 million in the second quarter and $635 million in the first half of 2008 as
compared to the same periods in 2007, mainly due to growing delinquencies and charge offs within the credit card
portfolio, higher delinquency and credit loss estimates related to home equity lines of credit, home equity loans and
prime residential mortgage loans, which increased markedly in the second quarter of 2008 as conditionsin the
housing markets have continued to deteriorate, and specific write downs on both loans and loan commitments in the
commercia loan portfolio.

Net interest income increased for both the second quarter and first half of 2008 as compared to the corresponding
periods in 2007, primarily as aresult of higher balance sheet management income due in large part to positions
taken in expectation of decreased funding rates. The reduction of the amortization of private label credit card
premiums paid also resulted in increased net interest income. These increases were partialy offset by narrowing of
interest rate spreads on core banking products primarily due to competitive pressures as customers migrated to
higher yielding deposit products. Interest income also decreased due to the runoff of the residential mortgage and
other consumer loan portfolios, and for the second quarter of 2008, the sale of $4 billion of residential mortgage
loansin May 2008.

Operating expenses, which includes provisions for off balance sheet credit exposures, increased in both periods, as
compared with the corresponding periodsin 2007, primarily due to an increase in reserves related to off balance
sheet credit exposures, including letters of credit, unused commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees.
Thiswas partially offset by decreased staff costs from alower number of employees including global resourcing
initiatives undertaken by management and, for the six month period, reductions to the litigation accrual related to
Visa.
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I ncome Before I ncome Tax Expense - Significant Trends

Income before income tax expense, and various trends and activity affecting operations, are summarized in the
following table.

Three months Six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
(in millions)
Income before income tax expense for 2007 ... $ 442 $ 817
Increase (decrease) in income before income tax expense attributable to:
Balance sheet management aCtiVIties (1) .....ocoveeeeeeirnrreeeieei e 147 105
Trading related activities (2) .........c.c....... (354) (1,158)
Private label receivable portfolio (3) ... 103 243
Loansheld for sale (4) ... (62) (169)
Residential mortgage banking related reVenUE (5)........cvureririeeiecieieirsrrneeeieeiese s (31 (25)
Gain on instruments at fair value and related derivatives (6) ... (49) 9
SecUrities (10SS) GaIN, NMEL (7) .c.everrriiririieieieiet ettt (50) 13
Provision for credit 10SSeS (8) .......ccuviiiiiniciiicii (342 (635)
AL OtNEN CHVILY .ot (96) 66
(734) (1,551)
Loss before income tax benefit for 2008...........coverrrncreeeee e $ (292 $ (734)
(1) Balance sheet management activities are comprised primarily of net interest income and, to alesser extent, gains on sales of investments

@
®
4
®)
(6)
@
®

and trading revenues, resulting from management of interest rate risk associated with the repricing characteristics of balance sheet assets
and liabilities. Refer to commentary regarding Global Banking and Markets net interest income, trading revenues, and the Global Banking
and Markets business segment beginning on page 63 of this Form 10-Q, respectively.

Refer to commentary regarding trading (loss) revenue beginning on page 51 of this Form 10-Q.

Refer to commentary regarding the CF business segment beginning on page 60 of this Form 10-Q.

Refer to commentary regarding loans held for sale beginning on page 10 of this Form 10-Q.

Refer to commentary regarding residential mortgage banking revenue beginning on page 53 of this Form 10-Q.

Refer to commentary regarding fair value option and fair value measurement beginning on page 75 of this Form 10-Q.
Refer to commentary regarding Securities (Ioss) gain, net beginning on page 52 of this Form 10-Q.

Refer to commentary regarding provision for credit |osses beginning on page 48 of this Form 10-Q.
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Selected Financial Data

The following tables present a summary of selected financial information.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
(L oss) income statement:
NEt INtEreSt INCOME ...t $ 1,090 807 2,051 $ 1,596
Provision for credit 10SSeS ... (606) (264) (1,104) (469)
Total Other FeVENUES ........ccveeeeeieeeceeeeeceeese e 154 77 73 1,411
Total operating EXPENSES ........cvvrevereceemeieeernerererereseeseieens (930 (878) (1,754) (1,721)
(Loss) income before income tax eXpense .........coveeenene (292) 442 (734) 817
Income tax benefit (EXPeNnSe) ........cccoovrcerenrneeiecenenen 118 (152) 282 (253)
Net (10SS) INCOME ......voveiiirieieeereree e $ (174) 290 (452) $ 564
Balances at period end:
Loans, net of alOWaNCe ..........ccceveveeereiierieecceseeseeine $ 88,790 86,507
TOtal SSELS ...vvvireeeccie e 181,796 172,175
Total tangible 8SSELS .......cccceireriririeeerrere s 179,058 169,416
Total AEPOSIES ..o 113,910 106,799
Common shareholder’ s equity ..........cocveicccceiciesninene, 10,465 10,459
Tangible common shareholder’s equity ...........cocovevieeuneee 8,395 8,081
Total shareholders’ equity .........c.ccoeecrcennnrierecceees 12,030 12,149
Selected financial ratios:
Total shareholders’ equity to total assets, at period end ... 662 % 706 %
Tangible common shareholder’ s equity to total
tangible assets, at period end .........cccocoveieinnnnncce 469 % 477 %
Rate of return on average (1):
TOtal @SSELS ..t (399 % 69 % (490 % 69 %
Total common shareholder’s equity (7.54) 10.14 (9.88) 9.85
Net interest margin to average (1):
Earning assets ... 293 % 226 % 273 % 228 %
TOtAl @SSELS ..vveueeiee e 2.45 1.94 2.25 1.96
Average total shareholders’ equity to average total
L2 oc = 1] (1) SO 656 % 726 % 629 % 737 %
Efficiency ratio (1) ....ccccoeervnneneesieieieesseseseseeeieeneneens 74.76 55.45 82.57 57.21

(1) Selected financial ratios are defined in the Glossary of Terms beginning on page 91 of HUSI's 2007 Form 10-K.

Significant trends and transactions that impacted pre-tax net income for the three month and six month periods

ending June 30, 2008 and 2007 are summarized on page 39 of this Form 10-Q.
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BASIS OF REPORTING

HUSI’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States (U.S. GAAP). Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the
current year presentation.

International Financial Reporting Standards (I FRSS)

Because HSBC reports results in accordance with IFRSs and |FRSs are used in measuring and rewarding
performance of employees, HUSI management also separately monitors net income under IFRSs (anon-U.S. GAAP
financial measurement). The following table reconciles HUSI’ s net income on aU.S. GAAP basis to net income on
an IFRSsbasis.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
Net (loss) income — U.S. GAAPBaSIS .....ccccveerrerirerrenennn, $ 174 $ 290 $ 452 $ 564
Adjustments, net of tax:
Unquoted equity SECUILIES .........coccveiiciieiiiciiiciiinns (35) 39 (30) 44
Fair valug Option ......cccccevvevereererieeseee s - (37) - (36)
DErVALIVES ... 1 - 5 1
Deferred loan origination costsand fees ................... 4 2 5 10
Loan impairment .........coccceeennnneniecceeeeeseees - 1) 2) 1)
PIOPEIY .o 2 - 5 8
PENSION COSES ...t - 2 2 3
OtNEN . 6 (21) (5) (24
Total adjustments, net of taX .........cccoeeeerceeeniniecccee (22) (16) (20) 5
Net (loss) income — IFRSSDasiS .....c.oceeveveerenerereeeereneens $ (196) $ 274 $ (472 $ 569

A summary of the significant differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs as they impact HUSI’ sresults are
presented below:

Unquoted equity securities— Under IFRSs, equity securities which are not quoted on arecognized exchange
(MasterCard Class B shares & VisaClass B shares), but for which fair value can be reliably measured, are required
to be measured at fair value. Securities measured at fair value under IFRSs are classified as either available for sale
securities, with changesin fair value recognized in shareholders’ equity, or as trading securities, with changesin fair
value recognized inincome. Under U.S. GAAP, equity securities that are not quoted on arecognized exchange, are
not considered to have areadily determinable fair value and are required to be measured at cost, less any provisions
for known impairment, in other assets. In the second quarter of 2008, HUSI converted a portfolio of MasterCard B
Sharesto MasterCard A Shares which resulted in higher income under U.S. GAAP.

Fair value option — Reflects the impact of applying the fair value option under IFRSs to certain debt instruments
issued, and includes an adjustment of theinitial valuation of the debt instruments. Prior to January 1, 2008, the debt
was accounted for at amortized cost under U.S. GAAP. This difference was eliminated upon the adoption of fair
value option under U.S. GAAP on January 1, 2008. Also under IFRSs, net interest income includes the interest
element for derivatives which corresponds to debt designated at fair value. For U.S. GAAP, thisisincluded in the
gain (loss) on instruments at fair value and related derivatives, which is a component of other revenues.

Derivatives — Effective January 1, 2008, U.S. GAAP removed the observability requirement of valuation inputsto
recognize the difference between transaction price and fair value as Day 1 profit and loss impacts and permits
recognition upfront in the Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income. Under IFRSs, recognition is permissible only
if the inputs used in calculating fair value are based on observable inputs. If the inputs are not observable, profit and
lossisdeferred and is recognized 1) over the period of contract, 2) when the data becomes observable, or 3) when
the contract is settled. In the current period this has caused the net income under U.S. GAAP to be higher than
under IFRSs.
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Deferred loan origination costs and fees— Under IFRSs, |oan origination costs deferrals are more stringent and
result in lower costs being deferred than permitted under U.S. GAAP. In addition, al deferred loan origination fees,
costs and loan premiums must be recognized based on the expected life of the receivables under |FRSs as part of the
effective interest calculation while under U.S. GAAP they may be recognized on either a contractual or expected life
basis.

Loan impairment — The establishment of the recovery asset under IFRSs associated with the private label credit
card portfolio purchased from HSBC Finance Corporation resultsin higher earnings under IFRSs than under U.S.
GAAP. Subsequent recoveries are credited to earnings under U.S. GAAP, but are adjusted against the recovery
asset under IFRSs, resulting in lower earnings under IFRSs. Net interest income is higher under IFRSs than under
U.S. GAAP due to the imputed interest on the recovery asset.

Property — Under IFRSs, the value of property held for own use reflects revaluation surpluses recorded prior to
January 1, 2004. Consequently, the values of tangible fixed assets and shareholders’ equity are lower under U.S.
GAAP than under IFRSs. Thereis acorrespondingly lower depreciation charge and higher net income as well as
higher gains (or smaller losses) on the disposal of fixed assets under U.S. GAAP. For investment properties, net
income under U.S. GAAP does not reflect the unrealized gain or loss recorded under |FRSs for the period.

Pension costs— Net income under U.S. GAAP islower than under IFRSs as aresult of the amortization of the
amount by which actuarial |osses exceed gains beyond the 10 percent “corridor”.

Other — Other includes the net impact of certain adjustments which represent differences between U.S. GAAP and
IFRSs, which were not individually material for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007.
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BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

HUSI utilizes borrowings from various sources to fund balance sheet growth, to meet cash and capital needs, and to
fund investments in subsidiaries. Balance sheet totals at June 30, 2008, and movements in comparison with prior
periods, are summarized in the following table.

Increase (Decr ease) from

June 30, December 31, 2007 June 30, 2007
2008 Amount % Amount %
($in millions)
Period end assets:
Short-term investments ... 20,535 $ (1.450) (@) $  (4,870) (29)
Loans, net .......ccccoeevereeenee . 88,790 (5,622) (6) 2,283 3
Trading @SSEtS ......ocoveeureeeereirenrenieeeenen, 33,940 (3,096) (8) 6,697 25
Securities available for sale and
securities held to maturity .........ccoceeeeenn, 24,915 2,062 9 2,133 9
Other @SSELS ....cceeueeieieieieirierereseeeee e, 13,616 1,529 13 3,378 33
$ 181,79 $ (6577 3) $ 9,621 6
Funding sources:
Total dEPOSItS ....ovveeeeieieieresrereeeeae, $ 113910 $  (2,260) 2) $ 7,111 7
Trading liabilities .....cocoveeeeeieeeee, 14,063 (2,190) (13) (1,261) 8)
Short-term borrowings . . 8,997 (2,835) (24) 3,567 66
All other liabilities ......c.cocoeerienrnreennns 6,380 1,767 38 2,682 73
Long-term debt .......ccoceeveunirnirirnreeenes 26,416 (1,852) @ (2,359) 8)
Shareholders’ equity ........cccccovvicivinnne, 12,030 793 7 (119) @
$ 181,796 $ (6,577) 3) $ 9,621 6

Short-Term I nvestments

Short-term investments include cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks, Federal funds sold
and securities purchased under resale agreements. These investments are typically highly liquid and may fluctuate
considerably between reporting periods.

Loans, Net

L oan balances at June 30, 2008, and movements in comparison with prior periods, are summarized in the following
table.

Increase (Decrease) from

June 30, December 31, 2007 June 30, 2007
2008 Amount % Amount %
($in millions)
Total commercia 10ans .......ccccceeeeveeeerceerennns $ 40,152 $ 1,352 3 $ 10574 36
Consumer loans:
Residential mortgages ..........ccccoevvrenienee. 30,129 (5,251) (15) (7,650) (20)
Credit card receivables:
Private |8Del .....ooovvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeerreeeeee 16,187 (1,240) 7 81 1
MasterCard/Visa .....c.ceveeeeeererereeennnns 2,064 76 4 535 35
Other consumer . 2,054 177) (8) (363) (15)
Total consumer 10ans .........cocvveveeerececnnn, 50,434 (6,592) (12) (7,397) (13)
TOt 08NS ...oooooeeveeeeeeereeeeeeeeveeeeeese e 90,586 (5,240) (5) 3177 4
Allowance for credit losses .... . 1,796 382 27 894 99
LOBNS, NEL ...coorveereveeeeeeeessee e $ 88790 $ (5622 (6) $ 2283 3
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Increased commercial loan balances since December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2007 were partly due to expansion of
middle market activities, aswell as an increase in previously unfunded commitments. Additionally, HUSI
originates commercial loansin connection with its participation in a number of leveraged acquisition finance
syndicates. A majority of these loans were originated with the intent of selling them to third parties and were
therefore classified as held for sale at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

Residential mortgage loans have decreased since December 31, 2007, primarily as aresult of the sale of
approximately $4 billion of prime Adjustable Rate Mortgages (ARM) in May 2008. Additionally, as aresult of
balance sheet initiatives to reduce prepayment risk and improve HBUS' s structural liquidity, HUSI sells a majority
of itsresidential loan originations through the secondary markets and has allowed the existing loan portfolio to run
off, resulting in reductions in loan balances throughout 2007 and the first six months of 2008. Other consumer loans
have decreased primarily due to the discontinuation of originations of indirect auto financing loans.

Higher average receivable balances, largely attributable to the co-brand MasterCard and Visa portfolio, have
resulted in higher credit card receivable balances from June 30, 2007. Lower balances from December 31, 2007 are
primarily due to normal seasonal run-off which largely occurred in the first quarter of 2008.

Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities balances at June 30, 2008, and movements in comparison with prior periods, are
summarized in the following table.

Increase (Decrease) from

June 30, December 31, 2007 June 30, 2007
2008 Amount % Amount %
($in millions)
Trading assets:
SECUMTIES (1) ovvreeereereeerreereereerseeee s $ 12,233 $  (1,304) (10) $ (2282 (16)
Precious metals 7,579 (1,209) (14) 4,130 120
Derivatives ..., 14,128 (583) (4) 4,849 52
$ 33,940 $  (3,096) (8 $ 6,697 25
Trading liabilities:
Securities sold, not yet purchased ............ $ 931 $ (513) (36) $  (2,717) (74)
Payables for precious metals .................... 2,255 732 48 323 17
DEriVatiVes .......coovvrenieiecieieeerereees 10,877 (2,409) (18) 1,133 12
$ 14,063 $ (2,190 (13) $  (1,261) (8)

(1) Includes U.S. Treasury securities, securities issued and guaranteed by U.S. Government agencies and U.S. Government sponsored
enterprises, other asset backed securities, corporate bonds and debt securities.

Decreased securities balances from both June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2007 primarily resulted from sales and
write-downs on securities, as spreads have continued to widen and underlying collateral has continued to deteriorate.

Higher derivative balances from June 30, 2007 resulted from increased values on various derivative products
including credit default swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and total return swaps as a result of movementsin
credit spreads and currency curves. The decrease in derivative balances compared to December 31, 2007 is aresult
of lower trading activity and increased negative adjustments on existing derivative contracts which offset increases
in values related to credit default swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and total return swaps.

Higher precious metals balances at June 30, 2008, as compared to June 30, 2007 were due to higher market prices
for various metals, specifically gold and platinum. Balances from December 31, 2007 remained relatively flat due
to higher gold prices being offset by lower metal inventory.



Securities Available for Sale and Securities Held to Maturity

Securities balances increased from December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2007 due to balance sheet management
activities directed towards the deployment of excess funding and interest rate risk management.

Deposits

Deposit balances by major depositor categories at June 30, 2008, and movements in comparison with prior periods,
are summarized in the following table.

I ncr ease (Decr ease) from

June 30, December 31, 2007 June 30, 2007
2008 Amount % Amount %
($in millions)
INAIVIUAIS ... $ 48,287 $ 536 1 $ 1,561 3
Partnerships and corporations 43,427 (233) @) 4,748 12
Domestic and foreign banks ............ccccccvvnenaee 18,693 (1,055) 5) 1,000 6
U.S. Government, states and political
SUDIVISIONS ... 2,714 253 10 691 34
Foreign government and official institutions .... 789 (1,761) (69) (889) (53)
Total dEPOSIES .....cveeeeecieieeiee e $ 113910 $  (2,260) (2) $ 7,111 7
Total core deposits (1) .....ccccevrrrireniecreererennnns $ 66,358 $ 1279 2 $ 4,192 7

(1) HUSI monitors “core deposits’ as a key measure for assessing results of its core banking network. Core deposits generally include all
domestic demand, money market and other savings accounts, as well as time deposits with balances not exceeding $100,000.

HUSI has a growth strategy for its core domestic banking network, which includes building deposits across multiple

geographic markets, channels and customer segments and utilizing multiple delivery systems. This strategy includes

variousinitiatives:

e deployment of new personal and business checking and savings products, with an emphasis on relationship
based products that offer more competitive pricing;

e internet based products offered through the HSBC Direct website, particularly Online Savings accounts. The
Online Savings account was launched in 2005 and has grown to $13.1 billion at June 30, 2008;

e retail branch expansion in existing markets;

e improved delivery systems, including internet, call center and ATM capabilities;

o refined marketing and customer analytics for the affluent customer population; and

. refingd marketing and customer analyticsto drive increased utilization of products and improve customer
retention.

Decreased deposit balances related to domestic and foreign banks, as well as foreign government and official
institutions is primarily due to decreased short term funding rates.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net I nterest Income

An analysis of consolidated average balances and interest rates on a taxable equivalent basisis presented on page 92
of this Form 10-Q. Significant components of HUSI's net interest margin are summarized in the following table.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30

2008 2007 2008 2007
Yield on total earning assets .........cocoveercieieinininennns 529 % 6.18 % 547 % 6.18 %
Rate paid on interest bearing liabilities .................... 2.64 4.43 3.05 4.40
Interest rate Spread ... 2.65 1.75 242 1.78
Benefit from net non-interest earning or paying

FUNAS e .28 51 31 .50

Net interest margin to earning assets (1) .......c.cco.e.. 293 % 226 % 273 % 228 %

(1) Selected financial ratios are defined in the Glossary of Terms beginning on pages 91-92 of HUSI's 2007 Form 10-K.

Significant trends affecting the comparability of 2008 and 2007 net interest income and interest rate spread are
summarized in the following table. Net interest income in the table is presented on a taxable equivalent basis.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
Interest Rate Interest Rate
Amount Spread Amount Spread

($in millions)
Net interest income/interest rate spread from
PrION YA ..cevviiiieiet et $ 815 175 % $ 1,610 178 %

Increase (decrease) in net interest income
associated with:

Trading related activities (1) ......cccoceeviicininnns 74 116
Balance sheet management activities (2) .......... 224 326
Private label and co-brand credit cards ............. 95 195
Residential mortgage banking ..........ccccevevveuenee ©) (13)
DEPOSIES ..o (83) (135)
Other 8CtiVItY .....coeeererirrneccrecesreeees (25) (33)
Net interest income/interest rate spread for %
CUIMTENT YEAI ...t $ 1,097 265 % $ 2,066 242

(1) Refer to commentary regarding trading (loss) revenue, beginning on page 51 of this Form 10-Q.

(2) Represents HUSI's activities to manage interest rate risk associated with the repricing characteristics of balance sheet assets and liabilities.
Interest rate risk, and HUSI’ s approach to manage such risk, are described beginning on page 86 of this Form 10-Q.

Trading Related Activities

Net interest income for trading related activities increased primarily due to decreased funding costs, aswell as an
increase in average trading assets.

Balance Sheet Management Activities

Higher net interest income from bal ance sheet management activities was primarily due to positions taken in
expectation of decreased short term funding rates.
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Private Label and Co-Brand Credit Cards

Higher net interest income on private label and co-brand credit cards for the second quarter and first half of 2008 as
compared to the same 2007 period resulted from:

e restructured pricing on certain card products,
e |lower promotional balances; and
e lower amortization of premiums on the initial purchase, aswell as lower daily premiums.

Residential Mortgage Banking

Lower net interest income from residential mortgage activities primarily resulted from a decrease in the portfolio
due to the sale of approximately $4 billion of prime Adjustable Rate Mortgages (ARM) in May 2008 as well as
overall contraction of the residential mortgage loan portfolio as aresult of a continuing strategy to reduce
prepayment risk and improve structural liquidity. Asaresult, HUSI continues to sell amajority of itsresidential
mortgage loan originations and allow the existing residential mortgage loan portfalio to runoff.

Deposits

Lower net interest income from deposits was primarily due to spread compression on core banking activitiesin the
PFS and CMB business segments. These segments have been affected by falling interest rates, a migration of
customer deposits to higher yielding deposit products such as online savings and a more competitive retail market.

Other Activity

Lower net interest income from other activity isrelated to a decrease in interest income related to interest bearing
deposits with banks and Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements. This was partially
offset by an increase in interest income related to loans held for sale as adverse market conditions have resulted in
loans being held for longer periods.
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Provision for Credit L osses

The provision for credit losses associated with various loan portfolios is summarized in the following table.

Increase
2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
Three months ended June 30:
COMMENCIAl ittt nee e esenes $ 50 $ 32 $ 18 56
Consumer:
Residential Mortgages ...........ooveveieicininnisieecee e 184 10 174 *
Credit card reCaiVabIES .......coveereeeririreerere e 353 204 149 73
Other CONSUMES ......oveiiiciieeierse et 19 18 1 6
TOtal CONSUMES ...ttt b e 556 232 324 140
Total provision for Credit I0SSES ... $ 606 $ 264 $ 342 130
Six months ended June 30:
COMMETCIA ..ottt $ 141 $ 65 $ 76 117
Consumer:
Residential Mortgages ...........cooeriincicinineircsee s 241 24 217 *
Credit card recaiVablES ........ccooueiiieeeeceeee s 684 347 337 97
Other CONSUMES ......oveiiieierieeseise et saens 38 33 5 15
TOtal CONSUMES ...ttt 963 404 559 138
Total provision for Credit I0SSES ... $ 1,104 $ 469 $ 635 135

* Not meaningful.

Provision expense associated with credit card receivables increased $149 million in the second quarter and $337
million in the first six months of 2008 as compared with the corresponding 2007 periods. This primarily resulted
from higher delinquencies and charge offs within the private label credit card portfolio due to higher levels of
personal bankruptcy filings and the impact of aweakening U.S. economy.

Provision expense on residential mortgages increased $174 million in the second quarter and $217 million in the
first six months of 2008 as compared with the corresponding 2007 periods. The increase was attributable to
increased delinquencies and charge offs within the Home Equity Line of Credit (HELOC) and Home Equity Loan
portfolios, which increased markedly in the second quarter of 2008, primarily due to the continued deterioration in
real estate valuesin certain markets. In addition, delinquencies in the prime residential first mortgage |oans have
continued to worsen in the second quarter of 2008, primarily due to continued deterioration in the housing markets.
Also contributing to this increase, to alesser extent, isthe portfolio of higher quality nonconforming residential
mortgage loans which HUSI purchased from HSBC Finance Corporation.

Commercial loan provision expense increased $18 million in the second quarter of 2008 and $76 million in the first
six months of 2008 as compared with the corresponding 2007 periods. Higher provision expense resulted from
genera economic conditions as well as higher specific provisions on middle market portfolios. Genera provisions
on commercial real estate and middle market portfolios also increased as a result of deteriorating economic
conditions.

See “Credit Quality” for additional commentary on the allowance for credit losses associated with HUSI' s various
loan portfolios.
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Other Revenues

Decreased revenue for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008, was mostly driven by reduced
liquidity and higher volatility in the credit and sub-prime markets which led to substantial valuation losses and
trading losses being recorded. Thiswas partially offset by increased credit card fees and trust income.

The components of other revenues are summarized in the following tables.

Increase (Decr ease)
Three months ended June 30 2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
Credit Card fEES ...ouvuiuriirriieceee e $ 211 $ 198 $ 13 7
Other fees and COMMISSIONS .........ceueiririririeeereee e 151 136 15 11
TIUSEINCOITIE ..ottt 36 24 12 50
Trading (0SS) FEVENUES .....c.cueviiririieciicieieires e (116) 312 (428) (137)
Securities (10SS) ain, NEL ........cceirrrricecieee e (34) 16 (50) *
HSBC &ffiliate income:
Fees and COMMISSIONS.......cccuciicc s 27 29 2 (@)
Other affilial€ iINCOME .......ccorireieeeiirireeee e 6 12 (6) (50)
33 41 (8) (20
Residential mortgage banking revenue ...........c.ccccoeennnnnccccecnenne 14 42 (28) (67)
(Loss) gain on instruments at fair value and related derivatives (1).... (48) 1 (49) *
Other (loss) income:
Valuation of loansheld for sale ..., (127) (65) (62) (95)
INSUFANCE ...t 9 6 3 50
Earnings from equity investments 19 24 (5) (21)
MiSCEl|anEOUS INCOME .....oveiiieiciiieei e 6 42 (36) (86)
(93) 7 (100) *
Total OthEr FEVENUES .......cvieeiiiiiecereee e $ 154 $ 777 $ 623 (80)

(1) Includes gains and losses associated with financial instruments elected to be measured at fair value under SFAS 159, and the associated
economically hedging derivatives. Refer to Note 16, “Fair Value Option” of the consolidated financial statements for additional
information.

*  Not meaningful.
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I ncrease (Decr ease)

Six months ended June 30 2008 2007 Amount %

($in millions)

Credit Card fEES ..ottt $ 442 $ 376 $ 66 18
Other fees and COMMISSIONS ........cccevveuivierieieeeeceeee s 288 299 (11 4
TIUSEINCOME ..ottt 69 47 22 47
Trading (10SS) FEVENUES .....c.ccuciiiiririiicrieieees e 825 449 (1,274) *

SECUNTIES GAINS, NEL ...ttt 50 37 13 35

HSBC affiliate income:

Feesand COMMISSIONS ........cccoieuricieiniiiieecsee s 65 50 15 30

Other affiliat€ iNCOME ......ccvieerreiereereree e 22 37 (15) (41)

87 87 - -

Residential mortgage banking revenue .............cocceennnnninccnnee 51 63 (12) (19)
Gain on instruments at fair value and related derivatives (1) ........... 9 - 9

Other (loss) income:

Valuation of loans held for sale ... (243) (74) (169) *
INSUFANCE .....coovveiciee e 18 20 ) (20)
Earnings from equity investments ... 38 41 3 (@)
MisCellan@oUS INCOME .......ccuvueveieirieieeenerie e 89 66 23 35
(98) 53 (151) *
Total OthEr FEVENUES ......covieieieiieeeeeree e $ 73 $ 1411 $ (1,339 (95)

(1) Includes gains and losses associated with financial instruments elected to be measured at fair value under SFAS 159, and the associated
economically hedging derivatives. Refer to Note 16, “Fair Value Option” of the consolidated financial statements for additional
information.

*  Not meaningful.

Credit Card Fees

Higher credit card fees during both periods were primarily due to higher late fees from increased delinquencies
within the private label credit card portfolio.

Other Fees and Commissions

Higher other fee-based income for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the corresponding 2007
period is primarily due to an increase in customer referral fees, loan syndication fees and fees generated by the
Payments and Cash Management business. Thiswas partially offset by areduction in Wealth and Tax Advisory
Services (WTAYS) fees resulting from the sale of this businessin December 2007.

Lower other fee-based income for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the corresponding 2007
period is primarily due to the sale of the WTAS subsidiary in December 2007, which contributed $24 million and
$52 million in the second quarter and first half of 2007, respectively.

Trust Income

Higher trust income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the corresponding 2007
periodsis due to increased activity in the Asset Management business within the Global Banking and Market
segment.
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Trading (Loss) Revenue

Trading revenue is generated by HUSI’ s participation in the foreign exchange, credit derivative and precious metal
markets; from trading derivative contracts, including interest rate swaps and options; from trading securities; and as
aresult of certain residential mortgage banking activities.

The following table presents trading related (loss) revenue by business. The datain the table includes net interest
income earned on trading instruments, as well as an allocation of the funding benefit or cost associated with the
trading positions. Thetrading related net interest income (loss) component isincluded in net interest income on the
Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income. Trading revenues related to the mortgage banking business are included
in residential mortgage banking revenue.

Increase (Decr ease)
2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
Three months ended June 30:
Trading (0SS) FBVENUE ........cucveveveiicceeevete e $ (116) $ 312 $ (428) (237)
Net interest income (l0ss) 69 (5) 74 *
Trading related (10SS) FeVENUE .......covvecrreceerrecreereeeeee e $ (47) $ 307 $ (354) (115)
Business:
DENVALVES ...ttt $ (158) $ 236 $ (394) (167)
Treasury (primarily securities) ........ (21) 6 (27) *
Foreign exchange and banknotes 117 59 58 98
Precious MELAlS ........cceiririririeere s 9 8 1 13
Other trading ......c.ceveeriririririerieieie e 6 (2 8 *
Trading related (10SS) FEVENUE .........ccocueieiriririniiecree s $ (47) $ 307 $ (354) 115
Six months ended June 30:
Trading (10SS) FEVENUE .......ceeuereeeeeeirisee et sens $ (825) $ 449 $ (1,274 *
Net interest income (10SS) .............. 87 (29) 116 *
Trading related (loss) revenue $ (738 $ 420 $  (1,158) *
Business:
DENVALVES ...ttt $ (863 $ 290 $ (1,153) *
Treasury (primarily securities) ........ (129) (6) (123) *
Foreign exchange and banknotes 207 114 93 82
Precious metals .........ccccoeveeeverecicenens 43 23 20 87
Other trading ......c.ceveuririrririerieieies e 4 (2) 5 *
Trading related (10SS) FEVENUE ........ccuvecvreceerrecieiee e $ 738 $ 420 $  (1,158) *

* Not meaningful.

Trading (loss) revenue for the second quarter and first six months of 2008 was significantly affected by reduced
liquidity, widening spreads and higher volatility in the credit markets, however the magnitude of the decrease which
drove the significant year to date decline in trading revenue slowed in the second quarter of 2008.

Trading losses related to derivatives increased substantially in 2008, primarily dueto fair value adjustments due to
counterparty credit reserves on credit derivatives. Most notably, the continued downgrades in credit ratings of
monoline insurance companies have resulted in fair value adjustments on derivative contracts with these entities due
to counterparty credit risk exposures. As of June 30, 2008, this exposure totaled $1,942 million. HUSI recorded
write downs on contracts with monoline insurance companies of approximately $314 million and $802 million in the
second quarter and first half of 2008, respectively, which reflects the decreased credit quality of these entities and
concerns over their ability to perform at this date. Additionally, losses on other structured credit products were $38
million and $261 million for the second quarter and first half of 2008, respectively. Partially offsetting this, during
the second quarter of 2008, HUSI sold MasterCard B shares resulting in again of $134 million.



Trading losses related to securities of $21 million in the second quarter and $129 million for the first six months of
2008 increased significantly as compared with the corresponding 2007 periods, primarily due to credit spread
widening and write downs on asset backed securities held for trading purposes.

Partially offsetting the above noted declinesin trading revenues, the foreign exchange business has continued to
contribute increased revenues as aresult of ongoing market volatility and increased trading volume.

Securities (Loss) Gain, Net

HUSI maintains various securities portfolios as part of its overall balance sheet diversification and risk management
strategies. The following table summarizes net Securities (loss) gain resulting from various strategies.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30

2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)
Sale of VisaClass B SNArES .....covvverieerrernereenesnesesessssessessessenssees $ - $ - $ 83 $ -
Balance sheet diversity and reduction of risk .............. - 1 1 9
Reduction of Latin American investment exposure ..... - 15 - 20
Sales on equity investments to an HSBC affiliate (1) - 8
Other-than-temporarily impaired available for sale

securities (24) (24

Other ..o (10) (10
Securities (loss) gain, net $ (34) $ 16 $ 50 $ 37

(1) Represents net gains realized from transfers of various available for sale securities, other non-marketable securities and equity investments
as part of astrategy to consolidate certain investments into common HSBC entities.

HSBC Affiliate Income

Affiliate fees and commissions decreased $8 million for the second quarter as compared to the same 2007 period.
Thiswas primarily related to a decrease in customer referral fees and other fees received from HSBC affiliates.

Affiliate income remained flat for the first half of 2008, as compared to the same 2007 period. Higher affiliate fees
and commissions was due to an increase in customer referral fees and other fees received from HSBC affiliates
primarily in the first quarter of 2008. Offsetting this was a decrease in gains related to lower volumes of tax refund
anticipation loan originations of $10 million as compared to the corresponding 2007 period.
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Residential Mortgage Banking Revenue

The following tables present the components of residential mortgage banking revenue. Net interest income includes
interest earned/paid on assets and liabilities of the residential mortgage banking business, as well as the funding cost
or benefit associated with these balances. The net interest income component in the table isincluded in net interest
income in the Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income and reflects actual interest earned, net of cost of funds, and
adjusted for corporate transfer pricing.

I ncr ease (Decr ease)
Three months ended June 30 2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
Net iNterest iNCOME ........cvicriiiiiii s $ 64 $ 67 $ 3 4
Servicing related income:
Servicing fEE INCOME ..ot 31 29 2 7
Changes in fair value of MSRs due to:
Changes in valuation inputs or assumptions
used in valuation Model ... 46 57 (12) (29)
Redlization of cash flowS ... (20) (22) 2 9
Trading — Derivative instruments used to offset
changesinvalue of MSRS ... (70) (51) (19 37
(13 13 (26) (200)
Originations and sales related income:

Gainson sales of residential MOrtgages ..........cccoevvevrenecercieuennens 23 22 1 5
Other mortgage iNCOME ..o 4 7 3) (43)
Total residential mortgage banking revenue included

N OLhEr TEVENUES ..ot 14 42 (28) (67)
Total residential mortgage banking related revenue ..........ccccccvneeene. $ 78 $ 109 $ (31) (28)
I ncr ease (Decr ease)
Six months ended June 30 2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
NEL INLErESt INCOME ...vovevereeereeeerereeseeee et reee st eens $ 126 $ 139 $ (13 9
Servicing related income:
Servicing fEEINCOME ..o 62 56 6 11
Changes in fair value of MSRs due to:
Changes in valuation inputs or assumptions
used in valuation Model ..., 25 64 (39) (61)
Redlization of cash flOWS ..o (50) (46) 4) 9)
Trading — Derivative instruments used to offset
changesin value of MSRS ... (30) (54) 24 44
7 20 (13) (65)
Originations and sales related income:

Gains on sales of residential MOrtgages ............coocevvvenicriciciennens 35 29 6 21
Other mortgage income 9 14 (5 (36)
Total residential mortgage banking revenue included

N OLhEr TEVENUES ...t 51 63 (12) (19)
Total residential mortgage banking related revenue ............cccoeeeueunne $ 177 $ 202 $ (25) (12
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Net I nterest Income

Decreased net interest income for the second quarter and the first six months of 2008 resulted from lower average
residential mortgage loans outstanding. During this period, HUSI continued to sell the majority of new loan
originations to government sponsored enterprises and private investors and allow existing loans to runoff. The held
loan portfolio is expected to continue to decline for the remainder of 2008 as aresult of thisinitiative. Additionally,
in May 2008, HUSI completed the sale of approximately $4 billion of prime adjustable rate mortgage loansto a
third party.

Servicing Related I ncome

Higher servicing feeincome for the second quarter and the first six months of 2008 resulted from a higher volume of
loans included within the average serviced loans portfolio. The average serviced loans portfolio increased
approximately 11% in the first half of 2008 as HUSI continued servicing a portfolio of loans previously serviced by
athird party.

Theincreased serviced loans portfolio, and its positive impact on service fee income, was partialy offset by an
increase in realization of cash flows on the growing portfolio of loans serviced for others for the first six months of
2008. Unfavorable M SR performance for the second quarter and the first six months of 2008 resulted primarily
from increased market volatility in the mortgage market.

Originations and Sales Related | ncome

Higher originations and sales related income for the first six months of 2008 was aresult of a$4 billion adjustable
rate mortgage loan sale to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) which resulted in again of
approximately $13.5 million. Thiswas partially offset by lower gains on sales of originated mortgage loans.

(Loss) Gain on Instruments at Fair Value and Related Derivatives

HUSI adopted SFAS 159 (refer to Note 16, “Fair Value Option” of the consolidated financial statements for
additional information) on January 1, 2008 and has elected to apply the fair value option to commercial leveraged
acquisition finance loans, unfunded commitments, certain fixed rate debt issuances and all structured notes and
structured deposits which contain embedded derivatives and were issues after January 1, 2006 at fair value. For the
three months ended June 30, 2008, HUSI recognized a gain of $31 million representing a net change in fair value of
all instruments indicated above, offset by aloss of $79 million on the related derivatives. For the six months ended
June 30, 2008, a gain of $139 million was recorded on these instruments, offset by aloss of $130 million on the
related derivatives.

Other (Loss) Income

The decrease in other (loss) income for the second quarter and year to date periodsis primarily due to write downs
on loans held for sale which totaled $127 million and $243 million for the second quarter and first half of 2008,
respectively. Additionally, a$23 million decrease in other income was recorded in the second quarter of 2008
related to decreased valuations on credit default swaps used to economically hedge credit exposures.



Valuation on Loans Held for Sale

Deterioration in the U.S. mortgage markets have resulted in negative valuation adjustments on loans held for salein
the second quarter and first six months of 2008. Valuations on loans held for sale relate to residential mortgage
loans purchased from HSBC affiliates and third parties with the intent of securitization or sale. Included in this
portfolio is approximately $1.5 billion of sub-prime residential mortgage loans as of June 30, 2008. Loans held for
sale are recorded by HUSI at the lower of their aggregate cost or market value, with adjustments to market value
being recorded as a valuation allowance. Overall weakness and illiquidity in the U.S. residential mortgage market,
and specifically the sub-prime market, resulted in valuation adjustments totaling $127 million and $243 million
being recorded on these loans in the second quarter and first half of 2008, as compared with $65 million and $74
million during the same time period of the previous year.

Operating Expenses

The components of operating expenses are summarized in the following tables.

I ncrease (Decr ease)
Three months ended June 30 2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
Salaries and employee Ben€fits ... $ 332 $ 341 $ 9 3)
OCCuPanCy EXPENSE, NEL ... s 65 59 6 10
Support services from HSBC affiliates:
Fees paid to HSBC Finance Corporation for loan servicing
and other administrative SUPPOIt ...........ccceerrrniciceensnees 116 113 3 3
Feespaid to HMUS ... s 58 66 (8) (12)
Fees paid to HTSU for technology Services ..........cocccvvnnieeeaee 60 62 2 3
Fees paid to other HSBC affiliates ........cccvvvveviciecieeicieinnene 58 49 9 18
Total support services from HSBC affiliates ..........cccoocccveicnnne. 292 290 2 1
Other expenses:
Equipment and SOftWare ..........ccveeerecrrenieeneereeneeseereesee s 11 14 ?3) (21)
MAKELING ....oviiiiccr e 35 31 4 13
OULSIHE SEYVICES ... 33 38 (5) (13)
Professional fees ....... 19 16 3 19
Telecommunications 5 6 (€] a7
Postage, printing and office supplies 8 9 (€] (11
Off balance sheet credit reserves...........ooovveeieceieeencnneeeens 43 (5) 48 *
Miscellangous ..........ccccceuverirenininicneens 87 79 8 10
Total other expenses . 241 188 53 28
Total OPErating EXPENSES ......cvvreerrieerreeiesese e sssssessnsees $ 930 $ 878 $ 52 6
Personnel - average NUMDES ..o 11,728 12,325 (597) (5)

EFfICIENCY TALIO ..o 7476 % 5545 %

* Not meaningful.
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Increase (Decr ease)

Six months ended June 30 2008 2007 Amount %

($in millions)

Sdlaries and employee benefits ... $ 641 $ 678 $ (37) (5)
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE, NEL .....oiiiiiceriie et 130 118 12 10

Support services from HSBC affiliates:
Fees paid to HSBC Finance Corporation for loan servicing

and other administrative SUPPONt .........c.coceermrniniciccernsnenne 237 232 5 2
Feespaid to HMUS ... 109 123 (14) (11)
Fees paid to HTSU for technology Services ... 120 123 3) 2

Fees paid to other HSBC affiliates ........ccoevevrevecieciiieicieinnene 116 91 25 27

Total support services from HSBC affiliates ..........cccoccccveecnnne. 582 569 13 2

Other expenses:

Equipment and SOftWAre .........cccoveueeeinerinreeiereseseeee s 22 29 (@) (29)
MEAKELING ...evvieiecctee e 73 63 10 16
OULSIAE SEIVICES .....cueeriieirisieieiee sttt 63 68 (5) (@)
Professional fees ....... 37 33 4 12
Telecommunications 10 10 - -
Postage, printing and office SUPPIIES ........ccvvereccrecceiiirnene 18 18 - -
Off balance sheet credit reserves............cocovceiiccncnncniccnnne 54 (8) 62 *
MisCellaneous .........ccoceuermuernneninicncens 124 143 (19) (13)
Total other expenses . 401 356 45 13
Total OPErating EXPENSES ......cuvvrererieeereiieereeesresieesesessessaeesesessesasssesees $ 1,754 $ 1,721 $ 33 2
Personnel - average NUMDES ..o 11,837 12,322 (485) 4
EFfICIENCY TAIO ...eeeeeeeeieier e 8257 % 5721 %

* Not meaningful.
Salaries and Employee Benefits

Decreased salaries and employee benefits expense for the three months and six months ending June 30, 2008, as
compared to the same 2007 periods, are mainly due to lower headcount and the resulting reduction in salaries and
bonus payments. Also contributing to this decrease are global resourcing initiatives undertaken by management.
Refer to Support Services from HSBC Affiliates below.

Occupancy Expense, Net

Expansion of the core banking and commercial lending networks within the PFS and CMB business segments has
been akey component of recent business expansion initiatives. New branches have been opened, resulting in higher
rental expenses, depreciation of leasehold improvements, utilities and other occupancy expenses during the three
and six month periods ending June 30, 2008, as compared to the same 2007 periods.

Support Services from HSBC Affiliates
Higher expense for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008 primarily resulted from HUSI’ s utilization
of other HSBC affiliates in support of global resourcing initiatives, which has resulted in a corresponding reduction

in salary and employee benefits expense. Thisis partially offset by a decrease in fees paid to HMUS for treasury
and traded markets services.
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Other Expenses

Other expenses increased for the second quarter and first six months of 2008, as compared to the corresponding
2007 periods. Thiswas primarily dueto an increase in reserves on off-balance sheet credit exposures, including
letters of credit, unused commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees. Partially offsetting this was a $37
million decrease due to an adjustment to VISA litigation expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008. Also
contributing to an increase in miscellaneous expenses, to alesser extent, are higher marketing expenses resulting
from continuing investment in HSBC brand activities, marketing support for branch expansion initiatives within the
PFS business segment and an increase in marketing for CMB products and services.

Efficiency Ratio

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
Efficiency ratio (1) .....cccocvvvnnceccernenneeccenes 7476 % 5545 % 8257 % 5721 %

(1) Ratio of total operating expenses, reduced by minority interests, to the sum of net interest income and other revenues.
Deterioration of the efficiency ratio resulted primarily from a decrease in other revenues, partially offset by higher

net interest income for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008, as compared to the same 2007 periods.
In addition, operating expenses increased only moderately at both of these periods.
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SEGMENT RESULTS

HUSI hasfive distinct segments that are utilized for management reporting and analysis purposes. The segments,
which are based upon customer groupings as well as products and services offered, are described on pages 5-7 of
HUSI"s 2007 Form 10-K.

HUSI reports results to HSBC in accordance with its reporting basis, IFRSs. Segment results are presented on an
IFRS basis (anon-U.S. GAAP financial measure) as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are
evaluated, and decisions about all ocating resources such as employees are made almost exclusively on an IFRSs
basis. However, HUSI continues to monitor capital adequacy, establish dividend policy, and report to regulatory
agencieson aU.S. GAAP basis. A summary of significant differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs as they
impacted HUSI’ s results are summarized in Note 17, “Business Segments’ of the consolidated financial statements
for additional information.

Personal Financial Services (PFS)
Overview

Resources continued to be directed towards expansion of the core retail banking business, including investment in
the HSBC brand and expansion of the branch network in existing areas, as well as an online savings program. The
latter included offering a promotional rate on online savings accounts during the second quarter. Asaresult,
balance sheet growth in the first half of 2008 was highlighted by a 5% increase in average deposits, as compared
with the same 2007 period. Interest income, however, has declined compared with the same 2007 period due to
narrowing of deposit spreads driven by competitive pricing pressures and general rate declines. Additionally, a
deterioration in credit quality, particularly on Home Equity Lines of Credit and Home Equity Loans which increased
markedly in the second quarter, credit cards, and in the second quarter of 2008, prime residential mortgage |oans,
has negatively impacted results.

HUSI continued to sell the majority of new residential mortgage loan originations to government sponsored
enterprises and private investors and to allow the existing balance sheet to runoff. Additionally, in May 2008, HUSI
sold $4 hillion of residential mortgage loans to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). Asa
result, average residential mortgage loans decreased approximately 10% for the first six months of 2008, as
compared with the same 2007 period.
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Operating Results

The following table summarizes results for the PFS segment.

Increase (Decr ease)
2008 2007 Amount %

($in millions)
Three months ended June 30
NE INtErESt INCOME .....eceevicreietei ettt $ 237 $ 274 $ 37) (14)
Other revenues 74 113 (39) (35)
Total revenues 311 387 (76) (20)
Provision for Credit I0SSES ........oocieeiueieiirrnreceeieee e 186 25 161 *

125 362 (237) (65)
OPErating EXPENSES ......cvueueeueteeerrererereseseieiesesee e eseses et seesesesees 323 319 4 1
Income before income tax expense ... 43 (241) *
Income tax (benefit) expense............. 18 (93) *
NELINCOME ...ttt $ 25 $  (148) *
Six months ended June 30
NE INtErESt INCOME ...ttt ettt $ 484 $ 560 $ (76) (14)
OLNEr TEVENUES ...ttt nnnens 300 263 37 14
TOLA FEVENUES ...ttt 784 823 (39) 5)
Provision for Credit I0SSES ..o 245 29 216 *

539 794 (255) (32
OPErating EXPENSES .....cvureerererreieceresereenesersessreesesessesssessesessesssessessssessans 603 611 (8) 1)
(Loss) income before income tax eXpenSe .........ccoccreeereirernesseccneens (64) 183 (247) (135)
Income tax (Denefit) EXPENSE .......cvverrererrecree s (24 56 (80) (143)
NEt (10SS) INCOME .....cvoverirrieirisieeie sttt es s $ (40 $ 127 $  (167) (131)

* Not meaningful.

Net interest income decreased for the second quarter and the first six months of 2008 as compared with the same
2007 periods due to narrowing of interest rate spreads driven by the declining rate environment, competitive pricing
pressures on savings and certificate of deposit products and, in the second quarter of 2008, a promotional rate for

online savings accounts. Net interest income was also impacted by lower interest income due to loan portfolio

runoff on the residential mortgage portfolio, and for the second quarter of 2008, the sale of $4 billion of residential
mortgagesin May 2008. Thiswas partially offset by widening interest rate spreads on MasterCard/Visa credit card

balances.

Other revenues decreased in the second quarter, when compared to the same 2007 period, primarily due to a $31
million inter-segmental charge from the Global Banking and Markets Segment relating to the cost associated with
early termination of the funding associated with the $4 billion mortgage loan sale mentioned above, as well asan

increase in mortgage insurance lossreserves. Thiswas partially offset by the gain on the sale of the above

mentioned residential mortgage loans of $15.8 million. Other revenues increased for the six month period ending

June 30, 2008, compared to the same 2007 period, due to a gain on the sale of $82.5 million from Visa Class B

shares recorded in the first quarter which more than offset the items discussed above as well as lower revenues of
$10 million resulting from lower volumes of federal income tax refund anticipation loans originated by HBUS and
HSBC Trust Company (Delaware) (HTCD) and sold to HSBC Finance Corporation. Additionally, 2007 revenuein

the year to date period included a gain on the sale of branch properties of $21 million.
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Higher provision for credit losses in both periods was driven by an increase in delinquencies which resulted in
significantly increased loan loss reserves as well as increased charge offs within the Home Equity Line of Credit
(HELOC), Home Equity Loan and the Residential first mortgage loan portfolios. Provisions on MasterCard/Visa
receivables and other consumer loans have also risen. Increased levels of persona bankruptcy filings and a
weakening U.S. economy including rising unemployment rates, higher average receivable balances and lower
recovery rate have driven higher delinquencies across all products in this segment.

Decreased operating expensesin the first half of 2008 were primarily related to the partial release of provision of
$37 million representing a portion of the Visaindemnification reserve that was recorded in the fourth quarter of
2007. Higher staff, marketing, occupancy and technology costs reflecting investment in branch expansion and
branch automation largely offsets the previously mentioned recovery. The above mentioned expenses also
contributed to the increase in expense for the second quarter of 2008, when compared to the same 2007 period.

Consumer Finance (CF)
Overview

The CF segment includes the private label and co-brand credit cards, as well as other loans acquired from HSBC
Finance Corporation and its correspondents. Most notably, HUSI purchased a portfolio of higher quality
nonconforming residential mortgage loans (the HM S portfolio) from HSBC Finance Corporation with the intent of
holding these loans. Results of the CF segment have been negatively impacted by significant increasesin provision
for credit losses relating to the private label and HMS portfolios.

Operating Results

The following table summarizes results for the CF segment.

I ncr ease (Decr ease)
2008 2007 Amount %

($in millions)
Three months ended June 30
Net interest income $ 305 $ 210 $ 95 45
Other revenues .............. 69 59 10 17
Total revenues..........c.cocceeeeee 374 269 105 39
Provision for Credit I0SSES ..o 381 214 167 78

@ 55 (62) (113)
Operating eXPENSES ........cocveeeeuereesneseseneens 5 9 (4 (44)
(Loss) income before income tax expense . (12) 46 (58) (126)
Income tax (benefit) expense ..........cccccueee. (5 16 (21 (131)
NEL (10SS) INCOME ....oveerierreirereeeesiseeseseeesessesesee st ssesssessssssnens $ (7) $ 30 $ (37 (123)
Six months ended June 30
NEL INLErESt INCOME ..ot eens $ 599 $ 409 $ 190 46
OLNEX FTEVENUES ...ttt ettt 162 107 55 51
TOEl FEVENUES ..ot 761 516 245 47
Provision for Credit 10SSES ..o s 749 388 361 93

12 128 (116) (91)
OPErating EXPENSES ......cueureceuereieriesisiesestieiese sttt sesseaeeees 22 17 5 29
(Loss) income before income tax expense . (10) 111 (121) (209)
Income tax (benefit) EXPENSE ..o (4 39 (43) (110
NEL (10SS) INCOME ....ovoeerivrreirerieesere s esesee s sesse s sesssesssssssens $ (6) $ 72 $ (78) (108)

Net interest income increased for the second quarter and first six months of 2008 as compared to the same 2007
periods primarily due to lower amortization of premiums paid for purchases of receivablesincluded within the
private label portfolio aswell as lower funding costs due to a declining interest rate environment.

60



Other revenues have increased during both periods as a result of increased late fees due to higher delinquenciesin
the private label and co-brand credit card portfolios and higher credit card fees associated with the growing co-brand
credit card portfolio. Thiswas partially offset by higher servicing costs associated with the growing co-brand credit
card portfolio.

The provision for credit losses associated with credit card receivables increased for the second quarter and first six
months of 2008 as compared with the same 2007 period primarily due to higher levels of personal bankruptcy
filings, lower recoveries of previously charged-off balances and the impact of aweakening U.S. economy.
Provisions relating to the HM S portfolio also increased for both periods due to deterioration in the U.S. housing
markets.

Operating expenses increased in the first half of 2008, as compared to the same 2007 period, primarily due to the
increased collection expenses associated with higher levels of delinquent private label accounts, including higher
servicing costs associated with a growing co-brand portfolio.

HUSI previoudy disclosed that it was considering the purchase of a portfolio of General Motors MasterCard
receivables (the “ GM Portfolio”) from HSBC Finance Corporation in the future in order to maximize the efficient
use of capital and liquidity at both entities. In June 2008, HUSI decided to proceed with the purchase, subject to
obtaining the necessary regulatory and other approvals and expects to apply for regulatory approval in the third
guarter. HSBC Finance Corporation would, however, maintain the customer account relationships and, subsequent
to the initial receivable purchase, HUSI would purchase additional volume on adaily basis. At June 30, 2008, the
GM Portfolio had an outstanding receivable balance of approximately $6.3 billion. If this bulk purchase occurs, the
transaction will be recorded at fair value. In future periods, HUSI’ s net interest income and fee income would
increase. Offsetting these increases would be amortization of the premium from the initial and continuing purchases
of credit card receivables, provision for credit losses and servicing fees on the portfolio paid to HSBC Finance
Corporation. HUSI cannot predict with any degree of certainty the timing asto when, or if, regulatory and other
approvals will be received and, therefore, when the related asset purchase will be completed.

The Federal Reserve Board, the Office of Thrift Supervision and the National Credit Union Administration, along
with other federal regulators, have proposed rules that would, among other things, limit the ability of credit card
issuersto increase credit card interest rates on existing balances. Similarly, several hills pending approval by
Congress could impact credit card pricing and other terms. HUSI cannot determine whether such legidative or
regulatory initiatives will be instituted or predict the impact such initiatives would have on HUSI’ s results.

Commercial Banking (CMB)
Overview

Balanced growth between the established footprint in New Y ork State and expansion marketsin the West Coast,
Chicago and the Southeast, has led to a 25% underlying increase in lending to middle market customers for the first
six months of 2008 as compared to the same 2007 period and a 15% increase in customer deposits for the first six
months of 2008, as compared to the same 2007 period. The small business loan portfolio has seen more moderate
growth due to tightened credit standards and the competitive environment while small business customer deposits
have grown 8% for the first six months as compared to the same 2007 period. The commercial real estate business
has continued to manage down certain lending exposures while also tightening continued high credit standards and
pricing on new loans. Overall, this hasresulted in only a modest increase in commercial real estate loans for the
second quarter of 2008, as compared to the same period last year, however, thisis not translated into higher net
income for three months and six months ended June 30, 2008.

The declining interest rate environment has negatively impacted income growth, as deposit spreads have narrowed
significantly. Although charge offs remain relatively benign, provisions for credit losses have increased following a
deterioration in the outlook for the economy.
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Operating Results

The following table summarizes results for the CMB segment.

Increase (Decr ease)
2008 2007 Amount %

($in millions)
Three months ended June 30
NEL INLErESt INCOME ...vovevereeirerrieesese sttt ens $ 196 $ 202 $ (6) 3
Other revenues 71 66 5 8
Total revenues 267 268 Q) -
Provision for Credit I0SSES ........oocieeiueieiirrnreceeieee e 60 19 41 *

207 249 (42) a7)
OPErating EXPENSES ......cvueueeueteeerrererereseseieiesesee e eseses et seesesesees 147 142 5 4
Income before income tax expense ... 60 107 (47) (44)
Income tax eXpPenSse ........coeeeererennnes 24 40 (16) (40)
NEL TINCOME ..ottt ettt $ 36 $ 67 $ (31) (46)
Six months ended June 30
NEL INLErESt INCOME ...vovevverieirerieesese sttt ens $ 380 $ 398 $ (18) (5)
OLNEr TEVENUES ...ttt nnnens 142 128 14 11
TOtEl FEVENUES ... 522 526 4 )
Provision for Credit I0SSES ..o 107 37 70 189

415 489 (74) (15)
OPErating EXPENSES ......cvueueereieterrereseseseseieieseseess st sese s seesesesens 291 282 9 3
Income before inCome tax EXPENSE ... 124 207 (83) (40)
INCOME LAX EXPENSE ...ttt 49 65 (16) (25)
NEL INCOME ..ottt $ 75 $ 142 $ (67) (47)

* Not meaningful.

Net interest income decreased for the second quarter and first half of 2008, as compared to the same 2007 periods.
Thisis primarily due to declining spreads on deposits. Thiswas partially offset by moderate average balance growth
inloans.

Other revenues increased for the second quarter and first six months of 2008, as compared to the same 2007 periods.
Thisis mainly due to a combination of higher syndications business, higher gains on sales of commercial real estate
loans, increased cross-sales of capital market products and higher investment management fees. Additionally, in the
second quarter of 2008, HUSI recorded higher tax credits relating to low income housing, when compared to the
same 2007 period.

Provisions for credit losses have increased in both the second quarter and the first six months of 2008, as compared
to the same 2007 periods. Thisis mainly due to worsening economic conditions, leading to customer downgrades
across al business segments.

Deposit volumes continue to be akey driver of growth in the second quarter and first half of 2008, driven by
expansion initiatives and targeted marketing campaigns. Average customer deposit balances have increased 9% and
15% for the second quarter and first half of 2008, respectively, as compared with the same 2007 periods.

As noted above, lending to middle market customers remains strong. However, lending to small business and
commercial real estate customers remain subdued. Average loans are 16% higher for the second quarter of 2008 and
11% higher year to date, compared with the same 2007 periods.
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Global Banking and Markets
Overview

During the second quarter and first six months of 2008, the Global Banking and Markets segment has continued to
be affected by reduced market liquidity, widening spreads and increased volatility in the credit and sub-prime
lending markets, which has led to a considerable fall in revenues as compared with the same 2007 periods. This
impacted trading revenues in mortgage backed securities and credit derivatives and led to substantial reserves being
taken in several asset classes, although the magnitude of these write-downs lessened in the second quarter of 2008.
Partially offsetting this, balance sheet management, payments and cash management, emerging markets, precious
metals and the foreign exchange business have contributed significantly higher revenues.

HUSI has initiated areview of the strategies and scope of its Global Banking and Markets business. As an outcome
of thisreview, HUSI may transition certain activities to other affiliates of the HSBC Group where either economic
efficiencies can be realized from an HSBC Group perspective or where the customer base can be better served. The
scope and timing of any such transitioning is still in the early stages of evaluation.

Operating Results

The following table summarizes results for the Global Banking and Markets segment.

Increase (Decr ease)

2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
Three monthsended June 30
NEL INLErESL INCOME ..ot $ 194 $ 141 $ 53 38
Other (loss) revenues (73) 321 (394) (123)
Total revenues ..o 121 462 (341) (74)
Provision for Credit I0SSES ..o 15 (5 20 *

106 467 (361) (77)

OPEatinNg EXPENSES ......cuvureceeuerereireririrteestieiere sttt nesseaeeees 203 198 5 3
(Loss) income before income tax expense ... 97) 269 (366) (136)
Income tax (benefit) expense.........cocccveerenee (40 96 (136) (142
NEt (10SS) INCOME .....ovuvervrrieirisieisie st b e ss s $ (57) $ 173 $ (230 (133)
Six months ended June 30
NEL INLErESL INCOME ..ottt $ 316 $ 138 $ 178 129
Other (loss) revenues (790) 575 (1,365) *
Tota (loss) revenues (474) 713 (1,187) (166)
Provision for Credit I0SSES ..o 57 (10) 67 *

(531) 723 (1,254) 173)
Operating eXPENSES ......c.c.veeeuererernenerenieeeraenens 406 387 19 5
(Loss) income before income tax expense ... (937) 336 (1,273) *
Income tax (benefit) expense.........cocccveerenee. (358) 114 (472 *
NEt (10SS) INCOME .....cvoverirrieirieieesie st es e $ (579 $ 222 $ (801) *

* Not meaningful.

Increased net interest income in both periods was primarily due to balance sheet management initiatives to position
for lower rates and also reflects higher held for sale leverage commercial 1oan balances as |oan syndication activities
were negatively impacted by the decline in market liquidity.

Other revenues in both periods were significantly affected by adverse market conditions. Specifically, valuation
losses of $89 million in the second quarter and $347 million in the first six months of 2008 were recorded against
the fair values of sub-prime residential mortgage and leveraged commercial loans held for sale. Additionally, losses
of $68 million and $407 million were recorded for trading securities and credit derivatives in the second quarter and
first half of 2008, respectively.
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Other revenues al so reflects fair value adjustments of $314 million in the second quarter and $802 million in the first
six months of 2008 as adverse market conditions have led to downgradesin internal credit ratings of monoline
insurance companies. These adjustments have been recorded due to counterparty credit risk exposures on derivative
contracts with these entities, and reflect the decreased credit quality of these entities and concerns over their ability
to perform at June 30, 2008.

Partially offsetting the above mentioned declines, revenues from the payments and cash management business were
higher for the second quarter and first six months of 2008 as compared with the same 2007 periods, reflecting higher
deposit balances and higher associated transaction fee revenues. Foreign exchange, precious metals and interest rate
trading activities also contributed to significantly higher revenues as a result of ongoing market volatility, increased
customer flow, aweakening dollar and higher pricesin gold and platinum. Additionally, revenues benefited from an
inter-segmental charge to the PFS segment of $31 million relating to the cost associated with the early termination
of the funding associated with the sale of residential mortgage loans previously discussed.

Increased provisions for credit losses in the second quarter and first six months of 2008, as compared with the same
2007 periods reflect weaker credit fundamentals particularly in comparison to provision releases in 2007.

Operating expenses were higher for the second quarter of 2008, as compared with the same 2007 period, primarily
resulting from increased costs to support the growth in the payments and cash management and asset management
businesses.
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Private Banking (PB)
Overview

During the second quarter of 2008, resources continued to be dedicated to expand products and services provided to
high net worth customers served by the PB business segment. Asaresult, total average loans (mostly consumer
mortgages) and deposits (primarily from domestic savings and foreign clients) were 4% and 15% higher,
respectively, for thefirst half of 2008 compared with the same 2007 period. Assets under management also
increased 7% as compared to June 30, 2007 levels.

Operating Results

The following table summarizes results for the PB segment.

I ncr ease (Decr ease)
2008 2007 Amount %
($in millions)
Three months ended June 30
NEt INtErest INCOME ......curuiiiirii e $ 47 $ 50 $ 3) (6)
OthEY TEVENUES ...ttt 47 71 (24) (34
TOtEl FEVENUES ...t 94 121 27) (22)
Provision for Credit 10SSES ..o 4 5 1) (20)
90 116 (26) (22)

OPErating EXPENSES ......cvueueereieterrereseseseseieieseseess st sese s seesesesens 75 86 (11 (13)
Income before inCome taX EXPENSE .......occueerereririeiceresese e 15 30 (15) (50)
[NCOME LAX EXPENSE ..cuvueereiciiiresiereieiere sttt 6 11 (5) (45)
NELINCOME ...ttt $ 9 $ 19 $ (10) (53)
Six months ended June 30
NEt INtErest INCOME.......c.iucuiuieiiir s $ 96 $ 100 $ 4 4
OthEY TEVENUES ...ttt 90 144 (54) (38)
TOtEl FEVENUES ...t 186 244 (58) (249)
Provision for Credit 10SSeS ... 1 12 (11) (92)

185 232 (47) (20)
OPErating EXPENSES .......ccviviueiiiiiiiiese s 136 168 (32 (29)
Income before iNcome tax EXPENSE ..........cccceeenrrninicscsiee s 49 64 (15) (23)
[NCOME LAX EXPENSE ..vveeerevereiresieteieiese sttt enenas 19 20 (1) (5)
NELINCOME <.ttt $ 30 $ 44 $ (14 (32)

Lower other revenues of $24 million and $52 million for the second quarter and first six months of 2008,
respectively, and operating expenses of $25 million and $49 million for the second quarter and first six months of
2008, respectively, were primarily due to the sale of the Wealth and Tax Advisory Services (WTAYS) business at
December 31, 2007.

Net interest income for the second quarter and first six months of 2008 was lower than the same 2007 periods
primarily as aresult of higher average deposit balances and narrowing interest rate spreads due to declining market
rates. Thiswas partially offset by increased interest income due to higher loan balances.

Excluding the impact of the WTAS business, other revenues in the second quarter and first six months of 2008 were
higher, primarily due to higher commission and fee revenues from managed products, derivatives and annuity
products. Operating expenses excluding the impact of the WTAS business increased during both periods as a result
of higher staff costs to expand the services provided to high net worth domestic and foreign clients, and in the
second quarter of 2008, a $6 million operational loss related to a specific domestic client relationship.

Provision for credit losses in the second quarter of 2008 were essentially flat as compared to the same 2007 period.
Provision in the first half of 2008 is lower compared to the first half of 2007 largely due to a provision on a specific
client relationship during the first quarter of 2007.
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Other
Overview

The Other segment primarily includes an equity investment in HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) S.A., and adjustments
made at the corporate level for fair value option accounting related to certain debt issued. HUSI is currently
evaluating whether it will retain this investment or transfer this investment to another HSBC &ffiliate.

Operating Results

The following table summarizes results for the Other segment.

I ncr ease (Decr ease)
2008 2007 Amount %

($in millions)
Three months ended June 30
N T 0= =S ([0 O $ (5) $ 3 $ 2 (67)
Other revenues (10ss) ........ (84) (66) (18) (27)
Total revenues (l0sses) ......... (89) (69) (20) (29)
Provision for credit losses - - - -

(89) (69) (20) (29)
OPErating EXPENSES .....cvevuerierirrerereiesesesiesesese st sssseseseessssesesssens - 1 (1) (100
(Loss) before income tax EXPENSE ........ccuevrrrniececerierereessnese s (89) (70) (29) 27)
INCOME taXx (DENEFIL) ....oovvveeeeeiirireee s (35) (30) (5) (17)
NEL (JOSS) wvvvriiriiiecie ettt $ (54 $ (40) $ (14 (35)
Six months ended June 30
NEL INEErESt (I0SS) ...evveeeeiciiiiieie et $ ©) $ (4) $ 1 25
Other revenues (10SS) ..o 80 (61) 141 *
Total reVENUES (I0SS) ....cucvruriiiiicicieieie et 77 (65) 142 *
Provision for Credit I0SSES .......c.coeorririeiienneriecee s - - - -

77 (65) 142 *

Operating EXPENSES ........oveeueeeurerenirererenens - 2 (2 (100
Income (loss) before income tax expense .. 77 (67) 144 *
Income tax expense (benefit) ..........cc.c...... 29 (29 58 200
NELINCOME (0SS) .evevviiieiresrere et $ 48 $ (38) $ 86 *

* Not meaningful.
Theincrease in other revenues for the first six months of 2008 as compared to the same 2007 period primarily

resulted from decreases in the fair value of certain debt instruments to which fair value option accounting is applied,
due to widening credit spreads. The decrease related to the second quarter results is due to spreads narrowing.
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CREDIT QUALITY

HUSI entersinto avariety of transactions in the normal course of business that involve both on and off-balance
sheet credit risk. Principal among these activitiesis lending to various commercial, institutional, governmental and
individual customers. HUSI participates in lending activity throughout the U.S. and, on alimited basis,
internationally.

HUSI"s allowance for credit losses methodology and its accounting policies related to the allowance for credit losses
are presented in Critical Accounting Policies beginning on page 25 of its 2007 Form 10-K and in Note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements beginning on page 103 of its 2007 Form 10-K.

HUSI’" s approach toward credit risk management is summarized on pages 77-78 of its 2007 Form 10-K. There have
been no material revisions to policies or methodol ogies during the second quarter of 2008, although the company
continues to monitor current market conditions and will adjust credit policies as deemed necessary.

Overview

The allowance for credit losses increased $213 million (13%) and increased $382 million (27%) during the three
month and six month periods ended June 30, 2008, respectively. Allowance for credit losses balances and activity,
by loan portfolio, are summarized on page 70 of this Form 10-Q.

The provision for credit losses increased $342 million (130%) for the second quarter of 2008, and increased $635
million (135 %) for the first six months of 2008 as compared with the same 2007 periods. The provision for credit
losses associated with various loan portfolios is summarized on page 48 of this Form 10-Q.

Problem Loan Management

Nonaccruing loans by portfolio and impaired loans are summarized in Note 5, “ Allowance for Credit Losses and
Credit Quality Statistics’ of the consolidated financial statements.

HUSI"s palicies and practices for placing loans on nonaccruing status are summarized in Note 2 of the consolidated
financial statements, beginning on page 103 of its 2007 Form 10-K.
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Criticized Assets

Criticized asset classifications are based on the risk rating standards of HUSI’ s primary regulator. Problem credit
facilities, which include loans and other credit arrangements such as letters of credit, are assigned various criticized

facility grades under HUSI' s allowance for credit losses methodology.

Criticized credit facilities are summarized in the following table, which includes only assets that are reservable
through HUSI’ s credit loss reserve process. Increasein criticized asset balances are discussed under “ Commercial

Loan Credit Quality”.

Increase from
June 30, December 31, 2007 June 30, 2007

Balance at 2008 Amount % Amount %
($in millions)
Special mention (1):

Commercial 10anSs ........ccccveveeerevieciieceeeene $ 2,623 $ 221 9 $ 1,186 83
Substandard (2):

Commercial 10ans ........cccoeeeeeerevievieeieerenne 732 107 17 229 46

CONSUMES 08NS ....vouvvveeeeieeeieese e 967 105 12 512 113

1,699 212 14 741 77

Doubtful (3):

Commercial 10anSs ........ccccveeeeevevieciieceeenne 51 25 96 25 96
TOMAl i $ 4,373 $ 458 12 $ 1,952 81

(1) Generally includes credit facilities that are protected by collateral and/or the credit worthiness of the customer, but are potentially weak
based upon economic or market circumstances which, if not checked or corrected, could weaken HUSI' s credit position at some future

date.

(2) Includes credit facilities that are inadequately protected by the underlying collateral and/or general credit worthiness of the customer.
These credit facilities present a distinct possibility that HUSI will sustain some lossif the deficiencies are not corrected.

(3) Includes credit facilities that have all the weaknesses exhibited by substandard credit facilities, with the added characteristic that the
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full of the recorded loan highly improbable. However, although the possibility of lossis
extremely high, certain factors exist which may strengthen the credit at some future date, and therefore the decision to charge off the loan

is deferred. Loans graded as doubtful are required to be placed in nonaccruing status.

68



Allowance for Credit L osses

Changesin the allowance for credit losses by general 1oan categories are summarized in the following table.

June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30,
Quarter ended 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
($in millions)
Total loansat quarter end ........cccceeeeeenenene 90,586 92,665 $ 95826 $ 92,666 87,409
Averagetotal 10ans ........ccoeeeeenrncieienennns 91,591 92,756 92,527 88,720 88,477
Allowance balance at beginning of
QUAIES et 1,583 1,414 $ 1,058 $ 902 862
Acquired / (transferred) reserve............ (21) - - - -
Charge offs:
Commercial .....coceveeeeeeerenirieeeinienns 37 31 42 35 34
Consumer:
Residential mortgages ............ 54 40 30 14 12
Credit card receivables ........... 328 299 262 228 221
Other consumer loans............. 24 32 32 28 26
Total consumer loans ............. 406 371 324 270 259
Total charge offs ......ccccoevrvenenenee 443 402 366 305 293
Recoveries on |oans charged off:
Commercial ......ooveeeeeerenerieieeenens 12 6 8 6 8
Consumer:
Residential mortgages ............ - 1 - - 1
Credit card receivables ........... 52 57 55 44 50
Other consumer loans............. 7 9 8 9 10
Total consumer loans ............. 59 67 63 53 61
Total reCoVeries .....ccoovvuvennerrennenns 71 73 71 59 69
Total net charge offs ........cccovvvvrinenee 372 329 295 246 224
Provision charged to income ............... 606 498 651 402 264
Allowance balance at end of quarter .......... 1,796 1,583 $ 1,414 $ 1,058 902
Allowance ratios:
Annualized net charge offsto
average loans:
Commercial ......ocoveeeeeerenireninenenens 26 % 28 % 38 % 36 % 3B %
Consumer:
Residential mortgages ............ .66 45 .33 15 A1
Credit card receivables ........... 6.09 5.19 4.43 4.09 3.91
Other consumer loans.............. 3.22 4,18 4.08 3.08 2.58
Total consumer .........cccevveenenee 2.63 2.18 1.82 1.51 1.35
Total 10anS .....ccovevvereeerereiene 163 % 143 % 126 % 110 % 101 %
Quarter-end allowance to:
Quarter-end total loans ........... 198 % 171 % 148 % 114 % 103 %
Quarter-end total
nonaccruing loans ................ 16599 % 160.06 % 185.08 % 163.78 % 21754 %
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Changesin the allowance for credit losses by general 1oan categories are summarized in the following tables.

Residential Credit Other
Three months ended June 30 Commercial M ortgage Card Consumer Unallocated Total
(in millions)
2008
Balance at beginning of period ................... $ 340 $ 106 $ 1,058 $ 53 $ 26 $ 1,583
Acquired / transferred reserve............ccoeee - - (21 - - (21)
Charge offs ... 37 54 328 24 - 443
RECOVENES ..o 12 - 52 7 - 71
Net charge offs .....oovveenvcicciiene 25 54 276 17 - 372
Provision charged to income ...........cccc..... 43 184 353 19 7 606
Balance at end of period .......cccccoverveeereenne. $ 358 $ 236 $ 1114 $ 55 $ 33 $ 179
2007
Balance at beginning of period ................... $ 206 $ 31 $ 572 $ 42 $ 11 $ 862
Charge offs .. 34 12 221 26 - 293
Recoveries .......... 8 1 50 10 - 69
Net charge offs ... 26 11 171 16 - 224
Provision charged to income ...........cccccu... 32 10 204 18 - 264
Balance at end of period .........ccovvveeurenennen. $ 212 $ 30 $ 605 $ 44 $ 11 $ 902
Residential Credit Other
Six months ended June 30 Commercial Mortgage Card Consumer Unallocated Total
(in millions)
2008
Balance at beginning of period . $ 280 $ 88 $ 969 $ 57 $ 20 $ 1414
Acquired / transferred reserve... - - (21) - - (21)
Charge offs .. 68 94 627 56 - 845
Recoveries .......... 18 1 109 16 - 144
Net charge offs ..o, 50 93 518 40 - 701
Provision charged to income .............cc....... 128 241 684 38 13 1,104
Baance at end of period .........ccceeeeiirennenes $ 358 $ 236 $ 1114 $ 55 $ 33 $ 179
2007
Balance at beginning of period ................... $ 203 $ 31 $ 604 $ 48 $ 11 $ 897
Charge offS .....ccevvrreceerrseee e 70 26 445 57 - 598
RECOVENES ..o 14 1 99 20 - 134
Net charge offs ........cccoveecnnniccene 56 25 346 37 - 464
Provision charged to income ..........c.cc.c..... 65 24 347 33 - 469
Balance at end of period .........ccoovvuerrennnn. $ 212 $ 30 $ 605 $ 44 $ 11 $ 902

Commercial Loan Credit Quality

Components of the commercial allowance for credit losses, as well as movements in comparison with prior periods,
are summarized in the following table.

Increase from
June 30, December 31, 2007 June 30, 2007
2008 Amount % Amount %
($in millions)

On-balance sheet allowance:
SPECITIC v $ 46 $ 31 207 $ 25 119
Collective 312 47 18 121 63
358 78 28 146 69
Unalocated .....c.ooevvveverreeereeseeeeenns 33 13 65 22 200
Total on-balance sheet alowance ........ 391 91 30 168 75
Off-balance sheet dllowance ...................... 152 49 48 62 69
Total commercial alowances ..................... $ 543 $ 140 35 $ 230 73
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Higher commercial |oan allowance from December 31, 2007 to June 30, 2008 resulted mainly from higher criticized
loan balances (refer to page 68 of this Form 10-Q) caused by downgradesin financial institution counterparties as
well asreal estate and middle market customers. The downgrades resulted in part from changesin financial
conditions of specific customers within these portfolios. Total nonaccruing commercia loans remain low asa
percentage of total commercial loans. Based upon evaluation of the repayment capacity of the obligors, including
support from adequately margined collateral, performance on guarantees, and other mitigating factors, impairment is
modestly higher at June 30, 2008 as compared with prior reporting periods, and is adequately reflected in the
allowances for specific and collective impairment.

HUSI management continues to monitor the following factors that could affect portfolio risk:

e recent growth initiatives which have resulted in growth in the size and complexity of the commercial loan
portfolio;

e HUSI's continued geographic expansion;

e borrower concentrations; and

e continuing signs of stress within certain segments of the economy.

HUSI management continues to monitor and reduce exposures to those industries considered to be higher risk,
including managing the net exposure within its corporate loan portfolios with a syndication capacity as well as use
of credit default swaps to economically hedge and reduce certain exposures.

Any sudden and/or unexpected adverse economic events or trends could significantly affect credit quality and
increase provisions for credit losses. For example, HUSI management is monitoring the U.S. housing market,
interest rates, and high energy prices, which could potentially lead to a deceleration of U.S. economic activity.

Credit Card Receivable Credit Quality

Credit card receivables are primarily private label receivables, including closed and open ended contracts, acquired
from HSBC Finance Corporation. Receivablesincluded in the private label credit card portfolio are generally
maintained in accruing status until being charged off six months after delinquency. Selected credit quality data for
credit card receivablesis summarized in the following table.

June 30, December 31, June 30,
2008 2007 2007
($in millions)
Two months and over contractual delinquencies:
Total for the quarter ended ..........ccveeeveeereessssese e sesnens $ 685 $ 667 $ 495
Asapercent of total credit card receivables ...........ccoccceiinnnene, 375 % 344 % 281 %
Accruing balances contractually past due 90 days or more:
Balance at end Of QUAIEr .........coceveveerriineeseeseseseses e, $ 460 $ 432 $ 315
Asapercent of total credit card receivables ...........coccvceiinnnene. 252 % 223 % 179 %
Allowance for credit losses associated with credit card receivables:
Balance at end Of QUAIEr ........cccovevereueineereeseese e, $ 1114 $ 969 $ 605
Asapercent of total credit card receivables ...........coccvceiinnnene. 610 % 49 % 343 %
Net charge offs of credit card receivables:
Total for the quarter ended ..........ccveeeeeeecessssese e sesnens $ 276 $ 207 $ 171
Annualized net charge offs as a percent of average
credit card reCalVabIES ..o, 609 % 443 % 391 %
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The allowance for credit losses associated with credit card receivables increased $56 million (5%) during the second
quarter of 2008 and $145 million (15%) during the first six months of 2008. Net charge off and provision activity
was higher during the first six months of 2008 as compared to 2007 primarily due to higher delinquencies within
these portfolios due in part to higher levels of personal bankruptcy filings, lower recoveries on previously charged
off balances and the impact of aweakening U.S. economy, which have resulted in a higher collective allowance
balance. Underwriting criteriais continually being reviewed and will be modified as necessary based on the current
economic environment.

Residential Mortgage Loan Credit Quality

The allowance for credit losses associated with residential mortgage loans increased $130 million (123%) during the
second quarter of 2008 and $148 million (168%) during the first six months of 2008. The increase in the allowance
for credit losses related to residential mortgage loans in both periods was related to increased delinquencies and
charge offsin the portfolio of higher quality nonconforming residential mortgage loans which HUSI purchased from
HSBC Finance Corporation and within the Home Equity Line of Credit (HELOC) and the Home Equity Loan
portfolios which increased markedly in the second quarter of 2008 primarily due to deteriorating conditionsin the
housing markets. Also contributing to thisincrease to alesser extent was HUSI' s prime residential first mortgage
loans which continued to worsen in the second quarter of 2008.

Additional disclosures regarding certain risk concentrations inherent within the residential mortgage loan portfolio
are provided beginning on page 86 of this Form 10-Q.

Reserve for Off-Balance Sheet Exposures

HUSI maintains a separate reserve for credit risk associated with certain off-balance sheet exposures including
letters of credit, unused commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees. Thisreserve, included in other
liabilities, was $158 million, $105 million and $90 million at June 30, 2008, December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2007,
respectively. Therelated provision isrecorded as a miscellaneous expense in the Operating Expense section of this
Form 10-Q. Off-balance sheet exposures are summarized on page 81 of this Form 10-Q.

Credit and Market Risks Associated with Derivative Contracts

Credit (or repayment) risk in derivative instruments arises from entering into transactions with counterparties such
as financial institutions, government agencies, both foreign and domestic, corporations, funds (mutual funds, hedge
funds, etc.), insurance companies and private clients, aswell as other HSBC entities. These counterparties are
subject to regular credit review by the credit risk management department. Most derivative contracts are governed
by an International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master Agreement. Depending on the type of counterparty
and the level of expected activity, bilateral collateral arrangements may also be required.

Thetotal risk in aderivative contract is a function of anumber of variables, such as;

o voldtility of interest rates, currencies, equity or corporate reference entity used as the basis for determining
contract payments,

e maturity and liquidity of contracts;
e credit worthiness of the counterparties in the transaction;
o theexistence of a master netting agreement among the counterparties; and

e existence and value of collateral received from counterparties to secure exposures.
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The table below presents total credit risk exposure measured using rules contained in the risk-based capital
guidelines published by U.S. banking regulatory agencies. The risk exposure calculated in accordance with the risk-
based capital guidelines potentially overstates actual credit exposure, because:

e therisk-based capital guidelinesignore collateral that may have been received from counterpartiesto secure
exposures; and

o therisk-based capital guidelines compute exposures over the life of derivative contracts. However, many
contracts contain provisions that allow a bank to close out the transaction if the counterparty fails to post
required collateral. In addition, many contracts give HUSI the right to break the transactions earlier than the
final maturity date. Asaresult, these contracts have potentia future exposures that are often much smaller than
the future exposures derived from the risk-based capital guidelines.

The net credit risk exposure amount in the following table does not reflect the impact of bilateral netting (i.e.,
netting with a single counterparty when a bilateral netting agreement isin place). However, the risk-based capital
guidelines recognize that bilateral netting agreements reduce credit risk and therefore alow for reductions of risk-
weighted assets when netting requirements have been met. Therefore, risk-weighted amounts for regulatory capital
purposes are a fraction of the origina gross exposures.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Risk associated with derivative contracts:
Total Credit FiSK BXPOSUNE ...cuevieeeeeeereiriseeteieee sttt ses st esaesese e ssssese e e s sestesasensseseesesasenssen $ 105,642 $ 78,115
Less: collateral held against exposure (5,072) (5,148)
NEt CrEdit FiSK BXPOSUIE ........veiiceceeteieteie ettt ettt s b s s s s s s sebesesennes $ 100,570 $ 72,967

HUSI entered into basis trades to monetize the basis difference between abond and a credit default swap (CDS). In
abasistrade, HUSI subscribes newly-issued floating rate investment grade mortgage backed or asset backed
securities and contemporaneously buys credit protection from monoline insurers for a premium. The sponsoring
monoline provides financial protection to HUSI if there isacredit event. When the bond spread is higher than the
CDS spread, the basisis “negative” and the trade is described as a negative basis trade. The monolinestypically do
not post collateral. As of June 30, 2008, HUSI had approximately $1,942 million of exposure for CDS under the
negative basis arrangements with monolines.

Due to downgradesin HUSI’ sinternal credit ratings of monoline insurance companies (refer to Credit Risk
Management beginning on page 77 of HUSI's 2007 Form 10-K for additional commentary relating to HUSI’ s credit
rating system), fair value adjustments have been recorded against counterparty credit exposures. HUSI recorded fair
val ue adjustments on these contracts of approximately $314 million in the second quarter of 2008 and $802 million
in the first half of 2008, which reflects the decreased credit quality of these entities and concerns over their ability to
perform at June 30, 2008.

Market risk is the adverse effect that a change in interest rates, currency, or implied volatility rates has on the value
of afinancial instrument. HUSI manages the market risk associated with interest rate and foreign exchange
contracts by establishing and monitoring limits as to the types and degree of risk that may be undertaken. HUSI also
manages the market risk associated with trading derivatives through hedging strategies that correlate the rates, price
and spread movements. HUSI measures thisrisk daily by using Vaue at Risk (VAR) and other methodol ogies
(refer to page 89 of this Form 10-Q).
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Notional values of derivative contracts are summarized in the following table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Interest rate:
Futures and forwards $ 84,032 $ 96,077
STYE: o LSS 1,723,095 1,874,340
Options written ..... 108,155 97,198
Options purchased 107,890 102,015
2,023,172 2,169,630
Foreign exchange:
SWaps, FULUIES AN FONWAITS ........ceurriririeieece sttt sessesenens 612,239 534,988
Options written 48,881 87,730
OPLIONS PUICNESEA ...ttt 47,358 86,350
SPOL ettt R bbb e £ R R b AR £t AR b bbb b E £t R e s bt e bbb b e s nnnnan 56,836 39,963
765,314 749,031
Commodities, equities and precious metals:
Swaps, futures and forwards 49,426 49,080
Optionswritten ........c.coceeeeeeee 19,766 19,394
OPLIONS PUICNESEA ... 19,173 18,730
88,365 87,204
Cretit AEMTVALIVES .....vcviii ettt bbbt s s snannn 1,240,141 1,252,337
LI P $ 4,116,992 $ 4,258,202

Thetotal notional amounts in the table above relate primarily to HUSI' s trading activities. Notional amounts
included in the table related to non-trading fair value, cash flow and economic hedging activities was $16 billion and
$15 hillion at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

HUSI"s Asset and Liability Policy Committeeis responsible for monitoring and defining the scope and nature of
various strategies utilized to manage interest rate risk that are developed through its analysis of data from financia
simulation models and other internal and industry sources. The resulting hedge strategies are then incorporated into
HUSI'soverall interest rate risk management and trading strategies.
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FAIR VALUE

On January 1, 2008, HUSI adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements’ (SFAS 157), and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Vaue Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’ (SFAS 159). Asaresult, HUSI recorded atotal after-tax cumulative
effect adjustment of $113 million as an increase to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2008.
The transition adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2008 included (a) a $36
million release of certain unamortized deferred profit upon adoption of SFAS 157 and (b) $77 million from the
application of the fair value option to certain own debt issuances under SFAS 159, respectively.

SFAS 157 requires HUSI to take into consideration its own credit risk in determining the fair value of financial
liabilities. The incorporation of own credit risk accounted for an increase of $66 million and a decrease of $107
million in the fair value of financial liabilities for the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2008,
respectively.

Net income volatility arising from changes in either interest rate or credit components of the mark-to-market on debt
designated at fair value and related derivatives affects the comparability of reported results between periods.
Accordingly, gain on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives for the six months ended June 30, 2008
should not be considered indicative of the results for any future period.

SFAS 157 establishes afair value hierarchy for disclosing the fair value measurement of assets and liabilities. The
classification of an asset or aliability in the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of significant input to the overall
fair value measurement of the asset or liability. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. For financia
instruments carried at fair value, the best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in an actively traded market

(Level 1). Where the market for afinancial instrument is not active, valuation techniques are used. The magjority of
valuation techniques use market inputs that are either observable or indirectly derived from and corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the financial instrument (Level 2). Because Level 1 and
Level 2 instruments are determined by observable inputs, less judgment is applied in determining the fair value
measurements. In the absence of observable market input, the financial instrument is valued based on valuation
techniques that feature one or more significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The following table indicates that Level 3 assets were 6.8% of the total assets measured at fair value as of June 30,
2008. Level 3liahilities as a percentage of the total liabilities measured at fair value were 2.5% as of June 30, 2008.

June 30,
2008
($in millions)
LEVED BASSELS (1), (2) vreeerereererereereseereeeeeseseeseseseesesssseseesssesessesssesaesessesssessssesssessssssessssssessssesssssssssssesssessssnssesssnsssaessenssnssssesnsanes $ 8,781
Total assets measured at fair VAIUE (3) ... 129,372
LOVED BIIBDIHITIES ...uveeeceiecisecice et bbb 2,392
Total liabilities measured @t fair VAIUE (1) .......cocccririiiicceieieres ittt ettt 94,093
Level 3 assets as a percent of total assets measured at fair VAIUE ..o 6.8 %
Level 3 liabilities as a percent of total liabilities measured at fair VAlUE ..o 25 %

(1) Presented without FIN 39, Offsetting of Amounts Relating to Certain Contracts, netting.
(2) Includes $7,074 million of recurring Level 3 assets and $1,707 million of non-recurring Level 3 assets.
(3) Includes $127,263 million of assets measured on arecurring basis and $2,109 million of assets measured on a non-recurring basis.
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Material Changesin Fair Valuefor Level 3 Assets and Liabilities
Derivatives and Exposure to Monoline Insurers

HUSI entered into buy-protection credit default swaps with monoline insurers to cover the credit exposure in certain
asset backed securities. The credit default swaps were classified as Level 3 instruments on January 1, 2008. As of
June 30, 2008, HUSI had a mark-to-market exposure to these monoline insurers of $1,942 million. HUSI reviewed
the counterparty credit risk of the monolines, and as a result, made a negative credit risk adjustment to the fair value
of the credit default swap contracts of $314 million and $802 million, in the three months and six months ended
June 30, 2008, respectively. The adjustment isincluded in the trading (loss) revenue column in the Level 3
rollforward table. Asof June 30, 2008, HUSI recorded afair value adjustment of $1,088 million in relation to the
monoline exposure.

Loans

HUSI classified $1,630 million of mortgage whole loans held for sale as Level 3 financial assets as of June 30, 2008
which are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. These mortgage |oans are accounted for on alower of
cost or fair value basis. Based on its assessment, HUSI recorded aloss of $129 million and $247 million, for such
mortgage loans in the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively.

As of June 30, 2008, HUSI held certain leveraged |oans and revolvers designated as held for sale and certain
commercia loans for which HUS| elected the fair value option. The leveraged loans, revolvers aswell as
commercial loans elected for fair value option accounting have atotal fair value of $1,901 million ($2,123 million
notional principal) of which $810 million was classified as Level 3 assets. HUS| is aso committed to fund $12
million of leveraged loans as of June 30, 2008. During the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2008,
HUSI recorded again of $17 million and aloss of $64 million, respectively, in relation to these loans classified as
Level 3 assets.

Material Transfers Into or Out of Level 3 for the Three-Month Period and Six-Month Period Ended June 30,
2008

Three month period ended June 30, 2008

During the second quarter of 2008, HUSI transferred approximately $203 million of derivative assets, $310 million
of derivative liahilities in emerging markets, and $128 million of structured notes related to certain first-to-default
credit derivatives from the Level 2 to the Level 3 measurement category. A first-to-default credit derivative
contains a basket of securities as referenced credits and the contract will be terminated when any of the underlying
securitiesisin default. The correlations of default risks among the referenced securities are not observable.

Sx month period ended June 30, 2008

HUSI transferred $1,842 million of Leveraged Super Senior (LSS) credit derivative swaps from the Level 2 into the
Level 3 category in the fair value hierarchy during the six months ended June 30, 2008. The valuation of aLSS
swap is affected by the “gap risk” - the possibility that the collateral posted will not be sufficient to cover the
replacement cost if the trade is unwound when the counterparty fails to meet the collateral call. HUSI uses an
internal valuation technique to value the gap risk. The key unobservable inputs include correlations and the
volatility of the credit spreads of the reference credits. Asarisk management practice, HUSI hedges the credit risk
in its credit derivative portfolio on amacro basis. The majority of the hedges have been classified as Level 2
measurements in the fair value hierarchy and as such, the gain from the LSS swaps is presented without showing the
offsetting effect from the hedges. As of June 30, 2008, the fair value of LSS swaps classified asalLevel 3
measurement amounted to $1,374 million.
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HUSI owned senior classes of debt securitiesissued by certain collateralized debt obligations (CDO’s) and certain
collateralized loan obligations (CLO’s) on which it purchased credit protection in the form of credit default swaps
from monoline insurers to hedge the exposure in these financial assets (refer to the section “ Credit and Market Risks
Associated Derivative Contracts’ on page 72 of this Form 10-Q). The CDO securities are ultimately collateralized
by various asset classes such as residential and commercial mortgages and corporate debt. The CLO sare
collateralized by corporate leveraged loans. Because of the protection purchased through credit default swaps,

HUSI is exposed to the credit risk of the monoline insurers in respect of these instruments.

These CDO and CLO securities were rated AAA by the rating agencies upon issuance because they were designed
to be well protected by the subordinated positions in the structure. However, the fair value of the subordinated
positions has declined during the recent credit crisis and has reduced the level of protection provided to the senior
tranches. Inview of the complexity of the structure and the degree of subjectivity involved in determining the fair
value, HUSI transferred CDO and CL O securities held and total return swaps referenced to similar CDO and CLO
securities from the Level 2 into the Level 3 category in the fair value hierarchy during the six month period ended
June 30, 2008. As of June 30, 2008, HUSI has $1,253 million of CDO and CL O securities and $431 million of total
return swaps.
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The following tables summarize the types and credit quality of the assets underlying HUSI' s asset backed securities

aswell as certain collateralized debt obligations and collateralized |oan obligations held as of June 30, 2008:

Asset backed securities backed by
consumer finance collateral:

Credit quality of collateral: Total Prime Alt-A Sub-prime
Prior to 2006/ Prior to 2006/ Prior to 2006/
Year of issuance: 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007
(in millions)
Rating of
securities:  Collateral type:
AAA Home equity loans ........... $ 968 - 0% - 114 ¢ 452 402 % -
Autoloans........... 137 - 52 85 - - -
Student loans 14 12 - 2 - - -
Consumer loans ............... 1 - - 1 - - -
Not specified .........cceuueen. 76 - 18 58 - - -
Total AAA ..o, 1,196 12 70 260 452 402 -
AA Home equity loans............ 298 - - 5 293 - -
Auto loans ... 66 - - 66 - - -
Total AA o, 364 - - 71 293 - -
A Home equity loans ........... 9 - - - 9 - -
Autoloans .......cccceeevereennn, - - - - - - -
Total A oo, 9 - - - 9 - -
BBB Home equity loans ........... 21 - - 7 14 - -
Autoloans........cccceeevereenn, 9 - - 9 - - -
Total BBB ......ccccevevrennee. 30 - - 16 14 - -
BB Home equity loans ........... 82 - - - 82 - -
$ 1681 12 % 70 347 $ 850 402 $ -
Collateralized debt obligations (CDO)
and collateralized loan obligations
(CLO):
Credit quality of collateral: A or Higher BBB BB/B CCC Unrated
Rating of
securities:  Collateral type:
AAA Corporateloans................ $ 434 $ - 147 ¢ 287 - % -
Commercial mortgages ... 222 - - 222 - -
Trust preferred ................. 261 - 230 31 - -
Aircraft leasing ................ 72 - - - - 72
(0131 o (/1) IR 816 816 - - - -
1,805 $ 816 $ 377 % 540 $ - $ 72
Total asset backed
SECUItIES ...cvvvrereee, $ 3,486

(1) HUSI has provided asset financing to certain insurance trusts. HUSI holds securities linked to the economic performance of those trusts
including the performance of the assets held in the trusts. These assets primarily include commercial mortgages, credit card receivables,
commercial paper and corporate bonds. HUS!| has transferred the risks in these trusts by entering into total return swaps for the same

amounts with third parties.

78



Valuation Techniquesfor Major Assets and Liabilities
Loans Held for Sale and Unfunded Commitments

Loans are valued based on broker quotes or independent pricing services, where available. Where market quotes are
not available, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices for instruments with similar
characteristics. If an observable market price is not available, fair value is determined by discounting projected cash
flows based on risk-adjusted credit spreads and interest rates appropriate for the duration of the instrument.

Residential Mortgage Loans Held for Sale or Securitization

For residential mortgage whole |oans pending securitization or sale, fair value is determined based on the observed
prices of mortgage backed securities with collateral of similar characteristics. HUSI makes adjustments to the
valuation for, among other things, the uncertainty that the securitization may not materialize, liquidity, dissimilarity
of the underlying collateral and direct transaction costs to convert mortgage loans into securities. Inlessliquid
markets, direct observation of traded prices may not be possible. In these circumstances, HUSI will source
alternative market information to validate the financia instrument’ s fair value. Greater weight will be given to
information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

Debt and Equity Securities

Debt and equity securities are valued based on quoted market prices if the instruments are traded in an active
market. If aquoted market price for identical securitiesis not available or the security is not actively traded, it is
valued based on quotes from similar securities where possible.

For certain mortgage backed and asset backed securities, HUSI uses internally developed valuation techniques with
inputs which are directly observable or derived from observable market data, and where relevant, its own
assumptions about market participants’ assumptions with respect to unobservable inputs. The valuation models
estimate losses in the underlying collateral and attribute such losses to the securities held. To ensure that the
valuation presented is appropriate, HUSI regularly compares its valuation results to pricing services' information
and the hypothetical valuation estimates using relevant inputs calibrated to market indices.

Derivatives

Over-the-counter derivatives are valued using valuation models. Valuation models calculate the present value of
expected future cash flows based upon “no arbitrage” principles. For many plain vanilla derivative products, such as
interest rate swaps, the valuation approaches used are standardized. For more complex derivative products, HUS|
uses internally developed valuation models to price the instruments. The valuation outcome may be affected by the
choice of valuation model and the underlying assumptions about the timing of cash flows, volatility and credit
spreads. Where possible, inputs to valuation models are obtained from observable market data which include prices
available from dealers, brokers or providers of consensus pricing. Certain inputs to the valuation models may not be
observable directly in the market, but are indirectly derived from observable prices viamodel calibration procedures.

Long-Term Debt and Sructured Deposits

Certain own debt issuances, structured notes and deposits are measured at fair value with the resultant gain or loss
reflected in earnings. For valuation purposes, HUSI takes into consideration any derivative features embedded in
the structured notes and deposits. Cash flows are discounted using the appropriate interest rate for the applicable
duration of the instrument. SFAS 157 requires HUSI to consider its own credit risk (spread) when measuring the fair
value of financia liabilities. The credit spread applied to these instruments is derived from the spreads at which
HUSI would issue structured notes as of the measurement date. The observed market spreads for structured notes
and deposits are lower than the credit spreads observed for plain vanilladebt or in the credit default swap market.

79



HUSI’s own debt issuances for which the fair value option has been elected are traded on an over-the-counter basis.
Where available, the fair value of HUSI' s own debt issuances is determined based on observed prices for the
specific instrument. The observed market price of these instruments includes the effect of the appropriate credit
spread of HUS.

Valuation Adjustments

Because judgment is more significant in determining the fair value of Level 3 instruments, HUSI has considered
additional factors which are not included in the initial valuation techniques and records valuation adjustments as a
result of these additional considerations. Some of the valuation adjustments are:

e Credit risk adjustment: an adjustment to reflect the creditworthiness of the counterparty for over-the-counter
products where the market parameters may not be indicative of the creditworthiness of the counterparty. For
derivative instruments, the market price implies parties to the transaction have credit ratings equivalent to AA.
Therefore, HUSI will make an appropriate credit risk adjustment to reflect the counterparty credit risk if
different from an AA credit rating. For non-derivative instruments measured at fair value, the credit risk
adjustment is calculated based on HUSI' sinternal rating-based credit assessment system.

o Market data/model uncertainty: an adjustment to reflect uncertaintiesin the fair value measurements determined
based on unobservable market datainputs. Because one or more significant parameters may be unobservable
and must be estimated, the resultant fair value estimates have inherent measurement risk. In addition, the values
derived from valuation techniques are affected by the choice of valuation model. Where different valuation
techniques are available, the choice of valuation model can be subjective and in those cases, a valuation
adjustment is applied to mitigate the potential risk of measurement error. In most cases, HUS| performs a stress
test on certain key unobservable parameters to estimate the fair value adjustment amounts.

e Liquidity adjustment: atype of bid-offer adjustment to reflect the difference between the mark-to-market
valuation of all open positions in the portfolio and the close out cost. The liquidity adjustment is a portfolio
level adjustment and is afunction of the liquidity and volatility of the underlying risk positions.

Control Over Valuation Process and Procedures

HUSI has various controls over its valuation process and procedures to ensure appropriate valuations. All valuation
techniques and any subsequent changes are reviewed and approved by its Vauation Committee. On aregular basis,
the Valuation Committee reviews and discusses the issues on valuation techniques and mode! inputs brought
forward by various control groups. Where appropriate, HUSI calibrates the valuation models to market information.
In addition, HUSI also participates in pricing surveys administered by third party pricing services as part of the
model validation process. Finally, HUSI gives careful review to material profits and losses on instruments for which
measurements are determined using unobservable inputs.

Effect of Changes in Sgnificant Unobservable Inputs

Thefair value of certain financial instruments are measured using val uation techniques that incorporate pricing
assumptions not supported by prices from observable market transactions of the same or similar instruments. The
resultant fair value measurements are dependent on unobservable valuation input parameters which can be selected
from arange of estimates and may be interdependent. Changesin one or more of the significant unobservable input
parameters may change the fair value measurements of these financial instruments. For the purpose of preparing the
financia statements, the final valuation inputs selected are based on management’ s best judgment that reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing similar assets or liabilities. The unobservable input
parameters selected are subject to the internal valuation control process and procedures. When HUSI performs a test
of al the significant input parameters to the extreme values within the range at the same time, it could result in an
increase of the overall fair value measurement of approximately $500 million or a decrease of the overall fair value
measurement of approximately $500 million as of June 30, 2008. The effect of changes in significant unobservable
input parameters are primarily driven by mortgage whole loans acquired for the purpose of securitization but
remaining in inventory, certain asset backed securities, including CDO securities, and uncertainty in determining the
fair value of credit derivatives executed against monoline insurers.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Aspart of its normal operations, HUSI entersinto various off-balance sheet arrangements with affiliates and third
parties. These arrangements arise principally in connection with HUSI’ slending and client intermediation activities
and involve primarily extensions of credit and guarantees.

Asafinancial services provider, HUSI routinely extends credit through loan commitments and lines and | etters of
credit and provides financial guarantees, including derivative transactions that meet the definition of a guarantee
under FIN 45. The contractual amounts of these financial instruments represent HUSI’ s maximum possible credit
exposure in the event that a counterparty draws down the full commitment amount or HUS! is required to fulfill its
maximum obligation under a guarantee.

The following table presents total contractual amounts and maturity information related to HUSI' s of f-balance sheet
arrangements. Many of these commitments and guarantees expire unused or without default; as aresult, HUSI
believes that the contractual amount is not representative of the actual future credit exposure or funding
requirements. Descriptions of the various arrangements follow the table.

The following table provides maturity information related to off-balance sheet arrangements. Descriptions of these
arrangements are found on pages 70-74 of HUSI's 2007 Form 10-K.

Balance at June 30, 2008

One Over One Over Balance at
Y ear Through Five December 31,
or Less Five Years Years Total 2007
(in millions)
Standby letters of credit, net of
Participations (1) ....ccovevveeeeeerererereeesreseseeeennns $ 5,955 $ 2,931 $ 123 $ 9,009 $ 9,021
Commercial letters of credit .......cceevvervveenn, 1,153 31 - 1,184 934
Credit derivatives considered
QUAANEEES (2) ooveeereeereieieieieesiresese e 26,160 432,145 181,119 639,424 650,243
Other commitments to extend credit:
COMMENCIAl ....cocueeeierereeeeeee e, 26,613 30,755 2,765 60,133 59,041
Consumer 10,025 - - 10,025 10,053
TOtAl et $ 69,906 $ 465,862 $ 184,007 $ 719,775 $ 729,292

(1) Includes $753 million and $598 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.
(2) Includes $110,604 million and $98,250 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
respectively.

Letters of Credit

HUSI may issue aletter of credit for the benefit of a customer, authorizing athird party to draw on the letter for
specified amounts under certain terms and conditions. The issuance of aletter of credit is subject to HUSI' s credit
approval process and collateral requirements. HUSI issues two types of letters of credit, commercia and standby.

e A commercial letter of credit is drawn down on the occurrence of an expected underlying transaction, such as
the delivery of goods. Upon the occurrence of the transaction, the amount drawn under the commercial letter of
credit isrecorded as a receivable from the customer in other assets and as aliability to the vendor in other
lighilities until settled.

o A standby letter of credit isissued to third parties for the benefit of a customer and is essentially a guarantee
that the customer will perform, or satisfy some obligation, under a contract. It irrevocably obligates HUSI to
pay athird party beneficiary when a customer either: (1) in the case of a performance standby letter of credit,
fails to perform some contractual non-financial obligation, or (2) in the case of afinancia standby letter of
credit, fails to repay an outstanding loan or debt instrument.
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Fees are charged for issuing letters of credit commensurate with the customer's credit evaluation and the nature of
any collateral. Included in other liabilities are deferred fees on standby |etters of credit, representing the fair value
of the “stand ready obligation to perform” under these guarantees, amounting to $26 million and $25 million at

June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. Fees are recognized ratably over the term of the standby letters
of credit. Alsoincluded in other liabilitiesis an allowance for credit losses on unfunded standby |etters of credit of
$46 million and $27 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Credit Derivatives Considered Guarantees

HUSI entersinto credit derivative contracts both for its own benefit and to satisfy the needs of its customers. Credit
derivatives are arrangements that provide for one party (the “beneficiary”) to transfer the credit risk of a“reference
asset” to another party (the “guarantor”). Under this arrangement the guarantor assumes the credit risk associated
with the reference asset without directly purchasing it. The beneficiary agrees to pay to the guarantor a specified
fee. Inreturn, the guarantor agrees to pay the beneficiary an agreed upon amount if there is a default during the term
of the contract.

In accordance with its policy, HUSI offsets most of the market risk it assumesin selling credit guarantees through a
credit derivative contract with another counterparty. Credit derivatives, although having characteristics of a
guarantee, are accounted for as derivative instruments and are carried at fair value. The commitment amount
included in the table on the preceding page is the maximum amount that HUSI could be required to pay, without
consideration of the approximately equal amount receivable from third parties and any associated collateral.

Other Commitmentsto Extend Credit

Other commitments to extend credit include arrangements whereby HUSI is contractually obligated to extend credit
in the form of loans, participationsin loans, lease financing receivables, or similar transactions. Consumer
commitments comprise unused credit card lines and commitments to extend credit secured by residential properties.
HUSI hastheright to change or terminate any terms or conditions of a customer’s credit card or home equity line of
credit account, for cause, upon notification to the customer. Commercial commitments comprise primarily those
related to secured and unsecured loans and lines of credit and certain asset purchase commitments. In connection
with its commercial lending activities, HUSI provides liquidity support to a number of multi-seller and single-seller
asset backed commercia paper conduits (ABCP conduits) sponsored by affiliates and third parties. These ABCP
conduits and HUSI’ s variable interests in them are more fully described in Note 13, “Variable Interest Entities’ of
the consolidated financial statements.

During the second quarter of 2008, HUSI amended the terms of aliquidity facility with respect to a$451 million
notional transaction funded through an HSBC sponsored multi-seller conduit. Due to the ratings downgrade of the
monoline insurance company which provides credit insurance to this individual transaction, HUSI amended the
terms of the agreement, changing it from a partially supporting liquidity facility to afully supporting liquidity
facility.

HUSI provides liquidity support to ABCP conduits in the form of liquidity loan agreements and liquidity asset
purchase agreements. Liquidity facilities provided to multi-seller conduits support transactions associated with a
specific seller of assets to the conduit and HUSI would only be expected to provide support in the event the multi-
seller conduit is unable to issue or rollover maturing commercia paper because of acommercial paper market
disruption or the supported transaction has breached certain triggers. Liquidity facilities provided to single-seller
conduits are not identified with specific transactions or assets and HUSI would be required to provide support upon
the occurrence of acommercial paper market disruption or the breach of certain triggers that affect the single-seller
conduit’s ability to issue or rollover maturing commercia paper. HUSI’ s obligations have generally the same terms
as those of other institutions that also provide liquidity support to the same conduit or for the same transactions.
HUSI does not provide any program-wide credit enhancements to ABCP conduits.
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Under the terms of these liquidity agreements, the ABCP conduits may call upon HUSI to lend money or to
purchase certain assets in the event the ABCP conduits are unable to issue or rollover maturing commercia paper
because of acommercia paper market disruption or the supported transaction has breached certain triggers. These
trigger events are generally limited to performance tests on the underlying portfolios of collateral securing the
conduits' interests. With regard to amulti-seller liquidity facility, the maximum amount that HUSI could be
required to advance upon the occurrence of atrigger event is generally limited to the lesser of the amount of
outstanding commercial paper related to the supported transaction and the balance of the assets underlying that
transaction adjusted by a funding formula that excludes defaulted and impaired assets. Under asingle-sdller
liquidity facility, the maximum amount that HUSI and other liquidity providers could be required to advance is also
generaly limited to each provider’s pro-rata share of the lesser of the amount of outstanding commercial paper and
the balance of unimpaired performing assets held by the conduit. As aresult, the maximum amount that HUS|
would be required to fund may be significantly less than the maximum contractual amount specified by the liquidity
agreement.

The tables below present information on HUSI' s liquidity facilities with ABCP conduits at June 30, 2008 excluding
facilities with certain multi-seller ABCP conduits that are subject to agreements affecting HUSI’ s obligations and
which are separately discussed in the commentary following the tables. The maximum exposure to loss presented in
the first table represents the maximum contractual amount of loans and asset purchases HUSI could be required to
make under the liquidity agreements. This amount does not reflect the funding limits discussed above and also
assumes that HUSI suffers atotal loss on all amounts advanced and all assets purchased from the ABCP conduits.
As such, HUSI believes that this measure significantly overstates its expected |oss exposure.

Conduit Assets (1) Conduit Funding (1)
Maximum Weighted Weighted
Exposure Total Averagelife Commercial AveragelLife
June 30, 2008 to Loss Assets (Months) Paper (Days)
($in millions)
HSBC &ffiliate sponsored (multi-sdller) ....... $ 10,989 $ 6,063 31 $ 6,597 41
Third-party sponsored:
MUlti-SEllr ... 296 396 96 396 10
Single-seller ... 1,011 25,068 41 24,263 30
TOAl oo $ 12296 $ 31527 $ 31,256

(1) For multi-seller conduits, the amounts presented represent only the specific assets and related funding supported by HUSI’ s liquidity
facilities. For single-seller conduits, the amounts presented represent the total assets and funding of the conduit.

Average Average Credit Quality (1)
June 30, 2008 Asset Mix Aaa Aa A
Multi-seller conduits
Debt securities backed by:
AUto 10aNS AN [€ASES ........cucveveriiieecee e 31 % 23 % 77 %
Tradereceivables ............ 23 15 % 85
Credit card receivables 21 52 48
Other SECUMLIES ...t 10 31 69
Auto dealer floor plan 10ans .........cccceveererrrereerenseeneeeenens 6 100
Capital calS ...coceerreriieiecieeian 5 100
Collateralized debt obligations 3 100
CONSUMEN [OANS ...t 1 100
TOMAl oot 100 %
Single-seller conduits
Debt securities backed by:
AUto 10aNS anNd 1€ASES ........ccovvevieeiecieeesese s 88 % 98 % 2 %
Loans and trade receivables:
AUt0 10aNS aNd |€ASES .......c.cucueieeeicteeeee e 12 100 %
I - R 100 %

(1) Credit quality isbased on Standard and Poor’ s ratings at June 30, 2008 except for loans and trade receivables held by single-seller
conduits, which are based on HUS!' sinternal ratings.
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HUSI receives fees for providing these liquidity facilities. Credit risk on these obligations is managed by subjecting
them to HUSI’ s normal underwriting and risk management processes.

During the second half of 2007, asset backed commercial paper markets experienced adeclinein liquidity as
concerns surrounding U.S. sub-prime residential mortgages spilled over into other credit markets. Asaresult,
issuers of asset backed commercial paper found it increasingly difficult to refinance maturing commercia paper and
many found it necessary to draw on liquidity facilities or obtain additional support in other forms. None of the
ABCP conduits included in the tables above drew on the liquidity facilities provided by HUSI during 2007,
however, several drawings have been made associated with a $296 million facility, which isincluded in the third-
party multi-seller line in the above table, during the first six months of 2008. As of June 30, 2008, there was $23
million in these liquidity facilities outstanding. In 2007, HUSI did, however, provide support to several HSBC
affiliate sponsored ABCP conduits by purchasing up to $1.16 billion of A-1/P-1 rated commercial paper issued by
them. In 2008, HUSI has only purchased up to $306 million at any time, and as of June 30, 2008 did not own any of
the commercial paper, compared with $306 million of such paper held at December 31, 2007. The majority of
commercial paper purchased was repaid upon maturity.

As noted, the tables do not include information on liquidity facilities that HUSI has provided to certain multi-seller
ABCP conduits that have been subject to agreements affecting HUSI' s contractual obligations under the facilities.
Asaresult of difficultiesin the asset backed commercial paper markets, HUSI entered into various agreements
during the second half of 2007 that modified its obligations with respect to these facilities. Under one of these
agreements, known as the Montreal Accord, the adhering parties agreed not to trade, trigger default provisions,
pursue liquidity or collateral calls, or exercise security rights over assets held by the covered conduits while they
worked to restructure outstanding commercial paper into longer-term securities. A restructuring proposal has
recently been approved by ABCP noteholders and sanctioned by the Ontario Superior Court. Motionsfor leave to
appeal and appeal of the sanction order by the Ontario Superior Court were filed by certain ABCP noteholders and
these motions are now before the Ontario Court of Appeal. Asof June 30, 2008, no ruling on such motions had
been issued by the Ontario Court of Appeal. As part of the restructuring proposal, HUS! intends to provide a
Margin Funding Facility to a new Master Conduit Vehicle.

Separately, HUSI agreed to purchase and hold a specified amount of commercial paper issued by certain conduits
covered by HUSI liquidity facilities, all of which was repaid in the first quarter of 2008. While the parties to these
arrangements also agreed not to trigger defaults, make liquidity calls, or exercise security rights, the sponsors of
these conduits agreed to meet certain collateral calls made by HUSI. These conduits' liabilities have now been
formally restructured, with the outstanding ABCP converted into longer term securities. As part of the restructuring,
HUSI has agreed to hold $300 million of the longer term securities and to provide a $100 million Margin Funding
Facility. Asof June 30, 2008, $11 million of the Margin Funding Facility was drawn.

As of June 30, 2008, other than the $100 million Margin Funding Facility referenced above, HUSI no longer has
outstanding liquidity facilitiesto ABCP conduits subject to the Montreal Accord and other agreements referenced.
There were $10 million of drawings outstanding against an additional liquidity facility that expired on March 31,
2008, therefore no additional amounts can be drawn on this facility. Under the Montreal Accord restructuring plan,
the $10 million of drawings will be converted into longer term securities.

In addition to the facilities provided to ABCP conduits, HUSI also provides a $50 million liquidity facility to athird-
party sponsored multi-seller structured investment vehicle (SIV). This SIV and HUSI’ sinvolvement with it is more
fully described in Note 13, “Variable Interest Entities” of the consolidated financial statements. At June 30, 2008
thisfacility was fully funded and is recorded in loans on HUSI’ s balance sheet. The funded amount related to this
liquidity facility was considered in the determination of HUSI’ s allowance for loan losses and a specific reserve has
been established against this facility in accordance with HUSI’ s credit policies.
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Money Market Funds

HUSI has established and manages a number of constant net asset value (CNAV) money market funds that invest in
shorter-dated highly-rated money market securities to provide investors with a highly liquid and secure investment.
These funds price the assets in their portfolio on an amortized cost basis, which enables them to create and liquidate
shares at a constant price. The funds, however, are not permitted to price their portfolios at amortized cost if that
amount varies by more than 50 basis points from the portfolio’s market value. In that case, the fund would be
required to price its portfolio at market value and consequently would no longer be able to create or liquidate shares
at a constant price.

At June 30, 2008, one of HUSI's sponsored CNAYV funds, which had total net assets of $7.6 billion, held $228
million of investmentsissued by SIVs. Asaresult of recent market conditions and rating agency actions, these
investments have experienced declinesin market value. HUSI has no legal obligation, and currently has no plan, to
offer financial support to thisfund in the event that it is unable to maintain a constant net asset value as a result of
becoming unable to value its assets at amortized cost. Thisfund did, however, receive support from an affiliate of
HUSI, which in January 2008 provided aletter of limited indemnity in relation to certain of the fund's SIV
investments.

HUSI does not consolidate the CNAV funds it sponsors as they are not VIEs and HUSI does not hold a majority
voting interest.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview

Some degree of risk isinherent in virtually all of HUSI' s activities. For the principal activities undertaken by HUSI,
the most important types of risks are considered to be credit, interest rate, market, liquidity, operational, fiduciary
and reputational. Market risk broadly refersto price risk inherent in mark to market positions taken on trading and
non-trading instruments. Operational risk technically includeslegal and compliance risk. However, since
compliance risk, including anti-money laundering (AML) risk, has such broad scope within HUSI’ s businesses, it is
addressed as a separate functional discipline. During the second quarter of 2008, there have been no significant
changes in policies or approach for managing various types of risk, although HUSI continues to monitor current
market conditions and will adjust risk management policies and procedures if deemed necessary.

Liquidity Management

HUSI’" s approach to address liquidity risk is summarized on pages 79-81 of HUSI’s 2007 Form 10-K. There have
been no material changesin HUSI' s approach toward liquidity risk management during the second quarter of 2008.

HUSI’"s ability to regularly attract wholesale funds at a competitive cost is enhanced by strong ratings from the
major credit rating agencies. At June 30, 2008, HUSI and HBUS maintained the following debt ratings.

Moody's S&P Fitch DBRS*
HUSI:
ShOrt-term BOITOWINGS ...t P-1 A-1+ F1+ R-1
LONG-tErM AEDE ..ottt s Aa3 AA- AA AA
HBUS:
ShOrt-tErM DOMTOWINGS ...vveuieeieeieireireseetesese s sssese s essese e sessseeseseesesensens P-1 A-1+ F1+ R-1
LONG-terM deht ... Aa2 AA AA AA

* Dominion Bond Rating Service.

Numerous factors, internal and external, may impact HUSI' s access to and costs associated with issuing debt in the
global capital markets. These factorsinclude HUSI’ s debt ratings, overall economic conditions, overall capital
markets volatility and the effectiveness of HUSI' s management of credit risks inherent in its customer base.

HUSI periodically issues capital instruments to fund balance sheet growth, to meet cash and capital needs, or to fund
investmentsin subsidiaries. HUSI currently satisfies the eligibility requirements for designation as a “well-known
seasoned issuer”, and has an effective shelf registration statement with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission under which it may issue debt securities, preferred stock, either separately or represented by depositary
shares, warrants, purchase contracts and units.

Concentrations of Risk Inherent in Loan Portfolios

Certain risk concentrations are inherent within the prime residential mortgage loan portfolio, as well as the subprime
residential mortgage whole loans held for sale portfolio, including concentrations that result in credit risk. A
concentration of risk is defined as a significant exposure with an individual or group engaged in similar activities or
affected similarly by economic conditions. Asistruefor all loan portfolios, HUSI utilizes high underwriting
standards and prices loansin a manner that is appropriate to compensate for the risk associated with any
concentrations.
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HUSI holds certain residential mortgage loans that were originated at high loan-to-value (LTV) ratios and no
mortgage insurance, which could result in potential inability to recover the entire investment in loans involving
foreclosed or damaged properties. High LTV loans were mainly loans on primary residences with LTV ratios equal
to or exceeding 90% at the time of origination.

HUSI also offersinterest-only residential mortgage loans. These interest-only loans allow customers to pay only the
accruing interest for aperiod of time, which resultsin lower payments during the initial loan period. Depending on
acustomer’ s financia situation, the subsequent increase in the required payment attributable to loan principal could
affect a customer’ s ability to repay the loan at some future date when the interest rate resets and/or principal
payments are required.

Outstanding balances of high LTV and interest-only residential mortgage loans are summarized in the following
table.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)
Residential mortgage loans with high LTV and N0 mortgage inSUranCe .........coeovevveeeeveeeneseesesnnens $ 2,033 $ 2,345
Interest-only residential mortgage loans 4,686 6,161
TOBL oAbttt $ 6,719 $ 8,506

Concentrations of first and second liens within the residential mortgage loan portfolio are summarized in the
following table. Amountsin the table exclude loans held for sale.

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Closed end:
FFSETIEN ettt ettt a bbb s b e sssaeae b ens et et e b et ebesrene e nennenin $ 23,646 $ 28315
1= oo o 1= USRIt 961 1,096
Revolving:
1= oo g To 1= U RSRPSSRE 3,268 3,082
TOLBl .ottt ettt a e h et et ae b e R be s eae e eae e ebe b eReebeneebeneeaene e e e erennebennne $ 27,875 $ 32,493

HUSI aso offers adjustable rate residential mortgage loans which alow it to adjust pricing on the loan in line with
market movements. Asinterest rates have risen over the last three years, many adjustable rate loans may require a
significantly higher monthly payment following their first adjustment. A customer's financial situation at the time of
the interest rate reset could affect their ability to repay the loan after the adjustment, or may cause the customer to
prepay or refinance the loan. At June 30, 2008, HUSI had approximately $12.6 billion in adjustable rate residential
mortgage loans. For the remainder of 2008, approximately $1.4 billion of adjustable rate residential mortgage loans
will experience their first interest rate reset.

I nterest Rate Risk Management

Various techniques are utilized to quantify and monitor risks associated with the repricing characteristics of HUSI's
assets, liabilities, and derivative contracts. The approach toward managing interest rate risk is summarized on pages
81-83 of HUSI’s 2007 Form 10-K. During the first six months of 2008, there were no significant changesin
policies or approach for managing interest rate risk.
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Present Value of a Basis Point (PVBP) Analysis

PVBP isthe change in value of the balance sheet for a one basis point upward movement in all interest rates.
HUSI’s PVBP position is summarized in the following table.

June 30, 2008 Values
(in millions)

Institutional PVBP MOVEMENE TIMIT ..ottt s et b bt e bbbt st b bbbt e e ne b senen $ 6.5
PVBP POSITION 8t PEITOU B0 .....cvviiiriieticieietet ettt e et b ettt b et bttt ettt 34

Economic Value of Equity

Economic value of equity is the change in value of the assets and liabilities (excluding capital and goodwill) for
either a 200 basis point gradual rate increase or decrease. HUSI’ s economic value of equity position is summarized
in the following table.

June 30, 2008 Values (%)
Institutional €conomMicC Value Of EQUITY TIMIT .......ouiuiuiiiieteee ettt ettt e ebebenan +/- 20
Projected change in value (reflects projected rate movements on July 1, 2008):
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point iNCrease in iNEEreSt FaleS .........ccceerrnrecieeeeee e (10)
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point decrease in iNterest rates ... 4

Thelossin value for a 200 basis point increase or decrease in ratesis aresult of the negative convexity of the
residential whole loan and mortgage backed securities portfolios. If rates decrease, the projected prepayments
related to these portfolios will accelerate, causing less appreciation than a comparable term, non-convex instrument.
If rates increase, projected prepayments will slow, which will cause the average lives of these positionsto extend
and result in agreater loss in market value.

Dynamic Simulation Modeling

Various modeling techniques are utilized to monitor a number of interest rate scenarios for their impact on net
interest income. These techniques include both rate shock scenarios which assume immediate market rate
movements by as much as 200 basis points, as well as scenarios in which rates rise or fall by as much as 200 basis
points over atwelve month period. The following table reflects the impact on net interest income of the scenarios
utilized by these modeling techniques.

June 30, 2008 Values

Amount %
($in millions)
Projected change in net interest income for scenarios subject to aformal institutional movement limit
(reflects projected rate movements on July 1, 2008):
Institutional base earnings MOVEMENt [IMIt ... s (20)
Change resulting from a gradual 200 basis point increase in theyield curve .. $ (273 (@)
Change resulting from a gradual 200 basis point decrease in the yield CUrve ...........cccovvcniiicccriiinens 222 5
Change resulting from agradua 100 basis point increasein the yield CUrve ...........coccovvvvnicccccinns (136) (©)]
Change resulting from a gradual 100 basis point decrease in the yield CUrve ............cccovvcnciicccrinnnns 129 3
Other significant scenarios monitored for internal purposes, not subject to aformal institutional
movement limit (reflects projected rate movements on July 1, 2008):
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point increasein theyield curve ... (207) (5)
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point decrease in the yield curve ..........ccoovvceccceinnns 183 4
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point increase in the yield curve .. (413) (20)
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point decrease in the yield curve ..........ccoovveeccciinnns 260 6

The projections do not take into consideration possible complicating factors such as the effect of changesin interest
rates on the credit quality, size and composition of the balance sheet. Therefore, although this provides a reasonable
estimate of interest rate sensitivity, actual results will vary from these estimates, possibly by significant amounts.

88



Capital Risk/Sensitivity of Other Comprehensive Income

Large movements of interest rates could directly affect some reported capital and capital ratios. The mark to market
valuation of available for sale securitiesis adjusted on atax effective basis through other comprehensive incomein
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. Although this valuation mark is excluded from
Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital ratios, it isincluded in two important accounting based capital ratios: the tangible common
equity to tangible assets and the tangible common equity to risk weighted assets. As of June 30, 2008, HUSI had an
available for sale securities portfolio of approximately $22 billion with a net negative mark to market of $777
million included in tangible common equity of approximately $8 billion. Anincrease of 25 basis pointsin interest
rates of al maturities would lower the mark to market by approximately $180 million to a net loss of $957 million
with the following results on the tangible capital ratios.

Proforma — Reflecting
25 Basis Points

June 30, 2008 Actual Increasein Rates
Tangible common equity to tangibIE @SSELS ........ccccuviiiiiciiiciccc s 469 % 455 %
Tangible common equity to risk weighted @SSEtS ... 6.13 5.95

Market Risk Management
Value at Risk (VAR)

VAR analysisis used to estimate the potential 1osses that could occur on risk positions as a result of movementsin
market rates and prices over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence. VAR calculations are
performed for al material trading activities and as atool for managing interest rate risk inherent in non-trading
activities. HUSI calculates VAR daily for aone-day holding period to a 99% confidence level. At a99%
confidence level for atwo-year observation period, HUSI is setting as its limit the fifth worst loss performance in
the last 500 business days.

VAR - Trading Activities

HUSI"s management of market risk is based on restricting individual operations to trading within alist of
permissible instruments, and enforcing rigorous approval procedures for new products. In particular, trading in the
more complex derivative products is restricted to offices with appropriate levels of product expertise and robust
control systems.

In addition, at both portfolio and position levels, market risk in trading portfolios is monitored and controlled using a
complementary set of techniques, including VAR and various techniques for monitoring interest rate risk (beginning
on page 87 of this Form 10-Q). These techniques quantify the impact on capital of defined market movements.

Trading portfolios reside primarily within the Markets unit of the Global Banking and Markets business segment,
which include warehoused residential mortgage |oans purchased for securitizations and within the mortgage banking
subsidiary included within the PFS business segment. Portfolios include foreign exchange, derivatives, precious
metals (gold, silver, platinum), equities, money market instruments and securities. Trading occurs as a result of
customer facilitation, proprietary position taking, and economic hedging. In this context, economic hedging may
include, for example, forward contracts to sell residential mortgages and derivative contracts which, while
economically viable, may not satisfy the hedge requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133).
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The trading portfolios have defined limits pertaining to items such as permissible investments, risk exposures, 10ss
review, balance sheet size and product concentrations. “Lossreview” refers to the maximum amount of loss that
may be incurred before senior management intervention is required.

Trading VAR for thefirst half of 2008 is summarized in the following table.

June 30, Six months ended June 30, 2008 December 31,
2008 Minimum Maximum Average 2007
(in millions)
Total trading .....cceveeeereeeereereeeree e $ 29 $ 12 $ 79 $ 31 $ 25
COMMOUILIES ... 1 * 5 1 2
EQUITIES ..ot 1 * 1 * *
Foreign exchange .........ccoeeuvurenrennececinieeceesenenes 2 * 5 2 3
Interest rate directional and credit spread .............. 22 11 37 22 17

*  Lessthan $500 thousand.

The frequency distribution of daily market risk-related revenues for trading activities during 2008 is summarized in
the following table. Market risk-related trading revenues include realized and unrealized gains (losses) related to
trading activities, but exclude the related net interest income. Analysis of the gain (loss) data for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2008 shows that the largest daily gain was $36 million and $45 million, respectively and the
largest daily loss was $29 million and $63 million, respectively.

Ranges of daily Treasury trading revenue earned Below $(10) to $0to Over
from market risk-related activities (in millions) $(10) $0 $10 $10

Three months ended June 30, 2008:

Number of trading days market risk-related revenue was within the stated range ...... 8 15 26 15

Six months ended June 30, 2008:
Number of trading days market risk-related revenue was within the stated range ...... 19 33 49 24

VAR - Non-trading Activities

The principal objective of market risk management of non-trading portfoliosis to optimize net interest income.
Market risk in non-trading portfolios arises principally from mismatches between the future yield on assets and their
funding cost, as aresult of interest rate changes. Analysis of thisrisk is complicated by having to make assumptions
on optionality in certain product areas, for example, mortgage prepayments, and from behavioral assumptions
regarding the economic duration of liabilities which are contractually repayable on demand. The prospective change
in future net interest income from non-trading portfolios will be reflected in the current realizable value of these
positions, should they be sold or closed prior to maturity. In order to manage this risk optimally, market risk in non-
trading portfolios is transferred to global markets or to separate books managed under the supervision of ALCO.
Once market risk has been consolidated in global markets or AL CO-managed books, the net exposureis typically
managed through the use of interest rate swaps within agreed-upon limits.

Non-trading VAR for the second quarter of 2008, assuming a 99% confidence level for atwo-year observation
period and aone-day “holding period”, is summarized in the following table.

June 30, Six months ended June 30, 2008 December 31,
2008 Minimum Maximum Average 2007

(in millions)
INLErESt FAE ..vvvvveverereeeeeeeee e $ 96 $ 46 $ 118 $ 74 $ 24
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Trading Activities— HSBC Mortgage Corporation (USA)

HSBC Mortgage Corporation (USA) is HUSI’ s mortgage banking subsidiary. Trading occurs in mortgage banking
operations as aresult of an economic hedging program intended to offset changes in value of mortgage servicing
rights and the salable loan pipeline. Economic hedging may include, for example, forward contracts to sell
residential mortgages and derivative contracts used to protect the value of MSRs.

MSRs are assets that represent the present value of net servicing income (servicing fees, ancillary income, escrow
and deposit float, net of servicing costs). MSRs are recognized upon the sale of the underlying loans or at the time
that servicing rights are purchased. MSRs are subject to interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as a result
of achanging interest rate environment.

Interest rate risk is mitigated through an active hedging program that uses trading securities and derivative
instruments to offset changesin value of MSRs. Since the hedging program involves trading activity, risk is
quantified and managed using a number of risk assessment techniques.

Rate Shock Analysis

Modeling techniques are used to monitor certain interest rate scenarios for their impact on the economic value of net
hedged M SRs, as reflected in the following table, which excludes commercial MSRs.

June 30, 2008 Values

(in millions)
Projected change in net market value of hedged M SRs portfolio (reflects projected rate
movements on July 1, 2008):

Value of hedged M SRS POMIOIIO .....c.cuiuiiiririiiici ettt bbbttt $ 546
Change resulting from an immediate 50 basis point decrease in the yield curve:

Change limit (N0 WOTSETNAN) .....viieieiieieieieiei ettt bbbttt (16)

Calculated change in NEt MAKEL VBIUE ...t 2
Change resulting from an immediate 50 basis point increase in the yield curve:

Change limit (NO WOFSETNEN) ......ciiiiiieieiii ettt 8)

Calculated change iN NEt MArKEE VAIUE .........cccuiiiiiiieceee et ?3)
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point increase in the yield curve:

Change limit (NO WOFSETNAN) ....cvvveieeeiiiiereeteeise ettt a et e e e et se e e e e s e s esese e et esnbene e s nsesesnsnnensnsnsennsens (12)

Calculated change in net market value
Economic Value of MSRs

The economic value of the net hedged M SRs portfolio is monitored on a daily basis for interest rate sensitivity. If
the economic value declines by more than established limits for one day or one month, various levels of
management review, intervention and/or corrective actions are required.

Hedge Volatility

The frequency distribution of the weekly economic value of M SR assets during 2008 is summarized in the following
table. Thisincludes the change in the market value of the MSR asset net of changes in the market value of the
underlying hedging positions used to hedge the asset. The changes in economic value are adjusted for changesin
M SR valuation assumptions that were made during the course of the quarter, if applicable.

Ranges of mortgage economic value from market risk- Below $(2) to $0to $2to Over
related activities (in millions) $(2) $0 $2 $4 $4

Three months ended June 30, 2008:
Number of trading weeks market risk-related revenue
waswithin the stated range ... 6 3 2 1 1

Six months ended June 30, 2008:
Number of trading weeks market risk-related revenue
waswithin the stated range ..o 10 5 2 2 7



HSBC USA Inc.

CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCESAND INTEREST RATES

The following table shows the quarter to date average balances of the principal components of assets, liabilities and shareholders' equity

together with their respective interest amounts and rates earned or paid, presented on ataxable equivalent basis.

Three months ended June 30,
2008 2007
Balance Interest Rate* Balance Interest Rate*
($in millions)
Assets
Interest bearing deposits with banks ...... $ 5,428 $ 41 303 % $ 5,745 $ 81 564 %
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements ...... 8,665 51 2.36 12,855 177 553
Trading @SSetS ......ccceveverireneeeinieeieeeens 10,112 138 5.49 12,582 168 5.37
SECUNEIES .ot 25,540 334 5.27 21,907 282 5.16
Loans:
Commercial .....covvereneecicieieierene 38,604 421 4.39 29,538 480 6.52
Consumer:
Residential mortgages .............. 32,633 419 5.16 38,904 530 5.46
Credit cards ............... 18,241 463 10.22 17,555 405 9.26
Other consumer .........ccoeeeveenene 2,113 56 10.71 2,480 62 10.08
Total CoNSUMEr .....covvevereiereiereans 52,987 938 7.13 58,939 997 6.79
Total 10aNS ..o 91,591 1,359 5.97 88,477 1,477 6.70
OthEr ..o 9,673 62 2.56 3,035 44 5.74
Total earning assets ............ 151,009 $ 1985 529 % 144,601 $ 2,229 6.18 %
Allowancefor credit losses ... (1,679) (918)
Cash and due from banks ... . 3,038 2,804
Other assatS ... 27,584 21,515
Total @SSELS ..o $ 179,952 $ 168,002
Liabilitiesand Shareholders’ Equity
Depositsin domestic offices:
Savings dePOSItS ......ccveveevrverereneennes $ 47445 $ 225 191 % $ 43434 3 356 329 %
Other time deposits ......ccccoveeveereenene. 24,299 226 3.74 22,236 303 547
Depositsin foreign offices:
Foreign banks deposits ..........ccco...... 11,398 53 1.87 9,020 112 4.96
Other interest bearing deposits ........ 15,336 7 2.02 15,525 188 4.86
Total interest bearing deposits ............... 98,478 581 2.37 90,215 959 4.26
Short-term borrowings ........ccccceeveeeeene 11,335 68 241 8,948 105 4,70
Long-term debt .......ccevvevrevinenicriciinnnn 25,683 239 3.74 28,806 350 4.88
Total interest bearing liabilities............... 135,496 888 2.64 127,969 1,414 4.43
Net interest income/Interest rate
SPrEA ... $ 1,097 2.65 % $ 815 175 %
Noninterest bearing deposits .. 13,702 13,167
Other liabilities ...........ccccceueee . 18,940 14,673
Total shareholders’ equity ........cccoevvenne 11,814 12,193
Total liabilities and shareholders'
EQUILY vttt $ 179,952 $ 168,002
Net interest margin on average
€aArNING @SSELS ....cvvveeeeirerieeee e 293 % 226 %
Net interest margin on average total
BSSELS .. 245 % 194 %

* Rates are calculated on unrounded numbers.

Total weighted average rate earned on earning assets is interest and fee earnings divided by daily average amounts of total interest earning
assets, including the daily average amount on nonperforming loans. Loan interest for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 included

fees of $8 million and $13 million, respectively.



HSBC USA Inc.
CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCESAND INTEREST RATES

The following table shows the year to date average balances of the principal components of assets, liabilities and shareholders' equity together
with their respective interest amounts and rates earned or paid, presented on a taxable equivalent basis.

Six months ended June 30,
2008 2007
Balance Interest Rate* Balance Interest Rate*
($in millions)
Assets
Interest bearing deposits with banks ...... $ 5,571 $ 86 311 % $ 4,855 $ 137 5.72
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements ...... 9,345 137 2.95 12,467 340 5.50
Trading @SSetS ......ccceverveneneeeieeieieieeens 11,044 296 5.38 11,677 309 5.34
SECUNEIES .ot 25,179 645 5.14 22,214 576 5.23
Loans:
CommeErcial .....ccovevereniiiecieieeeiens 37,601 918 491 29,104 939 6.51
Consumer:
Residential mortgages .............. 33,914 878 521 38,994 1,057 5.47
Credit cards ............... . 18,490 937 10.19 17,619 797 9.12
Other consumer .........ccoeeeveenene. 2,169 114 10.54 2,568 126 9.89
Total CoNSUMEr .....covvevereeereeerens 54,573 1,929 7.11 59,181 1,980 6.75
Total 10aNS ..o 92,174 2,847 6.21 88,285 2,919 6.67
OthEr ..o 9,323 144 3.11 2,656 76 5.74
Total earning assets ............ 152,636 $ 4,155 547 % 142,154 $ 4357 6.18
Allowancefor credit losses ... (1,600) (928)
Cash and due from banks ... . 3,044 2,989
Other assatS ... 30,203 21,548
Total @SSELS ..o $ 184,283 $ 165,763
Liabilitiesand Shareholders’ Equity
Depositsin domestic offices:
Savings depoSits .......ccceeeeeueiririrenene $ 46,361 $ 502 218 % $ 41,939 $ 677 3.26
Other time deposits ......ccccoveeveereenene. 24,329 517 4.27 22,798 612 541
Depositsin foreign offices:
Foreign banks deposits ..........ccco...... 12,639 151 2.40 9,132 221 4.88
Other interest bearing deposits ........ 15,333 211 277 14,293 338 4.77
Total interest bearing deposits ............... 98,662 1,381 2.81 88,162 1,848 4.23
Short-term borrowings ........ccccceeveeeeene 12,352 167 2.71 8,797 176 4.04
Long-termdebt .....ccccvevvveecreeeee 26,541 541 4,10 29,029 723 5.02
Total interest bearing liabilities. .............. 137,555 2,089 3.05 125,988 2,747 4.40
Net interest income/Interest rate
SPrEA ... $ 2,066 242 % $ 1610 1.78
Noninterest bearing deposits .. 14,171 13,536
Other liabilities ...........ccccceueee . 20,965 14,024
Total shareholders’ equity ........cccoevvenne 11,592 12,215
Total liabilities and shareholders'
EQUILY vttt $ 184,283 $ 165,763
Net interest margin on average
€aArNING @SSELS ....cvvveeeeirerieeee e 273 % 2.28
Net interest margin on average total
B2 S5 = R 225 % 196

* Rates are calculated on unrounded numbers.

Total weighted average rate earned on earning assets is interest and fee earnings divided by daily average amounts of total interest earning
assets, including the daily average amount on nonperforming loans. Loan interest for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 included
fees of $16 million and $23 million, respectively.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Refer to Item 2, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, under the
captions “Interest Rate Risk Management” and “ Trading Activities’, beginning on page 87 of this Form 10-Q.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

HUSI maintains a system of internal and disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the
Exchange Act), isrecorded, processed, summarized and reported on atimely basis. HUSI's Board of Directors,
operating through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of independent outside directors, provides
oversight to the financial reporting process.

An evaluation was conducted, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer, of
the effectiveness of HUSI' s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report.
Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that HUSI's
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report so asto aert
them in atimely fashion to material information required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Exchange Act.

There has been no significant change in HUSI’ sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
three months ended June 30, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, HUSI's
internal control over financial reporting.
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Part Il —-OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

General

HUSI is aparty to various legal proceedings resulting from ordinary business activities relating to its current and/or
former operations. Due to uncertaintiesin litigation and other factors, management cannot be certain that HUSI will
ultimately prevail in each instance. Management believes that HUSI' s defenses to these actions have merit and any
adverse decision should not materially affect HUSI' s consolidated financial condition. However, losses may be
material to HUSI’ sresults of operations for any particular future period depending on HUSI’ sincome level for that
period.

Credit Card Litigation

Since June 2005, HBUS, HSBC Finance Corporation, HSBC North America and HSBC, as well as other banks and
Visalnc. and MasterCard Incorporated, were named as defendants in four class actions filed in Connecticut and the
Eastern District of New Y ork; Photos Etc. Corp. et al. v. Visa U.SA,, Inc., et al. (D. Conn. No. 3:05-CV-01007
(WWE)): National Association of Convenience Stores, et al. v. VisaU.SA,, Inc, et al. (E.D.N.Y. No. 05-CV 4520
(JG)); Jethro Holdings, Inc., et al. v. Visa U.SA., Inc. et al. (E.D.N.Y. No. 05-CV-4521 (JG)); and American
Booksdllers Ass nv. Visa U.SA,, Inc. et al. (E.D.N.Y. No. 05-CV-5391 (JG)). Numerous other complaints
containing similar allegations (in which no HSBC entity is named) were filed across the country against Visalnc.,
MasterCard Incorporated and other banks. These actions principally allege that the imposition of a no-surcharge
rule by the associations and/or the establishment of the interchange fee charged for credit card transactions causes
the merchant discount fee paid by retailersto be set at supracompetitive levelsin violation of the Federal antitrust
laws. In response to motions of the plaintiffs on October 19, 2005, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation (the
“MDL Panel”) issued an order consolidating these suits and transferred all of the cases to the Eastern District of
New York. The consolidated caseis: In re Payment Card Interchange Fee and Merchant Discount Antitrust
Litigation, MDL 1720, E.D.N.Y. A consolidated, amended complaint was filed by the plaintiffs on April 24, 2006.
The parties are engaged in discovery and motion practice.

In October 2007, VisaInc. announced that it had completed restructuring transactions in preparation for itsinitial
public offering planned for early 2008. HBUS has a membership interest in Visalnc. Asaresult of the
indemnification agreement established as part of the restructuring, entities with a membership interest, including
HBUS, have obligations to share in certain losses under various agreements with VVisa Inc. in connection with this
and other litigation.

DataTreasury Litigation

HBUS and HNAH are among the more than 50 defendants named in an action filed in the U.S. District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas. DataTreasury Corporation v. Wells Fargo, et a. This suit alleges that the named entities
infringed certain DataTreasury Corporation patents, including patents covering image capture, centralized
processing and electronic storage of document and check information. DataTreasury Corporation seeks unspecified
damages and injunctive relief in both cases. HUSI is unable to quantify the potential impact from this action, if any.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

For adiscussion of certain risk factors affecting HUSI, see Part 1, Item 1A of the 2007 Form 10-K. The adverse
conditions that led to substantial declinesin HUSI’ s trading revenue and other income, including higher asset
valuation adjustments during the second half of 2007 and the first quarter of 2008 have continued into the second
quarter of 2008. Market conditions that have resulted in significantly wider credit spreads and severely diminished
liquidity continue to impact the carrying value of several of HUSI' s asset classes, including asset backed securities,
sub-prime residential mortgage loans held for sale and credit derivative products, including derivative contracts with
monoline insurance companies. While the magnitude of the write-downs slowed in the second quarter of 2008,
continued deterioration of the U.S. markets, including further adverse rating actions by credit rating agenciesin
respect of structured credit products or other credit related exposures, or of monoline insurers, could adversely
impact HUSI’ s earnings with a corresponding impact on capital .

Item 6. Exhibits

3(ii)) Bylawsof HSBC USA Inc., as amended May 1, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 (ii) of
HSBC USA Inc.’s current report on Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2008).

12 Computation of Ratio of Earningsto Fixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and
Preferred Stock Dividends.

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
321 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

August 4, 2008

HSBC USA Inc.
(Registrant)

/s Joseph R. Simpson

Joseph R. Simpson
Executive Vice President and Controller
(On behalf of Registrant)
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Exhibit 12

HSBC USA Inc.
Computation of Ratio of Earningsto Fixed Chargesand
Earningsto Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends
(in millions, except ratios)

Six months ended June 30 2008 2007

Ratios excluding interest on deposits:

NEL (10SS) INCOIME ...t $ (452) $ 564
Income tax (DENEFit) EXPENSE ... s (282) 253
Less: Undistributed eqUIity arNINGS ........ccirriririeiieieieiier et 13 -
Fixed charges:
Interest on:
Borrowed funds 167 176
Long-term debt ‘ 541 723
Onethird of rents, net of income from SUDIEBSES ..........cccciciciiiiiiccicc e, 12 14
Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0N dePOSILS .........coeieeeereieinrir e, 720 913
Earnings before taxes and fixed charges, net of undistributed equity €arnings .........ccccceevrevvereeennnn: $ (27) $ 1,730
Ratio of earningsto fiXed CRAIgES ..........ccccvviiniiici e, (0.04) 1.89
Total preferred stock dividend faCtor (1) ......cccciceiiirniiiece e, $ 65 $ 72
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor ..........c.ccccceevvrveeienenrseereessee e, $ 785 $ 985
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends ..., (0.03) 1.76
Ratios including interest on deposits:
Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0N AEPOSILS ........ocoururieeiririririeicirerires e $ 720 $ 913
Add: Interest on dePOSItS .....ccvervreeireeeiererereeeeeenas 1,381 1,848
Total fixed charges, including interest on deposits $ 2,101 $ 2,761
Earnings before taxes and fixed charges, net of undistributed equity €arnings ............coceocevecvceenen. $ 27) $ 1,730
Add: Interest on deposits . 1,381 1,848
TOAl ettt $ 1,354 $ 3,578
Ratio of earningsto fiXEd CRAIGES .........ceuiiririririiiicei bbb, 0.64 1.30
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor ............occeoeirieecninrnceeeseeeeeen, $ 785 $ 985
Add: Interest on dePOSItS .....ceevrervreeeeerenreee s . 1,381 1,848
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor and interest on deposits ..........c.cccuee. $ 2,166 $ 2,833
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends ...........cccoveecciciennnn. 0.63 1.26

() Preferred stock dividends grossed up to their pretax equivalents.

98



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
I, Paul J. Lawrence, President and Chief Executive Officer of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. | havereviewed thisreport on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all materia respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(€)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed suchinternal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financia
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evauated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosedinthisreport any changein theregistrant’sinternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) dl significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of interna controls over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
rolein theregistrant’sinternal control over financia reporting.

August 4, 2008 /s Paul J. Lawrence

Paul J. Lawrence
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

|, Gerard Mattia, Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. | havereviewed thisreport on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all materia respects the financia condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(€)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and proceduresto
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed suchinternal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evauated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosedinthisreport any changein theregistrant’sinterna control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materialy affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting.

August 4, 2008 /s/ Gerard Mattia

Gerard Mattia
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financia Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Report™) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States
Code.

I, Paul J. Lawrence, President and Chief Executive Officer of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of HSBC USA Inc.

August 4, 2008 /s/ Paul J. Lawrence

Paul J. Lawrence
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States
Code.

I, Gerard Mattia, Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in al material respects, the financia condition and
results of operations of HSBC USA Inc.

August 4, 2008 /s Gerard Mattia

Gerard Mattia
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financia Officer

This certification accompanies each Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall
not, except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by HSBC USA Inc. for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Signed originals of these written statements required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been
provided to HSBC USA Inc. and will be retained by HSBC USA Inc. and furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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